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Table of Contents



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Delaware 45-3591625

Delaware 27-4735285

Delaware 90-0812516
(State or other jurisdiction of (LLR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

Park Place Corporate Center One
1000 Commerce Drive, Suite 400
Pittsburgh, PA 15275
(800) 251-0171

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive
office)

Edward E. Cohen
Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC
Park Place Corporate Center One
1000 Commerce Drive, Suite 400
Pittsburgh, PA 15275
(800) 251-0171

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Please send copies of communications to:
Mark E. Rosenstein, Esq.
Amanda Abrams, Esq.

Ledgewood
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1900 Market Street, Suite 750

Philadelphia, PA 19103

(215) 731-9450

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after this registration statement
becomes effective.

If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or reinvestment plans, please
check the following box:

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to

Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest
reinvestment plans, check the following box: x
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If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act,
please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective
registration statement for the same offering. ~

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering. ~

If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that
shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the
following box. x

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction 1.D. filed to
register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check
the following box. ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting
company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer "~ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company

Calculation of Registration Fee

Amount to be registered/
proposed maximum offering
price per unit/proposed
Title of each class of maximum aggregate Amount of

securities to be registered offering price registration fee
Common units
Preferred units
Subordinated units
Warrants
Debt securities
Guarantees(2)
Total ) (1)
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(1) An indeterminate aggregate initial offering price or number of the securities of each identified class is being
registered. Separate consideration may or may not be received for securities that are issuable on exercise,
conversion or exchange of other securities. The registrant elects to pay the fee on a deferred basis pursuant to
Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933.

(2) Pursuant to Rule 457(n), no separate fee is payable with respect to the guarantees of the debt securities being
registered.
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Exact name of registrant
as specified in its charter
Atlas Resources, LLC

Viking Resources, LLC

Resource Energy, LL.C

ARP Barnett, LLC

ARP Barnett Pipeline, LLC

Atlas Barnett, LLC

Atlas Noble, LLC
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State or other
jurisdiction of
incorporation

or organization
Pennsylvania

Pennsylvania

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Texas

Delaware

LR.S. Employer
Identification

Number
20-4822875

20-5365124

20-5365174

90-0812567

61-1682295

26-2654688

20-5365139

Address, including zip code,
and telephone number, including

area code, of registrant s
principal executive offices
Park Place Corporate Center One
1000 Commerce Drive, 4t Floor

Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One
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REI-NY, LLC

Atlas Energy Indiana, LL.C

Atlas Energy Tennessee, LLC

Atlas Energy Ohio, LLC

ARP Oklahoma LLC

Atlas Energy Colorado, LLC

Resource Well Services, LLC
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Delaware

Indiana

Pennsylvania

Ohio

Oklahoma

Colorado

Delaware

20-5365147

26-3210546

26-2770794

20-5365198

90-0815193

45-2120015

20-5365162

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
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ARP Mid-Continent, LLC
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Delaware

Delaware

Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171
90-0999968 Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
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(800) 251-0171
80-0959365 Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, 4th Floor
Pittsburgh, PA 15275-1011

(800) 251-0171



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Table of Conten
PROSPECTUS
ATLAS RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P.
COMMON UNITS, PREFERRED UNITS, SUBORDINATED UNITS, WARRANTS,
DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES
ATLAS ENERGY HOLDINGS OPERATING COMPANY, LLC
ATLAS RESOURCE FINANCE CORPORATION

DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES
We may offer and issue, from time to time, common units representing limited partner interests, preferred units
representing limited partner interests, subordinated units representing limited partner interests, debt securities and
warrants. This prospectus describes the general terms of these securities and the general manner in which we will offer
them. We will provide the specific terms of these securities in supplements to this prospectus. The prospectus

supplements will also describe the specific manner in which we will offer these securities.

Our common units are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ARP.

Investing in these securities involves certain risks. You should carefully read and consider the risk factors
included in our periodic reports, in any prospectus supplement relating to a specific offering of securities and
in other documents that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. See _Risk Factors on page 2 of
this prospectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the
contrary is a criminal offense.

Prospectus dated February 3, 2014
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EXPERTS

In making your investment decision, you should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this prospectus and in any prospectus supplement. We have not authorized any other person to
provide you with any other information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you
should not rely on it.

O I W kW W W N = E

DN W N
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You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus or in any prospectus supplement is
accurate as of any date other than the date on the front cover of those documents. You should not assume that
the information contained in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any prospectus
supplement is accurate as of any date other than the respective dates of those documents. Qur business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. We will disclose
any material changes in our affairs in an amendment to this prospectus, a prospectus supplement or a future
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is a part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the
SEC, using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration statement, we may sell securities described in this
prospectus in one or more offerings.

Each time we sell securities we will provide a prospectus supplement and, if applicable, a pricing supplement
containing specific information about the terms of the securities being offered. That prospectus supplement may
include a discussion of any risk factors or other special considerations that apply to those securities. The prospectus
supplement and any pricing supplement may also add, update or change the information in this prospectus. If there is
any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus (including the information incorporated by reference
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herein) and any prospectus supplement or pricing supplement, you should rely on the information in that prospectus
supplement or pricing supplement. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with
additional information described under the heading Where You Can Find More Information.
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SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

Certain sections of this registration statement contain statements reflecting our views about our future performance

and constitute forward-looking statements. We and our representatives may, from time to time, make written or oral
forward-looking statements, including statements contained in our filings with the SEC and in our reports to security

holders. Generally, the inclusion of the words believe, expect, intend, estimate, project, anticipate, will an
expressions identify statements that constitute forward-looking statements. All statements addressing operating

performance of us or any subsidiary, events or developments that we expect or anticipates would occur in the future

are forward-looking statements.

These views involve risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and, accordingly, our actual results may differ
materially from the results discussed in such forward-looking statements. Readers should consider the various factors,
including those discussed in our most recent annual report on Form 10-K under Risk Factors, = Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates and in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, that are on file with the SEC for additional factors that may
affect our performance. The forward-looking statements are and will be based upon management s then-current views
and assumptions regarding future events and operating performance, and are applicable only as of the dates of such
statements. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.

We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, the securities described in this prospectus only where offers
and sales are permitted. Since information that we file with the SEC in the future will automatically update and
supersede information contained in this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement, you should
not assume that the information contained in this prospectus or in any prospectus supplement is accurate as of
any date other than the date on the front of the document.

ii
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THE COMPANY

We are a publicly-traded master-limited partnership (NYSE: ARP) and an independent developer and producer of
natural gas, crude oil and natural gas liquids, with operations in basins across the United States. We are a leading
sponsor and manager of tax-advantaged investment partnerships, in which we co-invest, to finance a portion of our
natural gas and oil production activities. We believe we have established a strong track record of growing our
reserves, production and cash flows through a balanced mix of natural gas and oil exploitation and development and
sponsorship of investment partnerships and acquisition of oil and gas properties. Our primary business objective is to
generate growing yet stable cash flows through the development and acquisition of mature, long-lived natural gas and
oil properties. Our operations include three reportable operating segments: gas and oil production, well construction
and completion and other partnership management.

We were formed in October 2011 to own and operate substantially all of the exploration and production assets of
Atlas Energy, L.P. (NYSE: ATLS), or the Atlas Energy E&P Operations, which were transferred to us on March 5,
2012. Atlas Energy, L.P. is a publicly-traded master limited partnership which owns 100% of our general partner
Class A units and incentive distribution rights and an approximate 36.9% limited partner ownership interest in us.

We conduct our operations through, and our operating assets are owned by, our subsidiaries. Our general partner has
sole responsibility for conducting our business and managing our operations. Our general partner does not receive any
management fee or other compensation in connection with its management of our business apart from its general
partner interest and incentive distribution rights, but it is reimbursed for direct and indirect expenses incurred on our
behalf. Our executive offices are located at Park Place Corporate Center One, 1000 Commerce Drive, Suite 400,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15275, telephone number (877) 950-7473. Our website address is
www.atlasresourcepartners.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus and you should rely
only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus when making a decision as to
whether or not to invest in our securities.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves risk. Before you decide whether to purchase any of our securities, in addition to
the other information, documents or reports included or incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any
prospectus supplement or other offering materials, you should carefully consider the risk factors in the section entitled
Risk Factors in any prospectus supplement, in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and any Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K filed by us subsequent to such Annual Report on
Form 10-K, as the same may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by our filings under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. For more information, see the section of this
prospectus entitled Where You Can Find More Information. These risks could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition or operating results and could result in a partial or complete loss of your investment.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings
are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC s web site at http://www.sec.gov or at our website at
http://www.atlasresourcepartners.com. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC s public
reference room at 100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for additional
information on the public reference room.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with it. This means that we can disclose
important information to you by referring to these documents. The information incorporated by reference is an
important part of this prospectus. All documents that we subsequently file pursuant to Sections 13, 14 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 prior to the termination of the offering shall be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into the prospectus.

We are incorporating by reference the following documents that we have previously filed with the SEC (other than
any portions of the respective filings that were furnished, pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Current Reports on
Form 8-K or other applicable SEC rules, rather than filed):

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012;

our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2013, June 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2013;

the description of our common units contained in our Form 10, filed on October 17, 2011, and any
subsequent amendment thereto containing an update to such description;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K and 8-K/A filed on January 9, 2013, January 11, 2013, January 17,
2013, January 25, 2013, May 10, 2013, May 31, 2013, June 10, 2013, June 14, 2013, August 2,

2013, August 6, 2013, September 27, 2013, October 9, 2013, October 30, 2013, December 12, 2013 and
December 27, 2013; and
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our Current Reports on Form 8-K/A filed on July 10, 2012 and August 24, 2012.

We will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a prospectus is delivered, a copy of any or
all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in the prospectus but not delivered with the prospectus.
You may request a copy of any document incorporated by reference in this prospectus without charge by writing or
calling us at:

Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC

Park Place Corporate Center One

1000 Commerce Drive, Suite 400

Pittsburgh, PA 15275
(877) 280-2857
Attn: Brian Begley

Except as set forth herein, information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus
and you should not consider information contained on our website as part of this prospectus.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Except as may be otherwise set forth in any prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus, we intend to use
the net proceeds from the sales of securities sold by us for general partnership purposes.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The table below sets forth the ratios of earnings to fixed charges for us for the periods indicated.

Nine months ended Years ended December 31,
September 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(1) o @ 32.49x 20.68x 4) 408.20x
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred
dividends S @ 3) 3) 3) 3)

(1) Ratio of earnings to fixed charges means the ratio of income from continuing operations before income taxes and
cumulative effect of accounting change, net, and fixed charges to fixed charges, where fixed charges are the
interest on indebtedness, amortization of debt expense and estimated interest factor for rentals.

(2) Our earnings were insufficient to cover our fixed charges by $54.0 million for this period.

(3) We did not have any preferred securities outstanding as of these periods.

(4) Our earnings were insufficient to cover our fixed charges by $54.3 million for this period.

(5) Our earnings were insufficient to cover our fixed charges by $61.1 million for this period.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER

We may offer common, preferred and subordinated units representing limited partner interests, various series of debt
securities, or warrants to purchase any of such securities, from time to time in one or more offerings under this
prospectus at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions at the time of the offering. This prospectus
provides you with a general description of the securities that we may offer. In connection with each offering, we will
provide a prospectus supplement that will describe the specific amounts, prices and terms of the securities being
offered, including, to the extent applicable:

designation or classification;

aggregate offering price;

rates and times of payment of dividends;

redemption, conversion or exchange terms;
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conversion or exchange prices or rates and any provisions for changes to or adjustments in the conversion or
exchange prices or rates and in the securities or other property receivable upon conversion or exchange;

ranking;

restrictive covenants;

voting or other rights; and

important federal income tax considerations.
The prospectus supplement also may add, update or change information contained in this prospectus or in documents
we have incorporated by reference.

This prospectus may not be used to consummate a sale of securities unless it is accompanied by a prospectus
supplement.
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DESCRIPTION OF COMMON UNITS
Common Units

The common units are a class of limited partner interests in us. The holders of common units are entitled to participate
in partnership distributions and exercise the rights or privileges available to holders of common units as outlined in

our partnership agreement. For a description of the rights and preferences of holders of common units in partnership
distributions, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy. For a description of the rights and privileges of the holders of
our common units under our partnership agreement, including voting rights, please read Our Partnership Agreement.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Duties. American Stock Transfer serves as registrar and transfer agent for the common units. We pay all fees charged
by the transfer agent for transfers of common units except the following that must be paid by unitholders:

surety bond premiums to replace lost or stolen certificates, taxes and other governmental charges;

special charges for services requested by a common unitholder; and

other similar fees or charges.
There will be no charge to unitholders for disbursements of our cash distributions. We will indemnify the transfer
agent, its agents and each of their stockholders, directors, officers and employees against all claims and losses that
may arise out of acts performed or omitted for its activities in that capacity, except for any liability due to any gross
negligence or intentional misconduct of the indemnified person or entity.

Resignation or Removal. The transfer agent may resign, by notice to us, or be removed by us. The resignation or
removal of the transfer agent will become effective upon our appointment of a successor transfer agent and registrar
and its acceptance of the appointment. If no successor has been appointed and has accepted the appointment within

30 days after notice of the resignation or removal, our general partner may act as the transfer agent and registrar until a
successor is appointed.

Transfer of Common Units
By transfer of common units in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of common units shall be

admitted as a limited partner with respect to the common units transferred when such transfer and admission is
reflected in our books and records. Each transferee:

represents that the transferee has the capacity, power and authority to become bound by our partnership
agreement;
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automatically becomes bound by the terms and conditions of, and is deemed to have executed, our
partnership agreement;

gives the consents and waivers contained in our partnership agreement.
A transferee will become a limited partner of our partnership for the transferred common units automatically upon the
recording of the transfer on our books and records. Our general partner will cause any transfers to be recorded on our
books and records from time to time as necessary to accurately reflect the transfers.

We may, at our discretion, treat the nominee holder of a common unit as the absolute owner. In that case, the

beneficial holder s rights are limited solely to those that it has against the nominee holder as a result of any agreement
between the beneficial owner and the nominee holder.
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Common units are securities and are transferable according to the laws governing transfers of securities.

Until a common unit has been transferred on our books, we and the transfer agent may treat the record holder of the
unit as the absolute owner for all purposes, except as otherwise required by law or stock exchange regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED UNITS

The preferred units will be a separate class of limited partner interest. The rights of holders of preferred units to
participate in distributions to partners will differ from, and may be senior to, the rights of the holders of common
units. The prospectus supplement relating to the preferred units offered will state the number of units offered, the
initial offering price and the market price, the terms of the preference, any ways in which the preferred units will differ
from common units, distribution information and any other relevant information.

DESCRIPTION OF SUBORDINATED UNITS

The subordinated units will be a separate class of limited partner interest. The rights of holders of subordinated units
to participate in distributions to partners will differ from, and may be subordinated to, the rights of the holders of
common units. The prospectus supplement relating to the subordinated units offered will state the number of units
offered, the initial offering price and the market price, the terms of the subordination, any ways in which the
subordinated units will differ from common units, distribution information and any other relevant information.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. or its subsidiary, Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC, may issue debt

securities in one or more series, and Atlas Resource Finance Corporation may be a co-issuer of one or more series of

debt securities. Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LL.C was formed under the laws of the State of Delaware

in 2011, is wholly-owned by Atlas Resources Partners, L.P. Atlas Resource Finance Corporation was incorporated

under the laws of the State of Delaware in 2012, is wholly-owned by Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., has no material

assets or any liabilities other than as a co-issuer of debt securities, and its activities are limited to co-issuing debt

securities and engaging in other activities incidental thereto. When used in this section Description of the Debt

Securities, theterms we, us, our and issuers refer jointly to Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., Atlas Energy Holdings
Operating Company, LL.C and Atlas Resource Finance Corporation.

If we offer senior debt securities, we will issue them under a senior indenture. If we issue subordinated debt securities,
we will issue them under a subordinated indenture. A form of each indenture is filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement of which this prospectus is a part. We have not restated either indenture in its entirety in this description.
You should read the relevant indenture because it, and not this description, controls your rights as holders of the debt
securities.

General

The terms of each series of debt securities will be established by or pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of
our general partner and detailed or determined in the manner provided in a board of directors resolution, an officers
certificate or an indenture. We can issue debt securities that may be in one or more series with the same or various
maturities, at par, at a premium or at a discount. We will set forth in a prospectus supplement, including any pricing
supplement, relating to any series of debt securities being offered the initial offering price, the aggregate principal
amount and the terms of the debt securities, including:
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the title of the debt securities;

whether our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LL.C or Atlas Resource
Finance Corporation, will be co-issuers of the debt securities;
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the price or prices (expressed as a percentage of the aggregate principal amount) at which we will sell the
debt securities;

any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities;

the date or dates on which we will pay the principal on the debt securities;

the rate or rates (which may be fixed or variable) per annum at which the debt securities will bear interest,
the date or dates from which interest will accrue, the date or dates on which interest will commence and be
payable and any regular record date for the interest payable on any interest payment date;

the place or places where the principal of, premium, and interest on the debt securities will be payable;

the terms and conditions upon which we may redeem the debt securities;

any obligation we have to redeem or purchase the debt securities pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous
provisions or at the option of a holder of debt securities; and

the dates on which and the price or prices at which we will repurchase the debt securities at the option of the

holders of debt securities and other detailed terms and provisions of these repurchase obligations.
We may issue debt securities that are exchangeable and/or convertible into our common units or any class or series of
preferred units. The terms, if any, on which the debt securities may be exchanged for and/or converted will be set forth
in the applicable prospectus supplement. Such terms may include provisions for conversion, either mandatory, at the
option of the holder or at our option, in which case the number of shares of common stock, preferred stock or other
securities to be received by the holders of debt securities would be calculated as of a time and in the manner stated in
the prospectus supplement.

We may issue debt securities that provide for an amount less than their stated principal amount to be due and payable
upon declaration of acceleration of their maturity pursuant to the terms of the indenture. We will provide you with
information on the federal income tax considerations and other special considerations applicable to any of these debt
securities in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment of Interest and Exchange

Each debt security will be represented by either one or more global securities registered in the name of The
Depository Trust Company, as Depositary, or a nominee of the Depositary (we will refer to any debt security
represented by a global debt security as a book-entry debt security), or a certificate issued in definitive registered form
(we will refer to any debt security represented by a certificated security as a certificated debt security), as described in
the applicable prospectus supplement.

Certificated Debt Securities
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You may transfer or exchange certificated debt securities at the trustee s office or paying agencies in accordance with
the terms of the indenture. No service charge will be made for any transfer or exchange of certificated debt securities,
but we may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection
with a transfer or exchange.

You may transfer certificated debt securities and the right to receive the principal of, premium and interest on
certificated debt securities only by surrendering the old certificate representing those certificated debt securities and
either we or the trustee will reissue the old certificate to the new holder or we or the trustee will issue a new certificate
to the new holder.
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Book-Entry Debt Securities

We may issue the debt securities of a series in the form of one or more book-entry debt securities that would be
deposited with a depositary or its nominee identified in the prospectus supplement. We may issue book-entry debt
securities in either temporary or permanent form. We will describe in the prospectus supplement the terms of any
depositary arrangement and the rights and limitations of owners of beneficial interests in any book-entry debt security.

Provisions Relating only to the Senior Debt Securities

The senior debt securities will rank equally in right of payment with all of our other senior and unsubordinated debt.
The senior debt securities will be effectively subordinated, however, to all of our secured debt to the extent of the
value of the collateral for that debt. We will disclose the amount of our secured debt in the prospectus supplement.

Provisions Relating only to the Subordinated Debt Securities

Subordinated Debt Securities Subordinated to Senior Indebtedness. The subordinated debt securities will rank junior

in right of payment to all of our Senior Indebtedness. Senior Indebtedness will be defined in a supplemental indenture
or authorizing resolutions respecting any issuance of a series of subordinated debt securities, and the definition will be
set forth in the prospectus supplement.

Payment Blockages. The subordinated indenture will provide that no payment of principal, interest and any premium
on the subordinated debt securities may be made in the event:

we or our property is involved in any voluntary or involuntary liquidation or bankruptcy;

we fail to pay the principal, interest, any premium or any other amounts on any Senior Indebtedness within
any applicable grace period or the maturity of such Senior Indebtedness is accelerated following any other
default, subject to certain limited exceptions set forth in the subordinated indenture; or

any other default on any Senior Indebtedness occurs that permits immediate acceleration of its

maturity, in which case a payment blockage on the subordinated debt securities will be imposed.
No Limitation on Amount of Senior Debt. The subordinated indenture will not limit the amount of Senior Indebtedness
that we may incur, unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement.

DESCRIPTION OF GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES

This summary description is not meant to be a complete description of the guarantees of debt securities that we may
offer. At the time of an offering and sale of debt securities, this prospectus together with the accompanying prospectus
supplement will contain the material terms of the guarantees of the debt securities being offered.

If specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, certain of our subsidiaries may guarantee the debt securities.

Guarantees may be secured or unsecured and senior or subordinated. The particular terms of guarantees of a particular
issue of debt securities will be described in the related prospectus supplement.
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We may issue warrants to purchase debt securities, common units, preferred units, subordinated units or other
securities or any combination of the foregoing. We may issue warrants independently or together with other securities.
Warrants sold with other securities may be attached to or separate from the other securities. We will issue warrants
under one or more warrant agreements between us and a warrant agent that we will name in the prospectus
supplement or directly between us and the warrant holder.
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The prospectus supplement relating to any warrants that we may offer will include specific terms relating to the
offering. We will file the form of any warrant agreement with the SEC, and you should read the warrant agreement for
provisions that may be important to you. The prospectus supplement will include some or all of the following terms:

the title of the warrants;

the aggregate number of warrants offered;

the designation, number and terms of the debt securities, common units, preferred units, subordinated units
or other securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants, and procedures by which those numbers may
be adjusted;

the exercise price of the warrants;

the dates or periods during which the warrants are exercisable;

the designation and terms of any securities with which the warrants are issued;

if the warrants are issued as a unit with another security, the date, if any, on and after which the
warrants and the other security will be separately transferable;

if the exercise price is not payable in U.S. dollars, the foreign currency, currency unit or composite currency
in which the exercise price is denominated;

any minimum or maximum amount of warrants that may be exercised at any one time;

any terms, procedures and limitations relating to the transferability, exchange, exercise, amendment or
termination of the warrants; and

any adjustments to the terms of the warrants resulting from the occurrence of certain events or from the entry
into or consummation by us of certain transactions.
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OUR PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

The following is a summary of the material provisions of our partnership agreement. We will provide holders of our
securities with a copy of our partnership agreement upon request at no charge.

We summarize the following provisions of our partnership agreement elsewhere in this prospectus:

with regard to distributions of available cash, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy;

with regard to the transfer of common units, please read Description of Common Units Transfer of Common
Units; and

with regard to allocations of taxable income and taxable loss, please read Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax
Matters.
Organization and Duration

Our partnership was formed in October 2011 and will have a perpetual existence unless terminated pursuant to the
terms of our partnership agreement.

Purpose

Our purpose under the partnership agreement is to engage in any business activity that is approved by our general
partner and that lawfully may be conducted by a limited partnership organized under Delaware law; provided, that our
general partner will not cause us to engage in any business activity that the general partner determines would cause us
to be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.

Although our general partner has the ability to cause us and our subsidiaries to engage in activities other than the
production of natural gas and oil, our general partner has no current plans to do so and may decline to do so free of
any duty or obligation whatsoever to us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best
interests of us or the limited partners. Our general partner is authorized in general to perform all acts it determines to
be necessary or appropriate to carry out our purposes and to conduct our business.

Cash Distributions
Our partnership agreement specifies the manner in which we will make cash distributions to holders of our common
units and other partnership securities as well as to our general partner in respect of its incentive distribution rights. For

a description of these cash distribution provisions, please read Our Cash Distribution Policy.

Capital Contributions; No Dilution of Class A Units; One-to-One Ratio Between Class A Units and Common
Units

Unitholders are not obligated to make additional capital contributions, except as described below under  Limited
Liability.
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The class A units are entitled to 2% of all distributions that we make prior to our liquidation. The 2% sharing ratio of
the class A units will not be reduced if we issue additional equity securities in the future. Because the 2% sharing ratio
will not be reduced if we issue additional equity securities, and in order to ensure that each class A unit represents the
same percentage economic interest in us as one common unit, if we issue additional common units, we will also issue
to our general partner, for no additional consideration and without any requirement to make a capital contribution, an
additional number of class A units so that the total number of outstanding class A units after such issuance equals 2%
of the sum of the total number of common units and common unit equivalents and class A units after such issuance.
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Voting Rights

The following is a summary of the unitholder vote required for the matters specified below. Matters requiring the

approval of a unit majority require the approval of a majority of the common units. Except as set forth below, the class

B and class C preferred units have no voting rights.

In voting their common units, Atlas Energy and its affiliates will have no duty or obligation whatsoever to us or the
limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of us or the limited partners. The
holders of a majority of the common units represented in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of
such common unitholders, unless any such action requires approval by holders of a greater percentage of such units in
which case the quorum shall be such greater percentage.

The following is a summary of the vote requirements specified for certain matters under our partnership agreement:

Issuance of additional partnership
securities

Amendment of our partnership
agreement

Merger of our partnership or the
sale of all or substantially all of our
assets

Dissolution of our partnership

Continuation of our partnership upon

dissolution

Withdrawal of our general partner

Removal of our general partner

Transfer of the general partner
interest
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No approval right. See  Issuance of Additional Securities.

Certain amendments may be made by our general partner without the
approval of the common unitholders. Other amendments generally require
the approval of a unit majority or, if any amendment could adversely affect
their rights the approval by a majority of the class B or class C preferred
units. See  Amendment of the Partnership Agreement.

Unit majority in certain circumstances. See ~ Merger, Consolidation,
Conversion, Sale or Other Disposition of Our Assets.

Unit majority and the approval by a majority of the class B and class C
preferred units. See  Termination and Dissolution.
Unit majority. See  Termination and Dissolution.

Prior to March 13, 2022, under most circumstances, the approval of a
majority of the common units, excluding common units held by our general
partner and its affiliates, is required for the withdrawal of our general partner
in a manner that would cause a dissolution of our partnership. See
Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner.
Not less than two-thirds of the outstanding common units, including
common units held by our general partner and its affiliates. See ~ Withdrawal
or Removal of Our General Partner.
Our general partner may transfer without a vote of our common unitholders
all, but not less than all, of its general partner interest in us to an affiliate or
another person (other than an individual) in connection with its merger or
consolidation with or into, or sale of all, or substantially all, of its assets, to
such person. The approval of a majority of the common units, excluding
common units held by our general partner and its affiliates, is required in
other circumstances for a transfer of the general partner interest to a
third-party prior to the tenth anniversary of the date of the distribution. See
Transfer of General Partner Interest.
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Transfer of ownership interests in No approval required at any time. See ~ Transfer of Ownership Interests in the
our general partner General Partner.
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The holder of our class A units has all voting rights applicable to the general partner.
Applicable Law; Forum, Venue and Jurisdiction

Our partnership agreement is governed by Delaware law. Our partnership agreement requires that, unless we (through
the approval of our general partner) consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery
of the State of Delaware shall be the sole and exclusive forum for any claims, suits, actions or proceedings:

arising out of or relating in any way to the partnership agreement (including any claims, suits or actions to
interpret, apply or enforce the provisions of the partnership agreement or the duties, obligations or liabilities
among limited partners or of limited partners to us, or the rights or powers of, or restrictions on, the limited
partners or us);

brought in a derivative manner on our behalf;

asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer or other employee of us or our
general partner, or owed by our general partner, to us or the limited partners;

asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware Act; or

asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine;
regardless of whether such claims, suits, actions or proceedings sound in contract, tort, fraud or otherwise, are based
on common law, statutory, equitable, legal or other grounds, or are derivative or direct claims. However, if and only if
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware dismisses any such claims, suits, actions or proceedings for lack of
subject matter jurisdiction, such claims, suits, actions or proceedings may be brought in another state or federal court
sitting in the State of Delaware. By acquiring or purchasing a common unit, a limited partner is irrevocably consenting
to these limitations and provisions regarding claims, suits, actions or proceedings and submitting to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware in connection with any such claims, suits, actions or
proceedings.

Limited Liability

Assuming that a limited partner does not participate in the control of our business within the meaning of the Delaware
Act and otherwise acts in conformity with the provisions of our partnership agreement, the limited partner s liability
under the Delaware Act will be limited, subject to possible exceptions, to the amount of capital it is obligated to

contribute to us for its common units plus its share of any undistributed profits and assets. If it were determined,
however, that the right, or exercise of the right, by the limited partners as a group:

to remove or replace our general partner,

Table of Contents 31



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

to approve some amendments to our partnership agreement, or

to take other action under our partnership agreement
constituted participation in the control of our business for purposes of the Delaware Act, then our limited partners
could be held personally liable for our obligations under Delaware law to the same extent as our general partner. This
liability would extend to persons who transact business with us and reasonably believe that the limited partner is a
general partner. Neither our partnership agreement nor the Delaware Act specifically provides for legal recourse
against our general partner if a limited partner were to lose limited liability through any fault of our general partner.
While this does not mean that a limited partner could not seek legal recourse, we know of no precedent for this type of
a claim in Delaware case law.

Under the Delaware Act, a limited partnership cannot make a distribution to a partner if, after the distribution, all
liabilities of the limited partnership, other than liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests and
liabilities for which the recourse of creditors is limited to specific property of the

11
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partnership, would exceed the fair value of the assets of the limited partnership. For the purpose of determining the
fair value of the assets of a limited partnership, the Delaware Act provides that the fair value of property subject to
liability for which recourse of creditors is limited shall be included in the assets of the limited partnership only to the
extent that the fair value of that property exceeds the nonrecourse liability. Moreover, under the Delaware Act, a
limited partnership may also not make a distribution to a partner upon the winding up of the limited partnership before
liabilities of the limited partnership to creditors have been satisfied by payment or the making of reasonable provision
for payment thereof. The Delaware Act provides that a limited partner who receives a distribution and knew at the
time of the distribution that the distribution was in violation of the Delaware Act will be liable to the limited
partnership for the amount of the distribution for three years. Under the Delaware Act, an assignee who becomes a
limited partner is liable for the obligations of his assignor to make contributions to the partnership, except such person
is not obligated for liabilities unknown to him at the time he became a limited partner and that could not be
ascertained from the partnership agreement.

We currently conduct business in Alabama, Arkansas, Colorado, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Michigan, Nebraska,
New Mexico, New York, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, West Virginia and Wyoming.
Limitations on the liability of limited partners for the obligations of a limited partnership have not been clearly
established in many jurisdictions. If it were determined that we were conducting business in any state without
compliance with the applicable limited partnership statute, or that the right or exercise of the right by the limited
partners as a group to remove or replace our general partner, to approve some amendments to our partnership
agreement or to take other action under our partnership agreement constituted participation in the control of our
business for purposes of the statutes of any relevant jurisdiction, then the limited partners could be held personally
liable for our obligations under the law of that jurisdiction to the same extent as our general partner under the
circumstances. We will operate in a manner that our general partner considers reasonable and necessary or appropriate
to preserve the limited liability of the limited partners.

Issuance of Additional Securities

Our partnership agreement authorizes us to issue an unlimited number of additional partnership securities for the
consideration and on the terms and conditions determined by our general partner without the approval of our
unitholders.

It is possible that we will fund acquisitions through the issuance of additional common units or other partnership
securities. Holders of any additional common units we issue will be entitled to share equally with the then-existing
holders of common units in our distributions of available cash. In addition, the issuance of additional common units or
other partnership securities may dilute the value of the interests of the then-existing holders of common units in our
net assets. The holders of common units will not have preemptive rights to acquire additional common units or other
partnership securities.

In accordance with Delaware law and the provisions of our partnership agreement, we may also issue additional
partnership securities that, as determined by our general partner, may have special voting rights to which the common
units are not entitled. In addition, our partnership agreement does not prohibit the issuance by our subsidiaries of
equity securities, which may effectively rank senior to our common units.

The class A units will be entitled to 2% of all distributions that we make prior to our liquidation. The 2% sharing ratio
of the class A units will not be reduced if we issue additional equity securities in the future. Because the 2% sharing
ratio will not be reduced if we issue additional equity securities, and in order to ensure that each class A unit
represents the same percentage economic interest in us as one common unit, if we issue additional common units or
units convertible into common units, we will also issue to our general partner, for no additional consideration and
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without any requirement to make a capital contribution, an additional number of class A units so that the total number
of outstanding class A units after such issuance equals 2% of the sum of the total number of common units, common
unit equivalents and class A units after such issuance.
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In addition to the right to receive additional class A units, our general partner will have a limited preemptive right in
connection with any issuance by us of additional partnership securities. The right, which the general partner may
assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates, will entitle the general partner to purchase additional units of any
securities being sold to third parties, on the same terms as such third parties, in an amount up to the amount necessary
to maintain the aggregate ownership percentage of the general partner and its affiliates at the same level before and
after such issuance.

Amendment of the Partnership Agreement

General. Amendments to our partnership agreement may be proposed only by our general partner. However, our
general partner will have no duty or obligation to propose any amendment and may decline to do so free of any duty

or obligation whatsoever to us or our limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith or in the best interests of
us or our limited partners. To adopt a proposed amendment, other than the amendments discussed under =~ Amendment
of the Partnership Agreement No Unitholder Approval , our general partner is required to seek written approval of the
holders of the number of units required to approve the amendment or call a meeting of the limited partners to consider
and vote upon the proposed amendment.

Prohibited Amendments. No amendment may be made that would:

enlarge the obligations of any limited partner without its consent, unless approved by at least a majority of
the type or class of limited partner interests so affected; or

enlarge the obligations of, restrict in any way any action by or rights of or reduce in any way the amounts
distributable, reimbursable or otherwise payable by us to our general partner or any of its affiliates without
the consent of our general partner, which consent may be given or withheld at its option.
The provision of our partnership agreement preventing the amendments having the effects described in any of the
clauses above can be amended upon the approval of the holders of at least 90% of the outstanding units voting
together as a single class.

No Unitholder Approval. Our general partner may generally make amendments to our partnership agreement without
the approval of any limited partner to reflect:

a change in our name, the location of our principal place of business, our registered agent or registered
office;

the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of partners in accordance with our partnership agreement;

a change that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for us to qualify us or continue
our qualification as a limited partnership or other entity in which the limited partners have limited liability
under the laws of any state or to ensure that we will not be taxed as a corporation or otherwise taxed as an

entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes;
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a change in our fiscal year or taxable year and related changes;

an amendment that is necessary, in the opinion of our counsel, to prevent us or our general partner, or its
directors, officers, agents or trustees, from in any manner being subject to the provisions of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or plan asset regulations adopted under the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, whether or not substantially similar to plan
asset regulations currently applied or proposed;

an amendment that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for the authorization or

issuance of additional partnership securities or options, warrants, rights or appreciation rights relating to any

partnership securities;

13
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an amendment expressly permitted in our partnership agreement to be made by our general partner acting
alone;

any amendment effected, necessitated or contemplated by a merger agreement or plan of conversion that has
been approved under the terms of our partnership agreement;

any amendment that our general partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for the formation by us of,
or our investment in, any corporation, partnership or other entity, as otherwise permitted by our partnership
agreement;

any amendment necessary to require our limited partners to provide a statement, certification or other
evidence to us regarding whether such limited partner is subject to U.S. federal income taxation on the
income generated by us or regarding such limited partner s nationality or citizenship and to provide for the
ability of our general partner to redeem the units of any limited partner who fails to provide such statement,
certification or other evidence;

conversions into, mergers with or conveyances to another limited liability entity that is newly formed and
has no assets, liabilities or operations at the time of the conversion, merger or conveyance other than those it
receives by way of the conversion, merger or conveyance; and

any other amendment substantially similar to any of the matters described above.
In addition, our general partner may amend our partnership agreement, without the approval of the unitholders, if our
general partner determines that those amendments:

do not adversely affect the limited partners in any material respect;

are necessary or appropriate to satisfy any requirements, conditions or guidelines contained in any opinion,
directive, order, ruling or regulation of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or contained in any
federal or state statute;

are necessary or appropriate to facilitate the trading of limited partner interests or to comply with any rule,
regulation, guideline or requirement of any securities exchange or interdealer quotation system on which the
limited partner interests are or will be listed for trading;

are necessary or appropriate for any action taken by our general partner relating to splits or combinations of
units or to implement the tax-related provisions of our partnership agreement; or

Table of Contents 37



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

are required to effect the intent expressed in this registration statement or the intent of the provisions of our

partnership agreement or are otherwise contemplated by our partnership agreement.
Unitholder Approval. For amendments of the type not requiring unitholder approval, our general partner will not be
required to obtain an opinion of counsel that an amendment will not result in a loss of limited liability to our limited
partners or result in our being treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for
federal income tax purposes. No other amendments to our partnership agreement will become effective without the
approval of holders of at least 90% of the outstanding common units if our general partner determines that such
amendment will affect the limited liability of any limited partner under Delaware law.

In addition to the above restrictions, any amendment that would have a material adverse effect on the rights or
preferences of any type or class of outstanding units in relation to other classes of units will require the approval of at
least a majority of the type or class of units so affected. Any amendment that reduces the voting percentage required to
take any action other than to remove the general partner or call a meeting of unitholders is required to be approved by
the affirmative vote of limited partners whose aggregate outstanding common units constitute not less than the voting
requirement sought to be reduced. Any amendment that would increase the percentage of common units required to
remove the general partner or call a meeting of unitholders must be approved by the affirmative vote of limited
partners whose aggregate outstanding common units constitute not less than the percentage sought to be increased.
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Merger, Consolidation, Conversion, Sale or Other Disposition of Our Assets

A merger, consolidation or conversion of us requires the prior consent of our general partner. However, our general
partner will have no duty or obligation to consent to any merger, consolidation or conversion and may decline to do so
free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to us or the limited partners, including any duty to act in good faith
or any other standard imposed by our partnership agreement, the Delaware Act or applicable law.

In addition, the partnership agreement generally prohibits our general partner, without the prior approval by a unit
majority, from causing us to sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions. Our general partner may, however, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or
grant a security interest in all or substantially all of our assets without the approval of a unit majority. Our general
partner may also sell all or substantially all of our assets under a foreclosure or other realization upon those
encumbrances without that approval. Finally, our general partner may consummate any merger, consolidation or
conversion without the prior approval of our unitholders if we are the surviving entity in the transaction, our general
partner has received an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters, the transaction will not result in
an amendment to the partnership agreement (other than an amendment that the general partner could adopt without the
consent of other partners), each of our units will be an identical unit of our partnership following the transaction and
the number of partnership securities to be issued does not exceed 20% of our outstanding partnership securities
immediately prior to the transaction.

If the conditions specified in the partnership agreement are satisfied, our general partner may convert us or any of our
subsidiaries into a new limited liability entity or merge us or any of our subsidiaries into, or convey all of our assets
to, a newly formed entity if the purpose of that conversion, merger or conveyance is to effect a change in our legal
form into another limited liability entity, our general partner has received an opinion of counsel regarding limited
liability and tax matters and the general partner determines that the governing instruments of the new entity provide
the limited partners and the general partner with substantially the same rights and obligations as contained in the
partnership agreement. The unitholders are not entitled to dissenters rights of appraisal under the partnership
agreement or applicable Delaware law in the event of a conversion, merger or consolidation, a sale of substantially all
of our assets or any other similar transaction or event.

Termination and Dissolution

We will continue as a limited partnership until dissolved under our partnership agreement. We will dissolve upon:

the election of our general partner to dissolve us, if approved by a unit majority;

the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of our partnership;

there being no limited partners, unless we are continued without dissolution in accordance with applicable
Delaware law; or

the withdrawal or removal of our general partner or any other event that results in its ceasing to be our
general partner other than by reason of a transfer of its general partner interest in us in accordance with our
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partnership agreement or withdrawal or removal following approval and admission of a successor.
Upon a dissolution under the last item above, the holders of a unit majority may also elect, within specific time
limitations, to continue our business on the same terms and conditions described in our partnership agreement by

appointing as a successor general partner an entity approved by the holders of a unit majority subject to our receipt of
an opinion of counsel to the effect that:

the action would not result in the loss of limited liability under Delaware law of any limited partner; and
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neither our partnership nor any of our subsidiaries would be taxed as a corporation or otherwise be taxable as
an entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes upon the exercise of that right to continue (to the extent not
already so treated or taxed).

Liquidation and Distribution of Proceeds

Upon our dissolution, unless we are continued as a new limited partnership, the liquidator authorized to wind up our
affairs will, acting with all of the powers of our general partner that are necessary or appropriate liquidate our assets
and apply the proceeds of the liquidation as described in Our Cash Distribution Policy. The liquidator may defer
liquidation or distribution of our assets for a reasonable period of time or distribute assets to partners in kind if it
determines that a sale would be impractical or would cause undue loss to our partners.

Withdrawal or Removal of Our General Partner

Except as described below, our general partner has agreed not to withdraw voluntarily as our general partner prior to
the tenth anniversary of the date of the distribution, without obtaining the approval of the holders of at least a majority
of our outstanding common units, excluding common units held by our general partner and its affiliates, and
furnishing an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. On or after the tenth anniversary of the
date of the distribution, our general partner may withdraw as our general partner without first obtaining approval from
the unitholders by giving 90 days written notice. Notwithstanding the information above, our general partner may
withdraw as our general partner without unitholder approval upon 90 days notice to our limited partners if at least
50% of the outstanding common units are held or controlled by one person and its affiliates other than our general
partner and its affiliates. In addition, our partnership agreement permits our general partner in some instances to sell or
otherwise transfer all of its general partner interest in us without the approval of the unitholders. See = Transfer of
General Partner Interest.

If our general partner withdraws, other than as a result of a transfer of all or a part of its general partner interest in us,
the holders of a unit majority may elect a successor to the withdrawing general partner. If a successor is not elected
prior to the effective date of the withdrawal, or is elected but an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax
matters cannot be obtained, we will be dissolved and liquidated, unless within a specified period of time after that
withdrawal, the holders of a unit majority elect to continue the partnership by appointing a successor general partner.
See  Termination and Dissolution.

Our general partner may not be removed unless that removal is approved by the vote of the holders of at least 66 %/;%
of the outstanding units, including units held by our general partner and its affiliates, and we receive an opinion of
counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. Any removal of our general partner is also subject to the approval
of a successor general partner by the vote of the holders of a unit majority, including units held by our general partner
and its affiliates. The ownership of more than 33 1/;% of our outstanding common units by our general partner and its
affiliates would give them the practical ability to prevent our general partner s removal.

In the event of removal of our general partner under circumstances where cause exists or a withdrawal of our general
partner that violates our partnership agreement, a successor general partner will have the option to purchase the class
A units and incentive distribution rights of the departing general partner for a cash payment equal to the fair market
value of those interests. Under all other circumstances where our general partner withdraws or is removed, the
departing general partner will have the option to require the successor general partner to purchase those interests for
their fair market value. In each case, fair market value will be determined by agreement between the departing general
partner and the successor general partner. If they cannot reach an agreement, an independent expert selected by the
departing general partner and the successor general partner will determine the fair market value. If the departing
general partner and the successor general partner cannot agree on an expert, then an expert chosen by agreement of the
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If the purchase option is not exercised by either the departing general partner or the successor general partner, the
class A units and incentive distribution rights will automatically convert into common units equal to the fair market
value of those interests as determined by an investment banking firm or other independent expert selected in the
manner described in the preceding paragraph.

In addition, we will be required to reimburse the departing general partner for all amounts due the departing general
partner, including, without limitation, all employee-related liabilities, including severance liabilities, incurred for the
termination of any employees employed by the departing general partner or its affiliates for our benefit.

Transfer of General Partner Interest

Except for the transfer by our general partner of all, but not less than all, of its class A units to:

an affiliate of our general partner (other than an individual); or

another entity as part of the merger or consolidation of our general partner with or into another entity or the
transfer by our general partner of all or substantially all of its assets to another entity,
our general partner may not transfer all or any part of its general partner interest to another person, prior to the tenth
anniversary of the date of the distribution, without the approval of the holders of at least a majority of our outstanding
common units, excluding common units held by our general partner and its affiliates. As a condition of this transfer,
the transferee must assume, among other things, the rights and duties of our general partner, agree to be bound by the
provisions of our partnership agreement and furnish an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters.

Our general partner and its affiliates may at any time transfer common units to one or more persons without unitholder
approval.

Transfer of Ownership Interests in the General Partner

The members of our general partner may sell or transfer all or part of their interest in our general partner without the
approval of the unitholders.

Transfer of Incentive Distribution Rights

Our general partner or any other holder of incentive distribution rights may transfer any or all of its incentive
distribution rights without unitholder approval.

Change of Management Provisions

Our partnership agreement contains specific provisions that are intended to discourage a person or group from
attempting to remove Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC as our general partner or otherwise change the management of
our general partner. If any person or group other than our general partner and its affiliates acquires beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of our common units, that person or group will lose voting rights on all of its units and the
common units will not be considered outstanding for the purposes of noticing meetings, determining the presence of a
quorum, calculating required votes and other similar matters. This loss of voting rights does not apply to any person or
group that acquires the common units from our general partner or its affiliates, any transferees of that person or group
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partner notifies such person or group in writing, in advance, that this limitation will not apply.
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Limited Call Right

If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than two-thirds of the outstanding common units, our
general partner will have the right, which it may assign to any of its affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not less than
all, of the common units held by unaffiliated persons as of a record date selected by our general partner on at least 10
but not more than 60 days notice.

The purchase price is the greater of:

the highest cash price paid by our general partner or any of its affiliates for any limited partner interests of
the class purchased within the 90 days preceding the date on which our general partner first mails notice of
its election to purchase those limited partner interests; and

the average of the daily closing prices of the limited partner interests of such class over the 20 trading days
preceding the date three days before the date the notice is mailed.
As aresult of our general partner s right to purchase outstanding limited partner interests, a holder of limited partner
interests may have his limited partner interests purchased at a price that may be lower than market prices at various
times prior to such purchase or lower than a unitholder may anticipate the market price to be in the future. The federal
income tax consequences to a unitholder of the exercise of this call right are the same as a sale by that unitholder of
his common units in the market.

Meetings; Voting

Except as described above under  Change of Management Provisions, unitholders who are record holders of common
units on a record date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, meetings of our limited partners and to act upon

matters for which approvals may be solicited. Our general partner does not anticipate that any meeting of common
unitholders will be called in the foreseeable future.

Any action that is required or permitted to be taken by the common unitholders may be taken either at a meeting of the
common unitholders or without a meeting if consents in writing describing the action so taken are signed by holders of
the number of common units necessary to authorize or take that action at a meeting. Meetings of the common
unitholders may be called by our general partner or by holders of at least 20% of the outstanding common units of the
class for which a meeting is proposed. Unitholders may vote either in person or by proxy at meetings. The holders of a
majority of the outstanding common units of the class or classes for which a meeting has been called, represented in
person or by proxy, will constitute a quorum unless any action by the unitholders requires approval by holders of a
greater percentage of the common units, in which case the quorum will be the greater percentage.

Except as described above under  Change of Management Provisions, each record holder will have a vote in
accordance with his percentage interest, although additional limited partner interests having different voting rights

could be issued. See  Issuance of Additional Securities. Common units held in nominee or street name account will be
voted by the broker or other nominee in accordance with the instruction of the beneficial owner.

Any notice, demand, request report, or proxy material required or permitted to be given or made to record holders of
common units under our partnership agreement will be delivered to the record holder by us or by the transfer agent.
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Status as Limited Partner
By transfer of any common units in accordance with our partnership agreement, each transferee of common units shall
be admitted as a limited partner with respect to the common units transferred when such transfer and admission is

reflected in our books and records. Except as described above under ~ Limited Liability, the common units will be fully
paid, and unitholders will not be required to make additional contributions.
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Non-Citizen Assignees; Redemption

If we are or become subject to federal, state or local laws or regulations that, in the reasonable determination of our
general partner, create a substantial risk of cancellation or forfeiture of any property that we have an interest in
because of the nationality, citizenship or other related status of any limited partner, we may redeem the units held by
the limited partner at their current market price. In order to avoid any cancellation or forfeiture, our general partner
may require any limited partner or transferee to furnish information about his nationality, citizenship or related status.
If a limited partner fails to furnish this information within 30 days after a request for the information, or our general
partner determines after receipt of the information that the limited partner is not an eligible citizen, then the limited
partner may be treated as a non-citizen assignee. A non-citizen assignee does not have the right to direct the voting of
his units and may not receive distributions in kind upon our liquidation.

In addition, in such circumstance, we will have the right to acquire all (but not less than all) of the units held by such
limited partner or non-citizen assignee. The purchase price for such units will be the average of the daily closing
prices per unit for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date set for such purchase, and such
purchase price will be paid (in the sole discretion of our general partner) either in cash or by delivery of a promissory
note. Any such promissory note will bear interest at the rate of 5% annually and will be payable in three equal annual
installments of principal and accrued interest, commencing one year after the purchase date.

Non-Taxpaying Holders; Redemption

If our general partner, with the advice of counsel, determines that our not being treated as an association taxable as a
corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, coupled with the tax status (or lack
of proof thereof) of one or more of our limited partners, has, or is reasonably likely to have, a material adverse effect
on the maximum applicable rate that can be charged to customers by our subsidiaries, then our general partner may
adopt such amendments to our partnership agreement as it determines necessary or advisable to:

obtain proof of the U.S. federal income tax status of our limited partners (and their owners, to the extent
relevant); and

permit us to redeem the units at their current market price held by any person whose tax status has or is
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate our assets or generate revenues
from our assets or who fails to comply with the procedures instituted by our general partner to obtain proof
of the U.S. federal income tax status.
A non-taxpaying assignee does not have the right to direct the voting of his units and may not receive distributions
in-kind upon our liquidation.

Indemnification
Under our partnership agreement, in most circumstances, we will indemnify the following persons, by reason of their

status as such, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against all losses, claims or damages arising out of or
incurred in connection with our business:
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our general partner;

any departing general partner;

any person who is or was an affiliate of our general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was a manager, managing member, officer, director, employee, agent, fiduciary or
trustee of our partnership, our subsidiaries, our general partner, any departing general partner or any affiliate
of our partnership, our subsidiaries, our general partner, any departing general partner;
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any person who is or was serving at the request of a general partner or any departing general partner or any
affiliate of a general partner or any departing general partner as a manager, managing member officer,
director, employee, agent, fiduciary or trustee of another person; and

any person whom the general partner designates as an indemnitee for purposes of our partnership agreement.
Our indemnification obligation arises only if the indemnified person did not act in bad faith or engage in fraud, willful
misconduct or, in the case of a criminal matter, knowledge of the indemnified person s unlawful conduct.

Any indemnification under these provisions will be only out of our assets. Our general partner will not be personally
liable for the indemnification obligations and will not have any obligation to contribute or loan funds to us in
connection with it. Our partnership agreement permits us to purchase insurance against liabilities asserted against and
expenses incurred by persons for our activities, regardless of whether we would have the power to indemnify the
person against liabilities under the partnership agreement.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Our partnership agreement requires us to reimburse our general partner for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or
payments it makes on our behalf and all other expenses allocable to us or otherwise incurred by our general partner in
connection with operating our business. These expenses include salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other
amounts paid to persons who perform services for us or on our behalf, and expenses allocated to our general partner
by its affiliates. Our general partner is entitled to determine the expenses that are allocable to us, and our partnership
agreement does not place any aggregate limit on the amount of such reimbursements.

Books and Reports

Our general partner is required to keep appropriate books of our business at our principal offices. The books will be
maintained for both tax and financial reporting purposes on an accrual basis. For financial and tax reporting purposes,
our fiscal year end is December 31.

We will furnish or make available to record holders of common units, within 120 days after the close of each fiscal
year, an annual report containing audited financial statements and a report on those financial statements by our
independent registered public accounting firm. Except for our fourth quarter, we also furnish or make available
summary financial information within 90 days after the close of each quarter. We will be deemed to have made any
such report available if we file such report with the SEC on EDGAR or make the report available on a publicly
available website that we maintain.

We will furnish each record holder of a unit with information reasonably required for tax reporting purposes within 90
days after the close of each calendar year. This information is expected to be furnished in summary form so that some
complex calculations normally required of partners can be avoided. Our ability to furnish this summary information to
our unitholders will depend on the cooperation of our unitholders in supplying us with specific information. Every
unitholder will receive information to assist it in determining its federal and state tax liability and filing its federal and
state income tax returns, regardless of whether it supplies us with information.

Right to Inspect Our Books and Records

Our partnership agreement provides that a limited partner can, for a purpose reasonably related to its interest as a
limited partner, upon reasonable written demand stating the purpose of such demand and at his own expense, obtain:
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a current list of the name and last known address of each partner;
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a copy of our tax returns;

information as to the amount of cash, and a description and statement of the agreed value of any other
property or services, contributed or to be contributed by each partner and the date on which each became a
partner,

copies of our partnership agreement, the certificate of limited partnership and related amendments and
powers of attorney under which they have been executed; and

information regarding the status of our business and financial condition.
Our general partner may, and intends to, keep confidential from the limited partners trade secrets or other information
the disclosure of which our general partner believes is not in our best interests or which we are required by law or by
agreements with third parties to keep confidential.

Registration Rights

In our partnership agreement, we have agreed to register for resale under the Securities Act and applicable state
securities laws any common units or other partnership securities proposed to be sold by our general partner, Atlas
Energy or any of their respective affiliates if an exemption from the registration requirements is not otherwise
available. There is no limit on the number of times that we may be required to file registration statements pursuant to
this obligation. We have also agreed to include any securities held by our general partner, Atlas Energy or any of their
respective affiliates in any registration statement that we file to offer securities for cash, other than an offering relating
solely to an employee benefit plan. These registration rights continue for two years following any withdrawal or
removal of our general partner. We are obligated to pay all expenses incidental to the registration, excluding
underwriting discounts and commissions.
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OUR CASH DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Set forth below is a summary of the significant provisions of our partnership agreement that relate to our cash
distributions.

General

The amount of distributions paid under our cash distribution policy and the decision to make any distribution will be
determined by our general partner in its discretion, taking into account the terms of our partnership agreement. Our
cash distribution policy reflects a basic judgment, given our current asset base, that our unitholders will be better
served by the distribution of our available cash (which is defined in our partnership agreement and is net of any
expenses and reserves established by our general partner) than by our retaining such available cash. It is the current
policy of our general partner that we should increase our level of cash distributions per unit only when, in its
judgment, it believes that:

we have sufficient reserves and liquidity for the proper conduct of our business; and

we can maintain such an increased distribution level for a sustained period.
The amount of available cash, which is defined in our partnership agreement, will be determined by our general
partner after the completion of the distribution and will be based upon recommendations from our management.
Because we believe that we will generally finance any expansion capital expenditures and investment capital
expenditures from external financing sources, we believe that our investors are best served by our distributing all of
our available cash. In addition, because we are not subject to entity-level U.S. federal income tax as a partnership, we
have more cash to distribute to you than would be the case if we were subject to U.S. federal income tax. Our cash
distribution policy is consistent with the terms of our partnership agreement, which requires that we distribute all of
our available cash.

Minimum Quarterly Distributions

We currently intend to distribute to the holders of our common units, class B preferred units and class A units at least
a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.40 per unit, or $1.60 per unit per year, and to holders of our class C preferred
units $0.51 per unit per quarter, or $2.04 per unit per year, to the extent we have sufficient available cash after we
establish appropriate reserves and pay fees and expenses, including payments to our general partner in reimbursement
of costs and expenses it incurs on our behalf. Our minimum quarterly distribution is intended to reflect the level of
cash that we expect to be available for distribution per common unit, preferred units and class A unit each quarter.
There is no guarantee that we will pay the minimum quarterly distribution, or any distribution, in any quarter, and we
will be prohibited from making any distributions to unitholders if it would cause an event of default or an event of
default is existing under our credit agreement.

It is the current policy of our general partner that we should raise our quarterly cash distribution only when our
general partner believes that:

we have sufficient reserves and liquidity for the proper conduct of our business; and
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we can maintain such an increased distribution level for a sustained period.
While this is our current policy, our general partner may alter the policy in the future when and if it determines such
alteration to be appropriate.
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Quarterly Distributions of Available Cash

Our partnership agreement requires that we make distributions of all available cash (as defined in our partnership
agreement) within 45 days after the end of each quarter, beginning with the quarter ending March 31, 2012, to holders

of record on the applicable record date.

For these purposes, available cash generally means, for any of our fiscal quarters:

all cash on hand at the end of the quarter (including amounts available for working capital purposes under a
credit facility, commercial paper facility or other similar financing arrangement),

less the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner at the date of determination of available
cash for the quarter in order to:

provide for the proper conduct of our business (including reserves for working capital,
operating expenses, future capital expenditures and credit needs and potential acquisitions);

comply with applicable law and any of our debt instruments or other agreements; or

provide funds for distributions to (1) our unitholders for any one or more of the next four quarters or
(2) with respect to our incentive distribution rights (provided that our general partner may not establish
cash reserves for future distributions on our common units and class A units unless it determines that
the establishment of such reserves will not prevent us from distributing the minimum distribution on
all common units and class A units);

plus, if our general partner so determines, all or any portion of cash on hand on the date of determination of
available cash for the quarter resulting from working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter.
Working capital borrowings are borrowings that are made under our credit facility or another arrangement and used
solely for working capital purposes or to pay distributions to unitholders.
Operating Surplus and Capital Surplus
General
All cash we distribute to unitholders will be characterized as either operating surplus or capital surplus. Our
partnership agreement requires that we distribute available cash from operating surplus differently than available cash
from capital surplus.
Definition of Operating Surplus

Operating surplus generally means:
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$60 million (as described below); plus

all of our cash receipts after the separation, including working capital borrowings but excluding cash from
(1) borrowings that are not working capital borrowings, (2) sales of equity and debt securities and (3) sales
or other dispositions of assets outside the ordinary course of business; plus

working capital borrowings made after the end of a quarter but before the date of determination of operating
surplus for the quarter; plus

cash distributions paid on equity securities that we may issue after the separation to finance all or a portion
of the construction, acquisition, development, replacement or improvement of a capital asset (such as
equipment or reserves) during the period beginning on the date that we enter into a binding obligation to
commence the construction, acquisition, development or improvement of a capital improvement or
replacement of a capital asset and ending on the earlier to occur of the date the capital improvement or
capital asset begins producing in paying quantities, the date it is placed into service or the date that it is
abandoned or disposed of; plus

23

Table of Contents 55



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Table of Conten
cash distributions paid (including incremental incentive distributions) on equity issued to pay the
construction period interest on debt incurred (including periodic net payments under related interest rate

swap arrangements), or to pay construction period distributions on equity issued, to finance the capital
improvements or capital assets referred to above; less

our operating expenditures (as defined below); less

the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner to provide funds for future operating
expenditures; less

all working capital borrowings not repaid within 12 months after having been incurred or repaid within such
twelve-month period with the proceeds of additional working capital borrowings; less

any cash loss realized on disposition of an investment capital expenditure.
If a working capital borrowing, which increases operating surplus, is not repaid during the twelve-month period
following the borrowing, it will be deemed repaid at the end of such period, thus decreasing operating surplus at such
time. When such working capital borrowing is in fact repaid, it will not be treated as a reduction in operating surplus
because operating surplus will have been previously reduced by the deemed repayment.

Operating expenditures is defined in our partnership agreement, and generally means all of our cash expenditures,
including but not limited to:

taxes;

reimbursement of expenses to our general partner and its affiliates;

payments made in the ordinary course of business on hedge contracts;

director and officer compensation;

repayment of working capital borrowings;

debt service payments; and

estimated maintenance capital expenditures,

Operating expenditures, however, do not include:
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repayment of working capital borrowings previously deducted from operating surplus pursuant to the
penultimate bullet point of the definition of operating surplus when the repayment actually occurs;

payments (including prepayments and prepayment penalties) of principal of and premium on indebtedness,
other than working capital borrowings;

expansion capital expenditures;

actual maintenance capital expenditures;

investment capital expenditures;

payment of transaction expenses relating to interim capital transactions;

distributions to our unitholders and distributions with respect to our incentive distribution rights; or

repurchases of equity interests except to fund obligations under employee benefit plans.
As described above, operating surplus does not reflect actual cash on hand that is available for distribution to our
unitholders. For example, it includes a provision that will enable us, if we choose, to distribute as operating surplus up
to $60 million of cash that we receive in the future from non-operating sources, such as asset sales, issuances of
securities and long-term borrowings that would otherwise be distributed as capital surplus. In addition, the effect of
including in the definition of operating surplus certain cash distributions on equity securities would be to increase
operating surplus by the amount of the cash distributions. As a result, we may also distribute as operating surplus up
to the amount of the cash distributions we receive from non-operating sources.
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None of actual maintenance capital expenditures, investment capital expenditures or expansion capital expenditures
are subtracted from operating surplus. Because actual maintenance capital expenditures, investment capital
expenditures and expansion capital expenditures include interest payments (and related fees) on debt incurred and
distributions on equity issued (including incremental distributions on incentive distribution rights) to finance all of the
portion of the construction, acquisition, development, replacement or improvement of a capital asset (such as
equipment or reserves) during the period from when we enter into a binding commitment to commence the
construction, acquisition, development or improvement of a capital asset or replacement of a capital asset until the
earlier to occur of the date any such capital asset is placed into service or the date that it is abandoned or disposed of,
such interest payments and equity distributions are also not subtracted from operating surplus (except, in the case of
maintenance capital expenditures, to the extent such interest payments and distributions are included in estimated
maintenance capital expenditures).

Capital Expenditures

Estimated maintenance capital expenditures reduce operating surplus, but expansion capital expenditures, actual
maintenance capital expenditures and investment capital expenditures do not.

Maintenance Capital Expenditures. Maintenance capital expenditures are those capital expenditures we expect to
make on an ongoing basis to maintain our current production levels over the long term. We expect that a primary
component of maintenance capital expenditures will be capital expenditures associated with the replacement of
equipment and oil and natural gas reserves (including non-proved reserves attributable to undeveloped leasehold
acreage and other similar assets), whether through the development, exploitation and production of an existing
leasehold or the acquisition or development of a new oil or natural gas property, including to offset expected
production declines from producing properties. Maintenance capital expenditures will also include interest (and
related fees) on debt incurred and distributions on equity issued (including incremental distributions on incentive
distribution rights) to finance all or any portion of a replacement asset that is paid in respect of the period beginning
on the date that we enter into a binding obligation to commence construction or development of the replacement asset
and ending on the earlier to occur of the date the replacement asset is placed into service or the date that it is
abandoned or disposed of. Capital expenditures made solely for investment purposes will not be considered
maintenance capital expenditures.

Because our maintenance capital expenditures can be irregular, the amount of our actual maintenance capital
expenditures may differ substantially from period to period, which could cause similar fluctuations in the amounts of
operating surplus, adjusted operating surplus and cash available for distribution to our unitholders if we subtracted
actual maintenance capital expenditures from operating surplus. To address this issue, our partnership agreement will
require that an estimate of the average quarterly maintenance capital expenditures (including estimated plugging and
abandonment costs) necessary to maintain our asset base over the long term be subtracted from operating surplus each
quarter as opposed to the actual amounts spent. The amount of estimated maintenance capital expenditures deducted
from operating surplus is subject to review and change by the board of directors of our general partner at least once a
year. We will make the estimate at least annually and whenever an event occurs that is likely to result in a material
adjustment to the amount of future estimated maintenance capital expenditures, such as a major acquisition or the
introduction of new governmental regulations that will impact our business. Any adjustment to this estimate will be
prospective only.

The use of estimated maintenance capital expenditures in calculating operating surplus will have the following effects:
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it will reduce the risk that maintenance capital expenditures in any one quarter will be large enough to render
operating surplus less than the minimum quarterly distribution to be paid on all the units for that quarter;

it will increase our ability to distribute as operating surplus cash we receive from non-operating sources;
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in quarters where estimated maintenance capital expenditures exceed actual maintenance capital
expenditures, it will be more difficult for us to raise our distributions above the minimum quarterly
distribution, because the amount of estimated maintenance capital expenditures will reduce the amount of
cash available for distribution to our unitholders, even in quarters where there are no corresponding actual
capital expenditures; conversely, the use of estimated maintenance capital expenditures in calculating
operating surplus will have the opposite effect for quarters in which actual maintenance capital expenditures
exceed our estimated maintenance capital expenditures; and

it will be more difficult for us to raise our distribution above the minimum quarterly distribution and pay
incentive distribution rights.
Expansion Capital Expenditures

Expansion capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that we expect will increase the production of our and
gas properties over the long term. Examples of expansion capital expenditures include the acquisition of reserves or
equipment, the acquisition of new leasehold interests, or the development, exploitation and production of an existing
leasehold interest, to the extent such expenditures are incurred to increase the production of our oil and gas properties
over the long term. Expansion capital expenditures will also include interest (and related fees) on debt incurred and
distributions on equity issued (including incremental distributions on incentive distribution rights) to finance all or any
portion of a capital improvement that is paid in respect of the period beginning on the date that we enter into a binding
obligation to commence construction or development of the capital improvement and ending on the earlier to occur of
the date the capital improvement is placed into service or the date that it is abandoned or disposed of. Capital
expenditures made solely for investment purposes will not be considered expansion capital expenditures.

Investment Capital Expenditures

Investment capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that are neither maintenance capital expenditures nor
expansion capital expenditures. Investment capital expenditures largely will consist of capital expenditures made for
investment purposes. Examples of investment capital expenditures include traditional capital expenditures for
investment purposes, such as purchases of securities, as well as other capital expenditures that might be made in lieu
of such traditional investment capital expenditures, such as the acquisition of a capital asset for investment purposes
or development of our undeveloped properties in excess of the maintenance of our asset base, but which are not
expected to expand our asset base for more than the short term.

Capital expenditures that are made in part for maintenance capital purposes and in part for investment capital or
expansion capital purposes will be allocated as maintenance capital expenditures, investment capital expenditures or
expansion capital expenditure by the board of directors of our general partner based upon its good faith determination.

Definition of Capital Surplus

Capital surplus is defined in our partnership agreement as any distribution of available cash in excess of our
cumulative operating surplus. Accordingly, capital surplus would generally be generated by:

borrowings (including sales of debt securities) other than working capital borrowings;
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sales of debt and equity securities; and

sales or other dispositions of assets for cash, other than inventory, accounts receivable and other assets
disposed of in the ordinary course of business or as part of normal retirement or replacement of assets.
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Characterization of Cash Distributions

We treat all available cash distributed as distributed from operating surplus until the sum of all available cash
distributed since we began operations equals our total operating surplus from the date that we began operations until
the end of the quarter that immediately preceded the distribution. We will treat any amount distributed in excess of
operating surplus, regardless of its source, as capital surplus. As described above, operating surplus includes up to $60
million which does not reflect actual cash on hand that is available for distribution to our unitholders. Rather, it is a
provision that will enable us, if we choose, to distribute as operating surplus up to this amount of cash we receive in
the future from non-operating sources such as asset sales, issuances of securities and borrowings that would otherwise
be distributed as capital surplus. We do not currently anticipate that we will make any distributions from capital
surplus.

Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus

We will make distributions of available cash from operating surplus for any quarter in the following manner:

first, 2% to the holders of our class A units (which are held by our general partner) and 98% to the holders of
our class B preferred units, each pro rata, until each class B preferred unit holder has received $0.40 per
outstanding class B preferred unit;

second, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our class C preferred units, each pro
rata, until there has been distributed in respect of each class C preferred unit then outstanding the amount
specified in the certificate of designation for the class C preferred units;

third, to the holders of the incentive distribution rights, which is initially our general partner, (A) 13/85t%s of
such amount paid pursuant to second above that is between $0.46 per outstanding unit for such quarter,
which we refer to as the first target distribution, and $0.50 per outstanding unit for such quarter, which we
refer to as the second target distribution ; (B) 23/%50f such amount paid pursuant to second above that is
between the second target distribution and $0.60 per outstanding unit for such quarter, which we refer to as
the third target distribution ; and (C) 48/500f such amount paid pursuant to second above that is over the
third target distribution for such quarter;

fourth, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata,
until there has been distributed in respect of each common unit then outstanding an amount equal to the
minimum quarterly distribution for such quarter;

fifth, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units and class B
preferred units, each pro rata, until there has been distributed in respect of each common unit and class B
preferred unit then outstanding an amount equal to the first target distribution for such quarter;

after that, in the manner described in Cash Distribution Policy Incentive Distribution Rights.
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Adjusted operating surplus for any period generally means operating surplus generated during that period, less:

1. any net increase in working capital borrowings with respect to that period; and

2. any net decrease in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that period not relating to
an operating expenditure made with respect to that period,
and plus:

3. any net decrease in working capital borrowings made with respect to that period;

4.  any net increase in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that period required by any
debt instrument for the repayment of principal, interest or premium; and
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5. any net decrease made in subsequent periods in cash reserves for operating expenditures initially
established with respect to such period to the extent such decrease results in a reduction of adjusted
operating surplus in subsequent periods pursuant to item 2 above.

Operating surplus generated during a period is equal to the difference between:

the operating surplus determined at the end of that period; and

the operating surplus determined at the beginning of that period.
Incentive Distribution Rights

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive increasing amounts of quarterly distributions of available
cash from operating surplus after we have made payments in excess of the first target distribution and the tests
described below have been met. Our general partner currently holds all of the incentive distribution rights, but may
transfer these rights separately from its general partner interest in us, without the consent of the unitholders.

We will make incentive distributions to our general partner for any quarter in which we have distributed available
cash from operating surplus to our unitholders in an amount equal to the first target distribution, as follows:

first, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 85% to the holders of our common units and class B
preferred units, each pro rata, and 13% to the holders of the incentive distribution rights, until there has been
distributed in respect of each common unit and class B preferred unit then outstanding an amount equal to
the second target distribution for such quarter;

second, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 75% to the holders of our common units and class B
preferred units, each pro rata, and 23% to the holders of the incentive distribution rights, until there has been
distributed in respect of each common unit and class B preferred unit then outstanding an amount equal to
the third target distribution for such quarter; and

after that, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 50% to the holders of our common units and class B

preferred units, each pro rata, and 48% to the holders of the incentive distribution rights.
The class A units represent a 2% general partner interest in us, and the holder of such units are entitled to 2% of our
cash distributions, without any requirement to make a capital contribution to us. The 2% sharing ratio of the class A
units will not be reduced if we issue additional common units in the future. Because the 2% sharing ratio will not be
reduced if we issue additional common units, and in order to ensure that each class A unit represents the same
percentage economic interest in Atlas Resource Partners as one common unit, if we issue additional common units, we
will also issue to our general partner, for no additional consideration and without any requirement to make a capital
contribution, an additional number of class A units so that the total number of outstanding class A units after such
issuance equals 2% of the sum of the total number of common units and class A units after such issuance.

Right to Reset Incentive Distribution Levels
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The holder of our incentive distribution rights, which will initially be our general partner, has the right under our
partnership agreement to elect to relinquish the right to receive incentive distribution payments based on the initial
cash target distribution levels and to reset, at higher levels, the minimum quarterly distribution amount and cash target
distribution levels upon which the incentive distribution payments to our general partner would be set. If our general
partner transfers all or a portion of our incentive distribution rights in the future, then the holder or holders of a
majority of our incentive distribution rights will be entitled to exercise this right.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the general partner does not have the right to reset the minimum quarterly distributions
payable to holders of our class B preferred units or class C preferred units without the consent of
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such holders. Upon a reset of the minimum quarterly distribution amount as set forth herein, holders of class B
preferred units shall continue to have the right to receive distributions equal to the greater of (i) $0.40 and (ii) the
quarterly distribution payable to holders of common units for the most recently completed quarter, in each case
multiplied by the number of common units into which such class B preferred unit is then convertible, and holders of
class C preferred units shall continue to have the right to receive distributions equal to the greater of (i) $0.51 and

(ii) the quarterly distribution payable to holders of common units for the most recently completed quarter, in each case
multiplied by the number of common units into which such class C preferred unit is then convertible.

The right to reset the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels upon which the
incentive distributions are based may be exercised, without approval of our unitholders or the conflicts committee of
the board of directors of our general partner, at any time when we have made cash distributions to the holders of the
incentive distribution rights at the highest level of incentive distribution for the prior four consecutive fiscal quarters.
The reset minimum quarterly distribution amount and target distribution levels are described below and will be higher
than the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels prior to the reset and there will be no
incentive distributions paid under the reset target distribution levels. We anticipate that the holder of our incentive
distribution rights would exercise this reset right in order to facilitate acquisitions or internal growth projects that
would otherwise not be sufficiently accretive to cash distributions per common unit, taking into account the existing
levels of incentive distribution payments being made to such holder.

In connection with the resetting of the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels and
the corresponding relinquishment of incentive distribution payments based on the target cash distributions prior to the
reset, the holder of our incentive distribution rights will be entitled to receive a number of newly issued common units
based on a predetermined formula described below that takes into account the cash parity value of the average cash
distributions related to the incentive distribution rights received by such holder for the two quarters prior to the reset
event, as compared to the average cash distributions per common unit during this period.

The number of common units that the holder of our incentive distribution rights would be entitled to receive from us
in connection with a resetting of the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels then in
effect would be equal to:

the average amount of cash distributions received by the holder of our incentive distribution rights in respect
of such rights during the two consecutive fiscal quarters ended immediately prior to the date of such reset
election; divided by

the average of the amount of cash distributed per common unit during each of these two quarters.
Following a reset election, the minimum quarterly distribution amount will be reset to an amount equal to the average
cash distribution amount per class A unit and common unit for the two fiscal quarters immediately preceding the reset
election (which amount we refer to as the reset minimum quarterly distribution ) and the target distribution levels will
be reset to be correspondingly higher such that we would distribute all of our available cash from operating surplus for
each quarter thereafter as follows:

first, 2% to holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, until
each holder receives an amount per unit equal to 115% of the reset minimum quarterly distribution for that
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quarter;

second, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 85% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata,
and 13% to our general partner, until each holder of our class A units and holder of our common units
receives an amount per unit equal to 125% of the reset minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter;
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third, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 75% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, and
23% to our general partner, until each holder of our class A units and holder of our common units receives
an amount per unit equal to 150% of the reset minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter; and

thereafter, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 50% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata,
and 48% to our general partner.
The holder of our incentive distribution rights will be entitled to cause the minimum quarterly distribution amount and
the target distribution levels to be reset on more than one occasion, provided that it may not make a reset election
except at a time when it has received incentive distributions for the prior four consecutive fiscal quarters based on the
highest level of incentive distributions that it is entitled to receive under our partnership agreement.

Distributions from Capital Surplus

We distribute available cash from capital surplus, if any, in the following manner:

first, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of class B preferred units, pro rata, until a
hypothetical holder of a class B preferred unit acquired on the date the class B units were initially issued has
received aggregate distributions of available cash that are deemed to be capital surplus in an amount equal to
the face value of the class B preferred units;

second, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of class C preferred units, pro rata,
until a hypothetical holder of a class C preferred unit acquired on the date the class C units were initially
issued has received aggregate distributions of available cash that are deemed to be capital surplus in an
amount equal to the face value of the class C preferred units;

third, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units, pro rata, until
distributions have been paid on each common unit from capital surplus in an aggregate amount equal to the
initial unrecovered unit price (as defined below); and

after that, we will distribute all available cash from capital surplus as if it were from operating surplus.
Our partnership agreement treats a distribution from capital surplus as the repayment of an investment in our units,
which we refer to as the unrecovered unit price. The initial unrecovered unit price will be equal to the average of the
closing prices of an Atlas Resource Partners common unit on the NYSE for the five trading days immediately
following the completion of the distribution. Any distributions from capital surplus after the distribution will reduce
the unrecovered unit price. In addition, any distribution of capital surplus will also reduce the minimum quarterly
distribution, the first target distribution, the second target distribution and the third target distribution, which we refer
to in this document as target distribution levels. Each of the target distribution levels will be reduced in connection
with a distribution of capital surplus to an amount equal to the then-applicable target distribution level multiplied by a
fraction, the numerator of which is the unrecovered unit price immediately prior to such distribution of capital surplus,
and the denominator of which is the unrecovered unit price immediately after such distribution of capital surplus.
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After the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels have been reduced to zero, we will treat all
distributions of available cash from all sources as if they were from operating surplus. Because the minimum quarterly
distribution and the target distribution levels will have been reduced to zero, our general partner will then be entitled
to receive 50% of all distributions of available cash in its capacity as general partner and holder of the incentive
distribution rights, in addition to any distributions to which it may be entitled as a holder of units.

Distributions from capital surplus will not reduce the minimum quarterly distribution or target distribution levels for
the quarter in which they are distributed.
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Adjustment of Minimum Quarterly Distribution and Target Distribution Levels

In addition to adjustments made upon a distribution of available cash from capital surplus, we will proportionately
adjust the minimum quarterly distribution, target distribution levels and any other amounts calculated on a per unit
basis upward or downward, as appropriate, if any combination or subdivision of common units occurs. For example, if
a two-for-one split of the common units occurs, we will reduce the minimum quarterly distribution and the target
distribution levels.

We will not make any adjustment for the issuance of additional common units for cash or property.

We may also adjust the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels if legislation is enacted or if
existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that causes us to become taxable as a corporation or otherwise
subject to taxation as an entity for federal, state or local income tax purposes. In this event, we will reduce the
minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels for each quarter after that time to amounts equal to
the product of:

the minimum quarterly distribution and each of the target distribution levels, and

one minus the sum of:

the highest marginal federal income tax rate which could apply to the partnership that is taxed as a
corporation plus

the effective overall state and local income tax rate that would have been applicable in the preceding
calendar year as a result of the new imposition of the entity level tax, after taking into account the
benefit of any deduction allowable for federal income tax purposes for the payment of state and local
income taxes, but only to the extent of the increase in rates resulting from that legislation or
interpretation.
For example, assuming we are not previously subject to state and local income tax, if we became taxable as a
corporation for federal income tax purposes and subject to a maximum marginal federal, and effective state and local,
income tax rate of 40%, then we would reduce the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels to
60% of the amount immediately before the adjustment.

Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation

When we commence dissolution and liquidation, we will sell or otherwise dispose of our assets and adjust the partners
capital account balances to reflect any resulting gain or loss. We will first apply the proceeds of liquidation to the
payment of our creditors in the order of priority provided in our partnership agreement and by law. Then we will pay
$26.03 per unit plus all unpaid distributions to the holders of the class B preferred units, subject to adjustment. Then
we will pay $23.10 per unit plus all unpaid distributions to the holders of the class C preferred units, subject to
adjustment. After that, we will distribute the proceeds to the other unitholders and our general partner in accordance
with their capital account balances, as so adjusted.
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We maintain capital accounts in order to ensure that the partnership s allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction
are respected under the Internal Revenue Code. The balance of a partner s capital account also determines how much

cash or other property the partner will receive on liquidation of the partnership. A partner s capital account is credited
with (increased by) the following items:

the amount of cash and fair market value of any property (net of liabilities) contributed by the partner to the
partnership, and

the partner s share of book income and gain (including income and gain exempt from tax).
A partner s capital account is debited with (reduced by) the following items:

the amount of cash and fair market value (net of liabilities) of property distributed to the partner, and
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the partner s share of loss and deduction (including some items not deductible for tax purposes).
Partners are entitled to liquidating distributions in accordance with their capital account balances.

Upon our liquidation, any gain, or unrealized gain attributable to assets distributed in kind, will be allocated to the
partners in the following manner:

first, to our partners who have negative balances in their capital accounts to the extent of and in proportion to
those negative balances;

second, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata,
until the capital account for each common unit is equal to the sum of:

the unrecovered unit price, and

the amount of the unpaid minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter during which our liquidation
occurs;

third, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to holders of our common units, each pro rata, until
there has been allocated under this paragraph an amount per unit equal to:

the excess of the first target distribution per unit over the minimum quarterly distribution per unit for
each quarter of our existence, less

the cumulative amount per unit of any distribution of available cash from operating surplus in excess
of the minimum quarterly distribution per unit that was distributed 2% to the holders of our class A
units and 98% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, for each quarter of our existence;

fourth, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 85% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, and
13% to the holders of the incentive distribution rights, until there has been allocated under this paragraph an
amount per unit equal to:

the excess of the second target distribution per unit over the first target distribution per unit for each
quarter of our existence, less

the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of available cash from operating surplus in excess
of the first target distribution per unit that was distributed 2% to the holders of our class A units and
85% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, and 13% to the holder of our incentive
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distribution rights for each quarter of our existence; and

fifth, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 75% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, and
23% to the holder of our incentive distribution rights, until there has been allocated under this paragraph an
amount per unit equal to:

the excess of the third target distribution per unit over the second target distribution per unit for each
quarter of our existence, less

the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of available cash from operating surplus in excess
of the second target distribution per unit that was distributed 2% to the holders of our class A units and
75% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, and 23% to the holder of our incentive
distribution rights for each quarter of our existence; and

after that, 50% to the holders of our common units and 2% to the holders of our class A units, each pro rata,
and 48% to the holder of our incentive distribution rights.

Upon our liquidation, any loss will generally be allocated to our general partner and the unitholders in the following
manner:

first, 2% to the holders of our class A units and 98% to the holders of our common units, each pro rata, until
the capital accounts of the common unitholders have been reduced to zero; and
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after that, 100% to our general partner.
In addition, we will make interim adjustments to the capital accounts at the time we issue additional equity interests or
make distributions of property. We will base these adjustments on the fair market value of the interests or the property
distributed and we will allocate any gain or loss resulting from the adjustments to the unitholders and our general
partner in the same manner as we allocate gain or loss upon liquidation. In the event that we make positive interim
adjustments to the capital accounts, we will allocate any later negative adjustments to the capital accounts resulting
from the issuance of additional equity interests or our distributions of property or upon our liquidation in a manner
which results, to the extent possible, in the capital account balances of our general partner equaling the amount which
would have been our general partner s capital account balances if we had not made any earlier positive adjustments to
the capital accounts.

Rationale for Our Cash Distribution Policy

Our cash distribution policy reflects a basic judgment, given our current asset base, that our unitholders will be better
served by our distributing our available cash rather than our retaining it. It is the current policy of our general partner
that we should increase our level of cash distributions per unit only when, in its judgment, it believes that:

we have sufficient reserves and liquidity for the proper conduct of our business, and

we can maintain such an increased distribution level for a sustained period.
The amount of available cash will be determined by our general partner after the distribution and will be based upon
recommendations from our management. Because we believe that we will generally finance any expansion capital
expenditures and investment capital expenditures from external financing sources, we believe that our unitholders are
best served by our distributing all of our available cash. Our cash distribution policy is consistent with the terms of our
partnership agreement, which requires that we distribute all of our available cash quarterly.

Restrictions and Limitations on Qur Ability to Make Distributions

We cannot guarantee that unitholders will receive cash distributions from us or that we can or will maintain any
increases in our cash distributions. Our distribution policy may be changed at any time and is subject to certain
restrictions, including:

Other than the obligation under our partnership agreement to distribute available cash on a quarterly basis,
which is subject to our general partner s authority to establish reserves and other limitations, our unitholders
have no contractual or other legal right to receive distributions;

Our general partner will have broad discretion to establish reserves for the prudent conduct of our business
and for future cash distributions, and the establishment of those reserves could result in a reduction in cash
distributions to you from the levels we currently anticipate pursuant to our stated distribution policy. Any
determination to establish or increase reserves made by our general partner in good faith will be binding on
the unitholders. We intend to reserve a portion of our cash generated from operations to fund our exploration
and development capital expenditures. Over a longer period of time, if our general partner does not set aside
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sufficient cash reserves or make sufficient cash expenditures to maintain our asset base, we will be unable to
pay the minimum quarterly distribution from cash generated from operations and would therefore expect to
reduce our distributions. If our asset base decreases and we do not reduce our distributions, a portion of the
distributions may be considered a return of part of our unitholders investment in us as opposed to a return on
our unitholders investment;

Our ability to make distributions of available cash will depend primarily on our cash flow from operations,
which will fluctuate primarily based on commodity prices, production volumes, investor funds raised and the
number of wells we drill;
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Even if we do not modify our cash distribution policy, the amount of distributions we pay and the decision to
make any distribution will be determined by our general partner, taking into consideration the terms of our
partnership agreement, our credit facility and any other debt agreements we may enter into in the future;

Under Section 17-607 of the Delaware Act, we may not make a distribution to our unitholders if the
distribution would cause our liabilities to exceed the fair value of our assets;

If and to the extent our cash available for distribution materially declines, we may reduce our distribution in
order to service or repay our debt or fund expansion capital expenditures;

Our cash distribution policy is subject to restrictions on distributions under our credit facility and may be
subject to restrictions under other debt agreements that we may enter into in the future. If we are unable to
satisfy these restrictions, or if a default occurs under our credit facility (including a default of financial and
other covenants), we would be prohibited from making cash distributions to our unitholders notwithstanding
our stated cash distribution policy;

We may lack sufficient cash to pay distributions to our unitholders due to a number of factors, including the
amount of natural gas and oil we produce, the price at which we sell our natural gas and oil, the level of our
operating costs, our ability to acquire, locate and produce new reserves, results of our hedging activities, the
number of wells we drill, the amount of funds we raise through our investment partnerships, the level of our
interest expense, principal and interest payments on our outstanding debt, tax expenses, and the level of our
capital expenditures. See Risk Factors for information regarding these factors;

Although our partnership agreement requires us to distribute our available cash, our partnership agreement
may be amended with the approval of our general partner and a majority of our outstanding common units.
As of the date of this prospectus, Atlas Energy owns outstanding common units representing an
approximately 36.9% limited partner interest and has the ability to amend our partnership agreement with the
approval of our general partner;

Prior to making any distribution on our common units, we will reimburse our general partner and its
affiliates for all direct and indirect expenses they incur on our behalf. Our partnership agreement does not set
a limit on the amount of expenses for which our general partner and its affiliates may be reimbursed. These
expenses include salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other amounts paid to persons who perform
services for us or on our behalf and expenses allocated to our general partner by its affiliates. Our partnership
agreement provides that our general partner will determine in good faith the expenses that are allocable to us.
The reimbursement of expenses and payment of fees, if any, to our general partner and its affiliates will
reduce the amount of cash available to pay cash distributions to our unitholders;

If and to the extent our cash available for distribution materially declines, we may reduce our distribution in
order to service or repay our debt or fund growth capital expenditures;
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Our ability to make distributions to our unitholders depends on the performance of our operating subsidiaries
and their ability to distribute cash to us. The ability of our operating subsidiaries to make distributions to us
may be restricted by, among other things, the provisions of existing and future indebtedness, applicable state
partnership and limited liability company laws and other laws and regulations;

All available cash distributed by us from any source will be treated as distributed from operating surplus
until the sum of all available cash distributed by us equals the cumulative operating surplus from the date
that we began operations through the end of the quarter immediately preceding that distribution. We
anticipate that distributions from operating surplus will generally not represent a return of capital. However,
operating surplus, as defined in our partnership agreement, includes certain components that represent
non-operating sources of cash, including a $60 million cash basket and working capital borrowings.
Consequently, it is possible that distributions from operating surplus may
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represent a return of capital. For example, the $60 million cash basket would allow us to distribute as
operating surplus cash proceeds we receive from non-operating sources, such as asset sales, issuances of
securities and long-term borrowings, which would represent a return of capital. Distributions representing a
return of capital could result in a corresponding decrease in our asset base.
Additionally, any cash distributed by us in excess of operating surplus will be deemed to be capital surplus as the
repayment of the initial investment in our units, which is similar to a return of capital. Distributions from capital
surplus could result in a corresponding decrease in our asset base. We do not currently anticipate that we will make
any distributions from capital surplus.

Our Cash Distribution Policy Limits Our Ability to Grow

Because we distribute our available cash, our growth may not be as significant as businesses that reinvest their
available cash to expand ongoing operations. If we issue additional common units or incur debt to fund acquisitions
and expansion and investment capital expenditures, the payment of distributions on those additional units or interest
on that debt could increase the risk that we will be unable to maintain or increase our per unit distribution level. There
are no limitations in our partnership agreement on our ability to issue additional units, including units ranking senior
to the common units.

Our Ability to Grow is Dependent on Our Ability to Have Access to External Expansion Capital

Because we expect that we will distribute our available cash from operations to our unitholders in accordance with the
terms of our partnership agreement, we expect that we will rely primarily upon external financing sources, including
commercial bank borrowings and the issuance of debt and equity securities, to fund any expansion and investment
capital expenditures and any acquisitions. As a result, to the extent we are unable to finance growth externally, our
cash distribution policy will significantly impair our ability to grow. In addition, because we will distribute all of our
available cash, our growth may not be as fast as that of businesses that reinvest their available cash to expand their
ongoing operations. To the extent that we issue additional units in connection with any expansion capital
expenditures, the payment of distributions on those additional units may increase the risk that we will be unable to
maintain or increase our distribution levels. There are no limitations in our partnership agreement on our ability to
issue additional units, including units ranking senior to the common units. The incurrence of additional commercial
borrowings or other debt to finance our growth strategy would result in increased interest expense, which in turn may
impact the available cash that we have to distribute to our unitholders.
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TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This section is a discussion of the material tax considerations that may be relevant to prospective unitholders who are
individual citizens or residents of the United States and, unless otherwise noted in the following discussion, is the
opinion of Ledgewood, P.C., tax counsel to our general partner and us, insofar as it relates to matters of United States
federal income tax law and legal conclusions with respect to those matters. This section is based upon current
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, existing and proposed regulations and current administrative rulings and
court decisions, all of which are subject to change. Later changes in these authorities may cause the tax consequences
to vary substantially from the consequences described below.

The following discussion does not address on all federal income tax matters affecting us or the unitholders. Moreover,
the discussion focuses on unitholders who are individual citizens or residents of the United States and has only limited
application to corporations, estates, trusts, nonresident aliens or other unitholders subject to specialized tax treatment,
such as tax-exempt institutions, foreign persons, individual retirement accounts (IRAs), real estate investment trusts
(REITSs) or mutual funds. Accordingly, we urge you to consult, and depend on, your own tax advisor in analyzing the
federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences particular to you of the ownership or disposition of common units.

All statements as to matters of law and legal conclusions, but not as to factual matters, contained in this section, unless
otherwise noted, are the opinion of Ledgewood and are based on the accuracy of the representations made by us.

We have not received, and will not request, a ruling from the IRS regarding any matter affecting us or prospective
unitholders. Instead, we will rely on opinions of Ledgewood. Unlike a ruling, an opinion of counsel represents only
that counsel s best legal judgment and does not bind the IRS or the courts. Accordingly, the opinions and statements
made here may not be sustained by a court if contested by the IRS. Any contest of this sort with the IRS may
materially and adversely impact the market for the common units and the prices at which common units trade. In
addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS, principally legal, accounting and related fees, will result in a reduction
in cash available for distribution to our unitholders and our general partner and thus will be borne indirectly by our
unitholders and our general partner. Furthermore, the tax treatment of us, or of an investment in us, may be
significantly modified by future legislative or administrative changes or court decisions. Any modifications may or
may not be retroactively applied.

For the reasons described below, Ledgewood has not rendered an opinion with respect to the following specific
federal income tax issues:

the treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of
common units (please read  Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short Sales );

whether our monthly convention for allocating taxable income and losses is permitted by existing Treasury
Regulations (please read  Disposition of Common Units Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees );
and

whether our method for depreciating Section 743 adjustments is sustainable in certain cases (please read
Disposition of Common Units Section 754 Election ).
Partnership Status
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A partnership is not a taxable entity and incurs no federal income tax liability. Instead, each partner of a partnership is
required to take into account its share of items of income, gain, loss and deduction of the partnership in computing its
federal income tax liability, regardless of whether cash distributions are made to it by the partnership. Distributions by
a partnership to a partner are generally not taxable unless the amount of cash distributed is in excess of the partner s
adjusted basis in its partnership interest.

36

Table of Contents 80



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Table of Conten

Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue Code provides that publicly traded partnerships will, as a general rule, be taxed
as corporations. However, an exception, referred to as the qualifying income exception, exists with respect to publicly
traded partnerships of which 90% or more of the gross income for every taxable year consists of qualifying income.
Qualifying income includes income and gains derived from the transportation, storage, processing and marketing of
crude oil, natural gas and products thereof. Other types of qualifying income include interest (other than from a
financial business), dividends, gains from the sale of real property and gains from the sale or other disposition of
capital assets held for the production of income that otherwise constitutes qualifying income. We estimate that less
than 2% of our current income is not qualifying income; however, this estimate could change from time to time. Based
upon and subject to this estimate, the factual representations made by us and our general partner and a review of the
applicable legal authorities, Ledgewood is of the opinion that at least 90% of our current gross income constitutes
qualifying income.

We have not received, and will not seek, a ruling from the IRS and the IRS has made no determination as to our status
for federal income tax purposes or whether our operations generate qualifying income under Section 7704 of the
Internal Revenue Code. Instead, we will rely on the opinion of Ledgewood that, based upon the Internal Revenue
Code, its regulations, published revenue rulings and court decisions and the representations described below, we will
be classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.

In rendering its opinion, Ledgewood has relied on factual representations made by us and our general partner. The
representations made by us and our general partner upon which Ledgewood has relied are:

Neither we nor our operating partnership or any operating subsidiary has elected or will elect to be treated as
a corporation; and

For each taxable year, more than 90% of our gross income will be income that Ledgewood has opined or

will opine is qualifying income within the meaning of Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.
If we fail to meet the qualifying income exception, other than a failure that is determined by the IRS to be inadvertent
and that is cured within a reasonable time after discovery, we will be treated as if we had transferred all of our assets,
subject to liabilities, to a newly formed corporation, on the first day of the year in which we fail to meet the qualifying
income exception, in return for stock in that corporation, and then distributed that stock to the unitholders in
liquidation of their interests in us. This contribution and liquidation should be tax-free to unitholders and us so long as
we, at that time, do not have liabilities in excess of the tax basis of our assets. Thereafter, we would be treated as a
corporation for federal income tax purposes.

If we were taxable as a corporation in any taxable year, either as a result of a failure to meet the qualifying income
exception or otherwise, our items of income, gain, loss and deduction would be reflected only on our tax return rather
than being passed through to the unitholders, and our net income would be taxed to us at corporate rates. In addition,
any distribution made to a unitholder would be treated as either taxable dividend income, to the extent of our current
or accumulated earnings and profits, or, in the absence of earnings and profits, a nontaxable return of capital, to the
extent of the unitholder s tax basis in his common units, or taxable capital gain, after the unitholder s tax basis in his
common units is reduced to zero. Accordingly, taxation of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction in a
unitholder s cash flow and after-tax return and thus would likely result in a substantial reduction of the value of the
units.
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The discussion below is based on Ledgewood s opinion that we will be classified as a partnership for federal income
tax purposes.

Limited Partner Status
Unitholders who have become our limited partners will be treated as our partners for federal income tax purposes.

Counsel is also of the opinion, based upon and in reliance upon those same representations set forth under  Partnership
Status, that
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assignees who have executed and delivered transfer applications and are awaiting admission as limited
partners, and

unitholders whose common units are held in street name or by a nominee and who have the right to direct the

nominee in the exercise of all substantive rights attendant to the ownership of their common units,
will be treated as our partners for federal income tax purposes. As there is no direct authority addressing assignees of
common units who are entitled to execute and deliver transfer applications and thereby become entitled to direct the
exercise of attendant rights, but who fail to execute and deliver transfer applications, Counsel s opinion does not
extend to these persons. Furthermore, a purchaser or other transferee of common units who does not execute and
deliver a transfer application may not receive some federal income tax information or reports furnished to record
holders of common units unless the common units are held in a nominee or street name account and the nominee or
broker has executed and delivered a transfer application for those common units.

A beneficial owner of common units whose units have been transferred to a short seller to complete a short sale would
appear to lose his or her status as a partner with respect to such units for federal income tax purposes. See ~ Tax
Consequences of Unit Ownership Treatment of Short Sales.

Income, gain, deductions or losses would not appear to be reportable by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal
income tax purposes, and any cash distributions received by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax
purposes would therefore be fully taxable as ordinary income. These holders should consult their own tax advisors
with respect to their status as our partners for federal income tax purposes.

Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership

Flow-through of Taxable Income. We do not pay any federal income tax. Instead, each unitholder is required to report
on his or her income tax return his or her allocable share of our income, gains, losses and deductions without regard to
whether we make cash distributions to that unitholder. Consequently, we may allocate income to our unitholders
although we have made no cash distribution to them. Each unitholder will be required to include in income his or her
allocable share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for our taxable year ending with or within his or her taxable
year.

Treatment of Distributions. Our distributions generally will not be taxable for federal income tax purposes to the

extent of a unitholder s tax basis in his or her common units immediately before the distribution. Our cash distributions
in excess of that tax basis generally will be considered to be gain from the sale or exchange of the common units,

taxable in accordance with the rules described under ~ Disposition of Common Units below. Any reduction in a
unitholder s share of our liabilities for which no partner, including our general partner, bears the economic risk of loss,
known as nonrecourse liabilities, will be treated as a distribution of cash to that unitholder. To the extent our
distributions cause a unitholder s atrisk amount to be less than zero at the end of any taxable year, the unitholder must
recapture any losses deducted in previous years. See  Limitations on Deductibility of Our Losses.

A decrease in a unitholder s percentage interest in us because of our issuance of additional common units will decrease
his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities, and thus will result in a corresponding deemed distribution of cash. A
non-pro rata distribution of money or property may result in ordinary income to a unitholder, regardless of his or her
tax basis in our common units, if the distribution reduces his or her share of our unrealized receivables, including
depreciation recapture, or substantially appreciated inventory items, both as defined in Section 751 of the Internal
Revenue Code, known collectively as  Section 751 assets. To that extent, a unitholder will be treated as having been
distributed his or her proportionate share of the Section 751 assets and having exchanged those assets with us in return
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made to him or her. This latter deemed exchange will generally result in the unitholder s realization of ordinary income
under Section 751(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. That income will equal the excess of:

the non-pro rata portion of that distribution over

his or her tax basis for the share of Section 751 assets deemed relinquished in the exchange.
Ratio of Taxable Income to Distributions. In prior taxable years, unitholders received cash distributions that exceeded
the amount of taxable income allocated to the unitholders. This excess was partially the result of depreciation
deductions, but was primarily the result of special allocations to our general partner of taxable income earned by our
operating subsidiary which caused a corresponding reduction in the amount of taxable income allocable to us. Since
these special allocations increased our general partner s capital account, the distribution it would receive upon our
liquidation will be increased and distributions to unitholders would be correspondingly reduced. It is possible that
upon liquidation common unitholders will recognize taxable income in excess of liquidation distributions.

Tax Rates. Under current law, the highest marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to ordinary income of
individuals is 39.6% and the highest marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to long-term capital gains
(generally, capital gains on certain assets held for more than 12 months) of individuals is 20%. In addition, there is a
3.8% Medicare tax on certain investment income earned by individuals. For these purposes, investment income
generally includes a unitholder s allocable share of our income and gain realized by a unitholder from a sale of units.
The tax will be imposed on the lesser of (1) the unitholder s net income from all of its investments, or (2) the amount
by which the unitholder s modified adjusted gross income exceeds $250,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing
jointly), $125,000 (if the unitholder is married and filing separately), and $200,000 (for all others).

Alternative Minimum Tax. Although we do not expect to generate significant tax preference items or adjustments,
each unitholder will be required to take into account his distributive share of any items of our income, gain, deduction
or loss for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.

Basis of Common Units. A unitholder s initial tax basis for his or her common units will be the amount he or she paid
for the common units plus his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities. That basis will be increased by his or her
share of our income and by any increases in his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities. That basis will be
decreased, but not below zero, by our distributions to him or her, by his or her share of our losses, by any decreases in
his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities and by his or her share of our expenditures that are not deductible in
computing taxable income and are not required to be capitalized.

Limitations on Deductibility of Our Losses. The deduction by a unitholder of his or her share of our losses will be
limited to the tax basis in his or her units and, in the case of an individual unitholder or a corporate unitholder that is
subject to the atrisk rules (for example, if more than 50% of the value of its stock is owned directly or indirectly by
five or fewer individuals or some tax-exempt organizations), to the amount for which the unitholder is considered to
be atrisk with respect to our activities, if that is less than its tax basis. A unitholder must recapture losses deducted in
previous years to the extent that distributions cause his at risk amount to be less than zero at the end of any taxable
year. Losses disallowed to a unitholder or recaptured as a result of these limitations will carry forward and will be
allowable to the extent that his tax basis or at risk amount, whichever is the limiting factor, is subsequently increased.
Upon the taxable disposition of a unit, any gain recognized by a unitholder can be offset by losses that were
previously suspended by the at risk limitation but may not be offset by losses suspended by the basis limitation. Any
excess loss above that gain previously suspended by the at risk or basis limitations is no longer utilizable.
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In general, a unitholder will be at risk to the extent of the tax basis of his or her units, excluding any portion of that
basis attributable to his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities, reduced by any amount of money he or she borrows
to acquire or hold the units, if the lender of those borrowed funds owns an interest in us, is related to the unitholder or
can look only to the units for repayment. A unitholder s at risk amount will increase or decrease
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as the tax basis of the unitholder s units increases or decreases, other than tax basis increases or decreases attributable
to increases or decreases in his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities.

The passive loss limitations generally provide that individuals, estates, trusts and some closely-held corporations and
personal service corporations can deduct losses from passive activities, which are generally activities in which the
taxpayer does not materially participate, only to the extent of the taxpayer s income from those passive activities. The
passive loss limitations are applied separately with respect to each publicly-traded partnership. Consequently, any
passive losses we generate will only be available to offset our passive income generated in the future and will not be
available to offset income from other passive activities or investments, including our investments or your investments
in other publicly-traded partnerships, or salary or active business income. Passive losses that are not deductible
because they exceed a unitholder s share of our income may be deducted in full when the unitholder disposes of his or
her entire investment in us in a fully taxable transaction with an unrelated party. The passive activity loss rules are
applied after other applicable limitations on deductions, including the at risk rules and the basis limitation.

A unitholder s share of our net income may be offset by any of our suspended passive losses, but it may not be offset
by any other current or carryover losses from other passive activities, including those attributable to other
publicly-traded partnerships.

Limitations on Interest Deductions. The deductibility of a non-corporate taxpayer s investment interest expense is
generally limited to the amount of that taxpayer s net investment income. As noted, a unitholder s share of our net
passive income will be treated as investment income for this purpose. In addition, a unitholder s share of our portfolio
income will be treated as investment income. Investment interest expense includes:

interest on indebtedness properly allocable to property held for investment;

our interest expense attributed to portfolio income; and

the portion of interest expense incurred to purchase or carry an interest in a passive activity to the extent
attributable to portfolio income.
The computation of a unitholder s investment interest expense will take into account interest on any margin account
borrowing or other loan incurred to purchase or carry a unit. Net investment income includes gross income from
property held for investment and amounts treated as portfolio income under the passive loss rules, less deductible
expenses, other than interest, directly connected with the production of investment income, but generally does not
include gains attributable to the disposition of property held for investment.

Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deductions. In general, if we have a net profit, our items of income, gain, loss
and deduction will be allocated among our general partner and the unitholders in accordance with their percentage
interests in us. At any time that incentive distributions are made to our general partner, gross income will be allocated
to it to the extent of these distributions. See ~ Ratio of Taxable Income to Distributions. If we have a net loss for the
entire year, the amount of that loss will generally be allocated first to our general partner and the unitholders in
accordance with their particular percentage interests in us to the extent of their positive capital accounts and, second,
to our general partner.
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As required by the Internal Revenue Code some items of our income, deduction, gain and loss will be allocated to
account for the difference between the tax basis and fair market value of property contributed to us by our general
partner referred to in this discussion as contributed property, and to account for the difference between the fair market
value of our assets and their carrying value on our books at the time of this offering. The effect of these allocations to

a unitholder purchasing common units will be essentially the same as if the tax basis of our assets were equal to their
fair market value as of the date of this prospectus. In addition, specified items of recapture income will be allocated to
the extent possible to the partner who was allocated the deduction giving rise to the treatment of that gain as recapture
income in order to minimize the recognition of ordinary income by some unitholders.
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Finally, although we do not expect that our operations will result in the creation of negative capital accounts, if
negative capital accounts nevertheless result, items of our income and gain will be allocated in an amount and manner
sufficient to eliminate the negative balance as quickly as possible.

Ledgewood is of the opinion that, with the exception of the issues described in ~ Disposition of Common Units Section
754 Election and  Disposition of Common Units Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees, allocations under
our partnership agreement will be recognized for federal income tax purposes in determining a partner s share of an

item of our income, gain, loss or deduction.

Entity-Level Collections. If we are required or elect under applicable law to pay any federal, state or local income tax
on behalf of any unitholder or our general partner or any former unitholder, we are authorized to pay those taxes from
our funds. That payment, if made, will be treated as a distribution of cash to the person on whose behalf the payment
was made. If the payment is made on behalf of a person whose identity cannot be determined, we are authorized to
treat the payment as a distribution to all current unitholders and our general partner. We are authorized to amend the
partnership agreement in the manner necessary to maintain uniformity of intrinsic tax characteristics of units and to
adjust later distributions, so that after giving effect to these distributions, the priority and characterization of
distributions otherwise applicable under the partnership agreement is maintained as nearly as is practicable. Payments
by us as described above could give rise to an overpayment of tax on behalf of a unitholder in which event he could
file a claim for credit or refund.

Treatment of Short Sales. A unitholder whose units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of units may be
considered as having disposed of ownership of those units. If so, the unitholder would no longer own units for federal
income tax purposes during the period of the loan and may recognize gain or loss from the disposition. As a result,
during this period:

any of our income, gain, deduction or loss with respect to those units would not be reportable by the
unitholder;

any cash distributions we make to that unitholder with respect to those units would be fully taxable; and

all of those distributions would appear to be treated as ordinary income.
Unitholders desiring to assure ownership of their units for tax purposes and avoid these consequences should modify
any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing their units. The IRS has
announced that it is actively studying issues relating to the tax treatment of short sales of partnership interests. See
also  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss. Because the IRS has not announced the results of its
study and there is no authority addressing the treatment of short sales of partnership interests, Ledgewood is unable to
opine on the treatment of such short sales.

Tax Treatment of Operations
Accounting Method and Taxable Year. We use the accrual method of accounting and the tax year ending December 31
for federal income tax purposes. Each unitholder must include in income his or her share of our income, gain, loss and

deduction for our taxable year(s) ending within or with his or her taxable year. In addition, a unitholder who has a
taxable year ending on a date other than December 31, and who disposes of all of his or her units following the close
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of our taxable year but before the close of his or her taxable year, must include his or her share of our income, gain,
loss and deduction in income for his or her taxable year, with the result that he or she will be required to report income
for his or her taxable year for his or her share of more than one year of our income, gain, loss and deduction.

Tax Basis, Depreciation and Amortization. The tax basis of our assets will be used for purposes of computing
depreciation and cost recovery deductions and, ultimately, gain or loss on the disposition of these assets. The federal
income tax burden associated with the difference between the fair market value of property
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contributed and the tax basis established for that property will be borne by our general partner and the unitholders. See
Tax Treatment of Unitholders Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss and Deduction.

To the extent allowable, we may elect to use the depreciation and cost recovery methods that will result in the largest
deductions being taken in the early years after assets are placed in service. We are not entitled to any amortization
deductions with respect to any goodwill conveyed to us on formation. Property we acquire or construct is depreciated
using accelerated methods permitted by the Internal Revenue Code.

If we dispose of depreciable property by sale, foreclosure, or otherwise, all or a portion of any gain, determined by
reference to the amount of depreciation previously deducted and the nature of the property, may be subject to the
recapture rules and taxed as ordinary income rather than capital gain. Similarly, a unitholder who has taken cost

recovery or depreciation deductions with respect to our property may be required to recapture those deductions as
ordinary income upon a sale of his units. See ~ Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Allocation of Income, Gain, Loss
and Deduction and  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Uniformity of Units. We must maintain economic and tax uniformity of the units to all holders. A lack of tax
uniformity can result from a literal application of Treasury Regulation Sections 1.167(c)-1(a)(6) and 1.197-2(g)(3).
Any resulting non-uniformity could have a negative impact on the value of the common units by reducing the tax
deductions available to a purchaser of units. See ~ Disposition of Common Units Section 754 Election.

We intend to continue to depreciate or amortize the Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation

in the value of contributed property in a way that will avoid non-uniformity of tax treatment among unitholders. See
Disposition of Common Units Section 754 Election. If we determine that this position cannot reasonably be taken, we

may adopt a different position in an effort to maintain uniformity. This could result in lower annual depreciation and

amortization deductions than would otherwise be allowable to some unitholders and risk the loss of depreciation and

amortization deductions not taken in the year that these deductions are otherwise allowable. The IRS may challenge

any method of depreciating the Section 743(b) adjustment we adopt. If such a challenge were made and sustained, the

uniformity of units might be affected, and the gain from the sale of units might be increased without the benefit of

additional deductions. See  Disposition of Common Units Recognition of Gain or Loss.

Valuation of Our Properties. The federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of units depends
in part on our estimates of the relative fair market values of our assets. Although we may from time to time consult
with professional appraisers regarding valuation matters, we make many of the relative fair market value estimates
ourselves. These estimates are subject to challenge and will not be binding on the IRS or the courts. If the estimates of
fair market value are later found to be incorrect, the character and amount of items of income, gain, loss or deductions
previously reported by unitholders might change, and unitholders might be required to adjust their tax liability for
prior years and incur interest and penalties with respect to such adjustments.

Disposition of Units

Recognition of Gain or Loss. Gain or loss will be recognized on a sale of units equal to the difference between the
amount realized and the unitholder s tax basis in the units sold. A unitholder s amount realized will be measured by the
sum of the cash or the fair market value of other property received plus his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities.
Because the amount realized includes a unitholder s share of our nonrecourse liabilities, the gain recognized on the sale
of units could result in a tax liability in excess of any cash received from the sale.
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Prior distributions from us in excess of cumulative net taxable income for a common unit that decreased a unitholder s
tax basis in that common unit will, in effect, become taxable income if the common unit is sold at a price greater than
the unitholder s tax basis in that common unit, even if the price is less than his original cost.

Should the IRS successfully contest our method of depreciating or amortizing the Section 743(b) adjustment,

described under  Disposition of Common Units Section 754 Election, attributable to contributed property, a unitholder
could realize additional gain from the sale of units than had our method been respected. In that case, the unitholder

may have been entitled to additional deductions against income in prior years but may be unable to claim them, with

the result to him of greater overall taxable income than appropriate. Due to the lack of final regulations, Ledgewood is
unable to opine as to the validity of the convention but believes a contest by the IRS is unlikely because a successful
contest could result in substantial additional deductions to other unitholders.

Except as noted below, gain or loss recognized by a unitholder, other than a dealer in units, on the sale or exchange of
a unit held for more than one year will generally be taxable as capital gain or loss. Capital gain recognized by an
individual on the sale of units held more than 12 months will generally be taxed at a maximum rate of 20% plus the
3.8% Medicare tax. However, a portion of this gain or loss, which will likely be substantial, will be separately
computed and taxed as ordinary income under Section 751 of the Internal Revenue Code to the extent attributable to
assets giving rise to depreciation recapture or other unrealized receivables orto inventory items we own. Ordinary
income attributable to unrealized receivables, inventory items and depreciation recapture may exceed net taxable gain
realized upon the sale of a unit and may be recognized even if there is a net taxable loss realized on that sale. Thus, a
unitholder may recognize both ordinary income and a capital loss upon a disposition of units. Net capital loss may
offset no more than $3,000 of ordinary income in the case of individuals and may only be used to offset capital gain in
the case of corporations.

The IRS has ruled that a partner who acquires interests in a partnership in separate transactions must combine those
interests and maintain a single adjusted tax basis. Upon a sale or other disposition of less than all of those interests, a
portion of that tax basis must be allocated to the interests sold using an equitable apportionment method. Although the
ruling is unclear as to how the holding period of these interests is determined once they are combined, Treasury
regulations allow a selling unitholder, who can identify units transferred with an ascertainable holding period, to use
the actual holding period of the units transferred. Thus, according to the ruling, a unitholder will not be able to select
high or low basis common units to sell, as would be the case with corporate stock, but may designate specific common
units sold for purposes of determining the holding period of units transferred. A unitholder electing to use the actual
holding period of units transferred must consistently use that identification method for all subsequent sales or
exchanges of units. A unitholder considering the purchase of additional common units or a sale of common units
purchased in separate transactions should consult his tax advisor as to the possible consequences of this ruling and
application of the Treasury regulations.

Specific provisions of the Internal Revenue Code affect the taxation of some financial products and securities,
including partnership interests, by treating a taxpayer as having sold an appreciated partnership interest, one in which

gain would be recognized if it were sold, assigned or terminated at its fair market value, if the taxpayer or related
persons enter into:

a short sale;

an offsetting notional principal contract; or
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a futures or forward contract with respect to the partnership interest or substantially identical property.
Moreover, if a taxpayer has previously entered into a short sale, an offsetting notional principal contract or a futures or
forward contract with respect to the partnership interest, the taxpayer will be treated as having sold that position if the
taxpayer or a related person then acquires the partnership interest or substantially identical
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property. The Secretary of Treasury is also authorized to issue regulations that treat a taxpayer that enters into
transactions or positions that have substantially the same effect as the preceding transactions as having constructively
sold the financial position.

Allocations Between Transferors and Transferees. Our taxable income and losses are determined annually, prorated
on a monthly basis and apportioned among the unitholders in proportion to the number of units owned by each of
them as of the opening of the New York Stock Exchange on the first business day of the month. However, gain or loss
realized on a sale or other disposition of our assets other than in the ordinary course of business is allocated among the
unitholders as of the opening of the New York Stock Exchange on the first business day of the month in which that
gain or loss is recognized. As a result, a unitholder transferring units may be allocated income, gain, loss and
deduction accrued after the date of transfer.

The use of this method may not be permitted under existing Treasury regulations. Accordingly, Ledgewood is unable
to opine on the validity of this method of allocating income and deductions between transferors and transferees of
units. If this method is not allowed under the Treasury Regulations, or only applies to transfers of less than all of the
unitholder s interest, our taxable income or losses might be reallocated among the unitholders. Under our partnership
agreement, we are authorized to revise our method of allocation between transferors and transferees, as well as among
partners whose interests otherwise vary during a taxable period, to conform to a method permitted under future
Treasury regulations.

A unitholder who owns units at any time during a quarter and who disposes of them before the record date set for a
cash distribution for that quarter will be allocated a share of our income, gain, loss and deductions attributable to that
quarter but will not be entitled to receive that cash distribution.

Section 754 Election. We intend to make the election permitted by Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code. That
election is irrevocable without the consent of the IRS. The election generally permits us to adjust a common unit
purchaser s tax basis in our assets ( inside basis ) to reflect his or her purchase price. This election does not apply to a
person who purchases common units directly from us. The adjustment belongs to the purchaser and not to other
unitholders. For purposes of this discussion, a partner s inside basis in our assets will be considered to have two
components:

his or her share of our tax basis in our assets ( common basis ) and

his or her Section 743(b) adjustment to that basis.
Treasury regulations under Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code require, if the remedial allocation method is
adopted (which we have), a portion of the adjustment attributable to recovery property to be depreciated over the
remaining cost recovery period for built-in gain. Under Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6), an adjustment
attributable to property subject to depreciation under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue Code rather than cost
recovery deductions under Section 168 is generally required to be depreciated using either the straight-line method or
the 150% declining balance method. A literal application of these different rules result in lack of uniformity. Under
our partnership agreement, our general partner is authorized to adopt a position intended to preserve the uniformity of
units even if that position is not consistent with the Treasury Regulations. See =~ Tax Treatment of Operations Uniformity
of Units.
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We intend to depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value
of property previously contributed to us, to the extent of any unamortized book-tax disparity, using a rate of
depreciation or amortization derived from the depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to the
common basis of the property. If this contributed property is not amortizable, we will treat that portion as
non-amortizable. This method is consistent with the regulations under Section 743. This method, however, is arguably
inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6) and Treasury Regulation Section 1.197-2(g)(3),
neither of which is expected to directly apply to a material portion of our assets. To the extent this Section 743(b)
adjustment exceeds that amount, we will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations
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and legislative history. If we determine that this position cannot reasonably be taken, we may adopt a different
position which could result in lower annual depreciation or amortization deductions than would otherwise be
allowable to specified unitholders. See =~ Tax Treatment of Operations Uniformity of Units.

The allocation of the Section 743(b) adjustment among our assets must be made in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code. The IRS could seek to allocate some or all of any Section 743(b) adjustment to goodwill not so
allocated by us. Goodwill, as an intangible asset, is generally amortizable over a longer period of time or under a less
accelerated method than our tangible assets.

A Section 754 election is advantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his or her units is higher than the units share of
the aggregate tax basis of our assets immediately before the transfer. In that case, as a result of the election, the
transferee would have a higher tax basis in his or her share of our assets for purposes of calculating, among other
items, his or her depreciation and depletion deductions and share of any gain or loss on a sale of our assets.
Conversely, a Section 754 election is disadvantageous if the transferee s tax basis in his or her units is lower than the
units share of the aggregate tax basis of our assets immediately before the transfer. Thus, the fair market value of the
units may be affected either favorably or adversely by the election.

The calculations involved in the Section 754 election are complex and we will make them on the basis of assumptions
as to the value of our assets and other matters. There is no assurance that the determinations we make will not be
successfully challenged by the IRS and that the deductions resulting from them will not be reduced or disallowed
altogether. Should the IRS require a different basis adjustment to be made, and should, in our opinion, the expense of
compliance exceed the benefit of the election, we may seek permission from the IRS to revoke our Section 754
election. If permission is granted, a subsequent purchaser of units may be allocated more income than he would have
been allocated had the election not been revoked.

Notification Requirements. A unitholder who sells or exchanges units is required to notify us in writing of that sale or
exchange within 30 days after the sale or exchange. We are required to notify the IRS of that transaction and to furnish
information to the transferor and transferee. However, these reporting requirements do not apply to a sale by an
individual who is a citizen of the United States and who effects the sale or exchange through a broker. Additionally, a
transferor and a transferee of a unit will be required to furnish statements to the IRS, filed with their income tax
returns for the taxable year in which the sale or exchange occurred, that describe the amount of the consideration
received for the unit that is allocated to our goodwill or going concern value. Failure to satisfy these reporting
obligations may lead to the imposition of substantial penalties.

Dissolutions and Terminations

Upon our dissolution, our assets will be sold and any resulting gain or loss will be allocated among our general partner

and the unitholders. See  Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership Allocation of Income, Gain Loss and Deductions. We
will distribute all cash to our general partner and unitholders in liquidation in accordance with their positive capital

account balances. See Our Partnership Agreement Cash Distribution Policy Distributions of Cash on Liquidation in the
accompanying prospectus.

We will be considered to have terminated for tax purposes if there is a sale or exchange of 50% or more of the total
interests in our capital and profits within a 12-month period. Our termination would result in the closing of our taxable
year for all unitholders. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a fiscal year ending

December 31, the closing of our taxable year might result in more than 12 months of our taxable income or loss being
includable in his taxable income for the year of termination. See =~ Tax Treatment of Operations Accounting Method and
Taxable Year. We would be required to make new tax elections after a termination, including a new election under
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Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, and a termination could result in a deferral of our deductions for
depreciation. A termination could also result in penalties if we were unable to determine that the termination had
occurred. Moreover, a termination might either accelerate the application of, or subject us to, any tax legislation
enacted before the termination.
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Tax-Exempt Organizations and Other Investors

Ownership of units by employee benefit plans, other tax-exempt organizations, nonresident aliens, foreign
corporations, other foreign persons and regulated investment companies raises issues unique to those investors and, as
described below, may have substantially adverse tax consequences.

Employee benefit plans and most other organizations exempt from federal income tax, including individual retirement
accounts and other retirement plans, are subject to federal income tax on unrelated business taxable income. Virtually
all of our taxable income allocated to a unitholder which is a tax-exempt organization will be unrelated business
taxable income and thus will be taxable to that unitholder.

A regulated investment company or mutual fund is required to derive 90% or more of its gross income from interest,
dividends and gains from the sale of stocks or securities or foreign currency or specified related sources. The

American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 generally treats income from the ownership of a qualified publicly traded
partnership as qualified income to a regulated investment company. We expect that we will meet the definition of a
qualified publicly traded partnership. Accordingly, we anticipate that all of our income will be treated as qualified
income to a regulated investment company.

Non-resident aliens and foreign corporations, trusts or estates that own units will be considered to be engaged in
business in the United States on account of ownership of our units. As a consequence they will be required to file
federal tax returns reporting their share of our income, gain, loss or deduction and pay federal income tax at regular
rates on any net income or gain. Generally, a partnership is required to pay a withholding tax on the portion of the
partnership s income that is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business and which is
allocable to foreign partners. Under rules applicable to publicly traded partnerships, we will withhold at the highest
applicable effective tax rate on cash distributions made to foreign unitholders. Each foreign unitholder must obtain a
taxpayer identification number from the IRS and submit that number to our transfer agent on a Form W-8 BEN in
order to obtain credit for the taxes withheld.

Because a foreign corporation that owns units will be treated as engaged in a United States trade or business, that
corporation may be subject to United States branch profits tax at a rate of 30%, in addition to regular federal income

tax, on its share of our income and gain, as adjusted for changes in its U.S. net equity, which are effectively connected
with the conduct of a United States trade or business. That tax may be reduced or eliminated by an income tax treaty
between the United States and the country in which the foreign corporate unitholder is a qualified resident. In
addition, this type of unitholder is subject to special information reporting requirements under Section 6038C of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Under a ruling of the IRS, a foreign unitholder who sells or otherwise disposes of a unit will be subject to federal
income tax on gain realized on the disposition of that unit to the extent that this gain is effectively connected with a
United States trade or business of the foreign unitholder. Apart from the ruling, a foreign unitholder will not be taxed
or subject to withholding upon the disposition of a unit if he has owned less than 5% in value of the units during the
five-year period ending on the date of the disposition and if the units are regularly traded on an established securities
market at the time of the disposition.

Administrative Matters
Information Returns and Audit Procedures. We furnish to each unitholder, within 90 days after the close of each
calendar year, specific tax information, including a Schedule K-1, which describes his or her share of our income,

gain, loss and deduction for our preceding taxable year. In preparing this information, which is generally not reviewed
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by counsel, we take various accounting and reporting positions, some of which have been mentioned earlier, to
determine the unitholder s share of income, gain, loss and deduction. We cannot assure you that those accounting and
reporting positions will yield a result that conforms with the requirements of the
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Internal Revenue Code, regulations, or administrative interpretations of the IRS. We also cannot assure you that the
IRS will not successfully contend in court that those accounting and reporting positions are impermissible. Any
challenge by the IRS could negatively affect the value of the units.

The IRS may audit our federal income tax information returns. Adjustments resulting from any such audit may require
each unitholder to adjust a prior year s tax liability, and possibly may result in an audit of that unitholder s own return.
Any audit of a unitholder s return could result in adjustments not related to our returns as well as those related to our
returns.

Partnerships generally are treated as separate entities for purposes of federal tax audits, judicial review of
administrative adjustments by the IRS and tax settlement proceedings. The tax treatment of partnership items of
income, gain, loss and deduction are determined in a partnership proceeding rather than in separate proceedings with
the partners. The Internal Revenue Code provides for one partner to be designated as the tax matters partner for these
purposes. The partnership agreement appoints our general partner as our tax matters partner.

The tax matters partner will make some elections on our behalf and on behalf of unitholders. In addition, the tax
matters partner can extend the statute of limitations for assessment of tax deficiencies against unitholders for items in
our returns. The tax matters partner may bind a unitholder with less than a 1% profits interest in us to a settlement
with the IRS unless that unitholder elects, by filing a statement with the IRS, not to give that authority to the tax
matters partner. The tax matters partner may seek judicial review, by which all the unitholders are bound, of a final
partnership administrative adjustment and, if the tax matters partner fails to seek judicial review, judicial review may
be sought by any unitholder having at least a 1% interest in profits and by unitholders having in the aggregate at least
a 5% profits interest. However, only one action for judicial review will go forward, and each unitholder with an
interest in the outcome may participate.

A unitholder must file a statement with the IRS identifying the treatment of any item on his federal income tax return
that is not consistent with the treatment of the item on our return. Intentional or negligent disregard of the consistency
requirement may subject a unitholder to substantial penalties.

Nominee Reporting. Persons who hold an interest in us as a nominee for another person are required to furnish to us:

the name, address and taxpayer identification number of the beneficial owner and the nominee;

whether the beneficial owner is

a person that is not a United States person;

a foreign government, an international organization or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality of
either of the foregoing; or

a tax-exempt entity;
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the amount and description of units held, acquired or transferred for the beneficial owner; and

specific information including the dates of acquisitions and transfers, means of acquisitions and transfers,
and acquisition cost for purchases, as well as the amount of net proceeds from sales.
Brokers and financial institutions are required to furnish additional information, including whether they are United
States persons and specific information on units they acquire, hold or transfer for their own account. A penalty of $50
per failure, up to a maximum of $100,000 per calendar year, is imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for failure to
report that information to us. The nominee is required to supply the beneficial owner of the units with the information
furnished to us.

Reportable Transactions. If we were to engage in a reportable transaction, we (and possibly you and others) would be
required to make a detailed disclosure of the transaction to the IRS. A transaction may be a reportable transaction
based upon any of several factors, including the fact that it is a type of transaction publicly
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identified by the IRS as a listed transaction or that it produces certain kinds of losses in excess of $2 million. Our
participation in a reportable transaction could increase the likelihood that our federal income tax information return
(and possibly your tax return) is audited by the IRS. See Information Returns and Audit Procedures.

Moreover, if we were to participate in a reportable transaction with a significant purpose to avoid or evade tax, or in
any listed transaction, you may be subject to the following provisions of the Internal Revenue Code:

accuracy-related penalties with a broader scope, significantly narrower exceptions and potentially greater
amounts than described below at Accuracy-related Penalties,

for those persons otherwise entitled to deduct interest on federal tax deficiencies,
nondeductibility of interest on any resulting tax liability, and

in the case of a listed transaction, an extended statute of limitations.
We do not expect to engage in any reportable transactions.

Accuracy-related Penalties. An additional tax equal to 20% of the amount of any portion of an underpayment of tax
that is attributable to one or more specified causes, including negligence or disregard of rules or regulations,
substantial understatements of income tax and substantial valuation misstatements, is imposed by the Internal Revenue
Code. No penalty will be imposed, however, for portion of an underpayment if it is shown that there was a reasonable
cause for that portion and that the taxpayer acted in good faith regarding that portion.

A substantial understatement of income tax in any taxable year exists if the amount of the understatement exceeds the
greater of 10% of the tax required to be shown on the return for the taxable year or $5,000 ($10,000 for most
corporations). The amount of any understatement subject to penalty generally is reduced if any portion is attributable
to a position adopted on the return:

for which there is, or was, substantial authority or

as to which there is a reasonable basis and the pertinent facts of that position are disclosed on the return.
If any item of income, gain, loss or deduction allocated to unitholders might result in that kind of an understatement of
income for which no substantial authority exists, we must disclose the pertinent facts on our return. In addition, we
will make a reasonable effort to furnish sufficient information for unitholders to make adequate disclosure on their
returns to avoid liability for this penalty. More stringent rules apply to tax shelters, a term that in this context does not
appear to include us.

A substantial valuation misstatement exists if the value of any property, or the adjusted basis of any property, claimed
on a tax return is 150% or more of the amount determined to be the correct amount of the valuation or adjusted basis.
No penalty is imposed unless the portion of the underpayment attributable to a substantial valuation misstatement
exceeds $5,000. If the valuation claimed on a return is 200% or more than the current valuation, the penalty imposed
increases to 40%.
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Registration as a Tax Shelter. We registered as a tax shelter under the law in effect at the time of our initial public
offering and were assigned tax shelter registration number 99344000008. Issuance of a tax shelter registration number
to us does not indicate that investment in us or the claimed tax benefits have been reviewed, examined or approved by
the IRS. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 repealed the tax shelter registration rules and replaced them with a
new reporting regime. However, IRS Form 8271, as revised after the American Jobs Creation Act, nevertheless
requires a unitholder to continue to report our tax shelter registration number on the unitholder s tax return for any year
in which the unitholder claims any deduction, loss or other benefit, or reports any income, with respect to our common
units. The IRS also appears to take the position that a unitholder
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who sells or transfers our common units after the American Jobs Creation Act must continue to provide our tax shelter
registration number to the transferee. Unitholders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of
the tax shelter registration rules.

State, Local and Other Tax Considerations

In addition to federal income taxes, you will be subject to other taxes, including state and local income taxes,
unincorporated business taxes, and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that may be imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which we do business or own property. Although an analysis of those various taxes is not presented
here, each prospective unitholder should consider their potential impact on his or her investment in us. We currently
own property or do business in Colorado, Indiana, Michigan, New York, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee,
Texas and West Virginia. Each of these states, except Texas, currently imposes a personal income tax. We may also
own property or do business in other states in the future. A unitholder will be required to file state income tax returns
and to pay state income taxes in some or all of these states in which we do business or own property and may be
subject to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. In some states, tax losses may not produce a tax
benefit in the year incurred and also may not be available to offset income in subsequent taxable years. Some of the
states may require us, or we may elect, to withhold a percentage of income from amounts to be distributed to a
unitholder who is not a resident of the state. Withholding, the amount of which may be greater or less than a particular
unitholder s income tax liability to the state, generally does not relieve a nonresident unitholder from the obligation to
file an income tax return. Amounts withheld may be treated as if distributed to unitholders for purposes of determining
the amounts distributed by us. See  Tax Consequences of Ownership Entity-Level Collections. Based on current law
and our anticipated future operations, our general partner anticipates that any amounts required to be withheld will not
be material.

It is the responsibility of each unitholder to investigate the legal and tax consequences, under the laws of pertinent
states and localities, of his or her investment in us. Accordingly, each prospective unitholder should consult, and must
depend upon, his or her own tax counsel or other advisor with regard to those matters. Further, it is the responsibility
of each unitholder to file all state and local, as well as United States federal tax returns that may be required of him or
her. Ledgewood has not rendered an opinion on the state or local tax consequences of an investment in us.

Investment by Employee Benefit Plans

An investment in us by an employee benefit plan is subject to additional considerations because the investments of
these plans are subject to the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and restrictions
imposed by Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code. For these purposes the term employee benefit plan includes,
but is not limited to, qualified pension, profit-sharing and stock bonus plans, Keogh plans, simplified employee
pension plans and tax deferred annuities or IRAs established or maintained by an employer or employee organization.
Among other things, consideration should be given to:

whether the investment is prudent under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of ERISA;

whether, in making the investment, the plan will satisfy the diversification requirements of

Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA; and
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whether the investment will result in recognition of unrelated business taxable income by the plan and, if so,
the potential after-tax investment return.
The person with investment discretion with respect to the assets of an employee benefit plan, often called a fiduciary,
should determine whether an investment in us is authorized by the appropriate governing instrument and is a proper
investment for the plan.
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Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code prohibit employee benefit plans, and also IRAs
that are not considered part of an employee benefit plan, from engaging in specified transactions involving plan assets
with parties that are parties in interest under ERISA or disqualified persons under the Internal Revenue Code with
respect to the plan.

In addition to considering whether the purchase of common units is a prohibited transaction, a fiduciary of an
employee benefit plan should consider whether the plan will, by investing in us, be deemed to own an undivided
interest in our assets, with the result that our general partner also would be a fiduciary of the plan and our operations
would be subject to the regulatory restrictions of ERISA, including its prohibited transaction rules, as well as the
prohibited transaction rules of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Department of Labor regulations provide guidance with respect to whether the assets of an entity in which
employee benefit plans acquire equity interests would be deemed plan assets under some circumstances. Under these
regulations, an entity s assets would not be considered to be plan assets if, among other things,

the equity interests acquired by employee benefit plans are publicly offered securities, i.e., the equity
interests are widely held by 100 or more investors independent of the issuer and each other, freely
transferable and registered under some provisions of the federal securities laws;

the entity is an operating company, i.e., it is primarily engaged in the production or sale of a product or
service other than the investment of capital either directly or through a majority-owned subsidiary or
subsidiaries; or

there is no significant investment by benefit plan investors, which is defined to mean that less than 25% of
the value of each class of equity interest, disregarding some interests held by our general partner, its
affiliates, and some other persons, is held by the employee benefit plans referred to above, IRAs and other
employee benefit plans not subject to ERISA, including governmental plans.
Our assets should not be considered plan assets under these regulations because we satisfy the first requirement above.

Plan fiduciaries contemplating a purchase of common units should consult with their own counsel regarding the
consequences under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code in light of the serious penalties imposed on persons who
engage in prohibited transactions or other violations.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
We may sell the securities registered hereby through underwriters or dealers in firm commitment underwritings.

The securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account. The underwriters may resell the securities in
one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices
determined at the time of sale. The obligations of the underwriters to purchase the offered securities will be subject to
certain conditions. The underwriters will be obligated to purchase all the offered securities if any of the securities are
purchased. Any public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or re-allowed or paid to dealers may
be changed from time to time.

The debt securities, when first issued, will have no established trading market. Any underwriters to whom debt
securities are sold for public offering and sale may make a market in such debt securities, but such underwriters will
not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. No assurance can be
given as to the liquidity of the trading market for any such debt securities.

The debt securities of the series offered may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange. No assurances can
be given that there will be a market for the debt securities.

Underwriters and dealers that participate in the distribution of the securities may be underwriters as defined in the
Securities Act, and any discounts or commissions received by them from us and any profit on the resale of the
securities by them may be treated as underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. Any
underwriters will be identified and their compensation will be described in a prospectus supplement.

We may have agreements with the underwriters to indemnify them against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities
under the Securities Act, or to contribute with respect to payments which the underwriters may be required to make

because of those liabilities.

Underwriters and dealers or their affiliates may engage in transactions with, or perform services for, us or our
affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the validity of the securities being offered hereby
is being passed upon for us by Ledgewood, P.C.

EXPERTS

Our consolidated combined financial statements as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2012, and management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting (which is included in Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting)
incorporated by reference in this prospectus, have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the reports of
Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in
accounting and auditing.

The audited combined financial statements of Atlas Energy E&P Operations incorporated in this prospectus by
reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. for the year ended December 31, 2011
have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the report of Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered
public accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The Statements of Combined Revenues and Direct Operating Expenses of Oil and Gas Properties Acquired by Atlas
Resource Partners, L.P. for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2011, have been
incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent auditors, upon the authority
of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The audited financial statements of Titan Operating, LLC for each of the three years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2011, have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report of Rylander, Clay & Opitz
LLP, independent registered accounting firm, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The balance sheet of DTE Gas Resources, LLC as of December 31, 2011, and the statements of operations, equity and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so
incorporated by reference in reliance upon the report of Grant Thornton LLP, independent certified public
accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The Statements of Combined Revenues and Direct Expenses of Oil and Gas Properties acquired by Atlas Resource
Partners, L.P. from EP Energy for the period January 1, 2012 to May 24, 2012, the period May 25, 2012 to

December 31, 2012, and the year ended December 31, 2011, incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so
incorporated by reference in reliance upon the report of Grant Thornton LLP, independent public accountants, upon
the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
Set forth below are the expenses (other than underwriting discounts and commissions) we expect to pay in connection
with the issuance and distributions of the securities registered hereby.

Amount to be
Paid
Securities and Exchange Commission Registration fee
Printing expenses
Legal fees and expenses
Accounting fees and expenses
Blue Sky fees and expenses
Listing fees
Miscellaneous
TOTAL $

~
~—

¥ K K XK X X X

*  These fees are calculated based on an indeterminate number of issuances and amount of securities offered and,
accordingly, cannot be estimated at this time.

(1) To be deferred pursuant to Rule 456(b) and calculated in connection with the offering of securities under this
registration statement pursuant to Rule 457(r).

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Atlas Resource Partners, L.P.

Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. is organized under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Subject to any terms, conditions or restrictions set forth in the partnership agreement, Section 17-108 of the Delaware
Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act empowers a Delaware limited partnership to indemnify and hold harmless
any partner or other persons from and against all claims and demands whatsoever. Our partnership agreement provides

that we will indemnify the following persons, by reason of their status as such, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
in most circumstances, from and against all losses, claims, damages or similar events:

our general partner;

any departing general partner;
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any person who is or was an affiliate of a general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was a member, partner, officer, director employee, agent or trustee of our general
partner or any departing general partner or any affiliate of a general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was serving as an officer, director, employee, agent, fiduciary or trustee of the
Registrant or any of its subsidiaries, the general partner or any departing general partner, or any affiliate of
the Registrant, any of its subsidiaries, the general partner or any departing general partner;

any person who is or was serving at the request of the general partner, any departing general partner, or any
affiliate of the foregoing as a manager, managing member, officer, director, employee, agent, fiduciary or
trustee of another person; and

any person designated by our general partner as an indemnitee for purposes of our partnership agreement.
Unless we otherwise agree, our general partner will not be personally liable for, or have any obligation to contribute or
loan funds or assets to the registrant to enable us to effectuate, indemnification. We may purchase insurance against
liabilities asserted against and expenses incurred by persons for our activities, regardless of whether we would have
the power to indemnify the person against liabilities under our partnership agreement.
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To the fullest extent permitted by law, expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred by an indemnitee in
appearing at, participating in or defending any claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding will, from time to time, be
advanced by us, subject to certain conditions.

Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. maintains directors and officers liability insurance for itself and its subsidiaries.
Atlas Resource Finance Corporation, Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC and Delaware Guarantors

Each of Atlas Resource Finance Corporation, Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC, Resource Energy,
LLC, ARP Barnett, LLC, ARP Barnett Pipeline, LLC, Atlas Noble, LLC, REI-NY, LLC, Resource Well Services,
LLC, ARP Production Company, LLC and ARP Mid-Continent, LLC are organized under the laws of the State of
Delaware.

Section 18-108 of the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act provides that, subject to such standards and
restrictions, if any, as are set forth in its limited liability company agreement, a Delaware limited liability company
may, and shall have the power to, indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other person from and
against any and all claims and demands whatsoever.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a corporation may indemnify any person who
was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the
corporation) by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, or
is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding
if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe
the person s conduct was unlawful.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law also provides that a corporation may indemnify any person
who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit by or
in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses
(including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the defense or settlement
of such action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any
claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only
to the extent that the Court of Chancery of Delaware or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case,
such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery of Delaware
or such other court shall deem proper.

To the extent that a present or former director or officer of a corporation has been successful on the merits or

otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to above, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter
therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred
by such person in connection therewith; provided that indemnification provided for by Section 145 or granted

pursuant thereto shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which the indemnified party may be entitled; and
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venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any
such capacity or arising out of such person s status as such whether or not the corporation would have the power to
indemnify such person against such liabilities under Section 145.

In addition, Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law permits Delaware corporations to include a
provision in their certificates of incorporation eliminating or limiting the personal liability of a director to the
corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that such
provisions shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director: (i) for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to the
corporation or its stockholders; (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of law; (iii) for unlawful payment of dividends or unlawful stock purchases or redemptions; or

(iv) for any transactions from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

The limited liability company agreements of each of Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC, ARP Barnett,
LLC, ARP Barnett Pipeline, LLC, ARP Production Company, LLC and ARP Mid-Continent, LLC provide that the
company s member shall, and any employee or agent of the company or employee or agent of the member in
connection with services to the company may, in the member s absolute discretion, be indemnified by the company to
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

The limited liability company agreements of each of Resource Energy, LLC, Atlas Noble, LLC, REI-NY, LLC and
Resource Well Services, LLC provide that subject to any limitations and conditions set forth in the limited liability
company agreement, the company shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law (as such law may be
amended), indemnify any person involved with any proceeding or investigation by reason of the fact that such person
is or was a member or officer of the company, against all damages, expenses and liabilities (including punitive
damages and reasonable attorneys fees) actually incurred by such person. Each limited liability company agreement
acknowledges that the indemnification provided could involve indemnification for negligence or under theories of
strict liability, and prohibits indemnification of any officer to the extent any proceeding, damages, expenses or
liabilities result from Improper Conduct (as defined in the applicable agreement) on the part of such officer.

The bylaws of Atlas Resource Finance Corporation provide that the company shall indemnify any person who was or
is party or is threatened to be made a party to action, suit or proceeding, by reason of the fact that such person is or
was a director or officer of the company or a predecessor corporation, or serving at the request of the company or such
predecessor corporation, as a director or officer of another entity or as administrator, trustee or other fiduciary of an
employee benefit plan, against actual and reasonable expenses (including attorneys fees), liability and loss incurred by
the person in connection with such proceeding, except to the extent prohibited by applicable law. The bylaws also
require that the company advance expenses incurred by a director or officer in defending a proceeding. The
indemnification and advance of expenses under the bylaws are not exclusive of any other rights to which an
indemnitee may be entitled. The bylaws also empower the board to authorize the company to (1) purchase insurance
on behalf of the company and others to the extent not prohibited by statute, (2) create any fund of any nature to secure
indemnification obligations and (3) give other indemnification to the extent permitted by statute.

Pennsylvania Guarantors

Each of Atlas Energy Tennessee, LLC, Atlas Resources, LLC and Viking Resources, LLC is organized under the laws
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Section 8945 of the Pennsylvania Limited Liability Company Law of 1994 provides that a Pennsylvania limited

liability company may and shall have the power to indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other
person from and against any and all claims and demands whatsoever; provided, however, that a limited liability
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person makes an undertaking to repay the company if it is determined that such person is not entitled to
indemnification. Finally, under subsection (f), a limited liability company must indemnify its members and managers
for payments made, and personal liabilities reasonably incurred, in the ordinary and proper conduct of its business or
for the preservation of its business or property.

The operating agreement of Atlas Energy Tennessee, LLC provides that the company shall indemnify its member and
such other persons identified by the member as entitled to indemnification, for all costs, losses, liabilities and damages
paid or accrued by the member or any such other person in connection with the business of the company, to the fullest
extent provided by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. In addition, the company may advance costs of
defense of any proceeding to its member or any such other person upon receipt by the company of an undertaking to
repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that the member or such other person is not entitled to
indemnification by the company.

The operating agreements of each of Atlas Resources, LLC and Viking Resources, LLC each provide that subject to
any limitations and conditions set forth in the operating agreement, the company shall, to the fullest extent permitted

by applicable law (as such law may be amended), indemnify any person involved with any proceeding or investigation
by reason of the fact that such person is or was a member or officer of the company, against all damages, expenses and
liabilities (including punitive damages and reasonable attorneys fees) actually incurred by such person. Each operating
agreement acknowledges that the indemnification provided could involve indemnification for negligence or under
theories of strict liability, and prohibits indemnification of any officer to the extent any proceeding, damages,

expenses or liabilities result from Improper Conduct (as defined in the applicable agreement) on the part of such

officer.

Oklahoma Guarantors
ARP Oklahoma LLC is organized under the laws of the State of Oklahoma.

Section 2003 of the Oklahoma Limited Liability Company Act provides that an Oklahoma limited liability company
may indemnify and hold harmless any member, agent, or employee from and against any and all claims and demands
whatsoever, except in the case of action or failure to act by the member, agent, or employee which constitutes willful
misconduct or recklessness, and subject to the standards and restrictions, if any, set forth in the articles of organization
or operating agreement. Section 2017 of the Oklahoma Limited Liability Company Act provides that the articles of
organization or operating agreement of a Oklahoma limited liability company may eliminate or limit the personal
liability of a member or manager for monetary damages for breach of any fiduciary duty, and provide for
indemnification of a member or manager for judgments, settlements, penalties, fines or expenses incurred in any
proceeding because the person is or was a member or manager, except that any such provisions may not limit or
eliminate the liability of a manager for (1) any breach of the manager s duty of loyalty to the limited liability company
or its members; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation
of law; or (3) any transaction from which the manager derived an improper personal benefit.

The limited liability company agreement of ARP Oklahoma LLC provides that the company s member shall, and any
employee or agent of the company or employee or agent of the member in connection with services to the company
may, in the member s absolute discretion, be indemnified by the company to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law.

Texas Guarantors

Atlas Barnett, LLC is organized under the laws of the State of Texas.
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applicable to entities formed under the laws of the State of Texas. Section 8.002 of the TBOC provides, however, that
unless a Texas limited liability company adopts the general indemnification provisions of Chapter 8 of the TBOC,
described below, those provisions are not applicable to a Texas limited liability company.
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Pursuant to Section 8.051 of the TBOC, an enterprise must indemnify a governing person, former governing person or
delegate against reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with a proceeding in which the
person was a respondent because the person is or was a governing person if the person is wholly successful, on the
merits or otherwise, in the defense of the proceeding. Pursuant to Sections 8.101 and 8.102 of the TBOC, any
governing person, former governing person or delegate of a Texas enterprise may be indemnified against judgments
and reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with a proceeding, in which such person was a
respondent if it is determined, in accordance with Section 8.103 of the TBOC, that: (i) the person acted in good faith,
(ii) reasonably believed (a) in the case of conduct in the person s official capacity, that the person s conduct was in the
enterprise s best interests or (b) in any other case, that the person s conduct was not opposed to the enterprise s best
interests, (iii) in the case of a criminal proceeding, such person did not have a reasonable cause to believe that the
person s conduct was unlawful and (iv) that the indemnification should be paid. Indemnification of a person who is
found to be liable to the enterprise is limited to reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with
the proceeding and does not include judgments, penalties or fines, except for certain circumstances where
indemnification cannot be given at all. Pursuant to Section 8.105 of the TBOC, an enterprise may indemnify an
officer, employee or agent to the same extent that indemnification is required under the TBOC for a governing person
or as provided in the enterprise s governing documents, general or specific action of the enterprise s governing
authority, contract or by other means.

For Texas limited liability companies, in addition to the provisions cited above, Section 101.402 of the TBOC
provides Texas limited liability companies with broad authority to (1) indemnify any person, including a member,
manager, officer of, or assignee of a limited liability interest in, a limited liability company, (2) pay in advance or
reimburse expenses incurred by any such person and (3) establish and maintain insurance or another arrangement to
indemnify or hold harmless any such person.

The operating agreement of Atlas Barnett, LL.C provides that, subject to any limitations of applicable law and set forth
in the operating agreement, the company s member and any manager, director, officer, employee or agent will not be
liable to the company for, and will be indemnified against, any loss, liability, damage, claim or reasonable expense
(including attorneys fees) arising from proceedings in which such person may be involved by reason of being or
having been a member or manager, director, officer, employee or agent of the company, or by reason of its
involvement in the management of the company s affairs, provided that such liabilities do not arise out of bad faith,
fraud, intentional misconduct or knowing and willful breach of obligations under the operating agreement. The
company shall advance expenses (including attorneys fees) incurred in defending such proceedings, subject to certain
conditions and upon receipt by the company of an undertaking to repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that
the member or such other person is not entitled to indemnification by the company.

Any indemnification under the operating agreement will only be out of the company s assets. The operating agreement
also provides that the company may purchase insurance against liabilities asserted against and expenses incurred by
persons for its activities, regardless of whether it would have the power to indemnify the person against liabilities
under the agreement. Finally, the operating agreement provides that, if the member or any officer exercises powers or
performs duties under the operating agreement through agents, the member or officer shall not be responsible for
misconduct or negligence on the part of any such agent appointed in good faith.

Indiana Guarantors
Atlas Energy Indiana, LLC is organized under the laws of the state of Indiana.

Section 23-18-2-2 of the Indiana Business Flexibility Act provides that, unless the limited liability company s articles
of organization provide otherwise, every limited liability company has power to indemnify and hold harmless any
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misconduct or recklessness and subject to any standards and restrictions set forth in a written operating agreement.
Section 23-18-4-4 of the Indiana Business Flexibility Act provides that a written operating agreement may provide for
indemnification of a member or manager for monetary damages for judgments, settlements, penalties, fines, or
expenses incurred in a proceeding to which a person is a party because the person is or was a member or manager.
Section 23-18-4-2(a) of the Indiana Business Flexibility Act provides that, unless otherwise provided in a written
operating agreement, a member or manager cannot be liable for damages to the limited liability company or to the
members of the limited liability company for any action taken or failure to act on behalf of the limited liability
company, unless the act or omission constitutes willful misconduct or recklessness.

The operating agreement of Atlas Energy Indiana, LLC provides that the company shall indemnify any person
involved with any proceeding or investigation by reason of the fact that such person is or was a member, officer,
manager, employee or agent of the company, or serving at the request of the company, against all damages, expenses
and liabilities (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person if the member determines
that such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the
best interest of the company, and with respect to any criminal action proceeding, has no reasonable cause to believe
such person s conduct was unlawful.

Ohio Guarantors
Atlas Energy Ohio, LLC is organized under the laws of the state of Ohio.

Under Section 1705.32 of the Ohio Revised Code, an Ohio limited liability company may indemnify a manager,
member, partner, officer, employee, agent or certain other persons against expenses, including attorney s fees,
judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred in connection with an action, suit
or proceeding, if such manager, member, partner, officer, employee, agent or other person acted in good faith and in a
manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the company and, in connection with any
criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. A limited liability
company may also indemnify a manager, officer, employee, agent or certain other persons against expenses, including
attorney s fees, actually and reasonably incurred in connection with an action or suit by or in the right of such
company, if such manager, officer, employee, agent or other person acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably
believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the company.

The operating agreement of Atlas Energy Ohio, LLC provides that subject to any limitations and conditions set forth

in the operating agreement, the company shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law (as such law may be
amended), indemnify any person involved with any proceeding or investigation by reason of the fact that such person
is or was a member or officer of the company, against all damages, expenses and liabilities (including punitive
damages and reasonable attorneys fees) actually incurred by such person. The operating agreement acknowledges that
the indemnification provided could involve indemnification for negligence or under theories of strict liability, and
prohibits indemnification of any officer to the extent any proceeding, damages, expenses or liabilities result from
Improper Conduct (as defined in the applicable agreement) on the part of such officer.

Colorado Guarantors

Atlas Energy Colorado, LLC is organized under the laws of the state of Colorado.

Section 7-80-407 of the Colorado Limited Liability Company Act provides that a limited liability company shall
reimburse a person who is or was a member or manager for payments made, and indemnify a person who is or was a

person or manager for liabilities incurred by the person, in the ordinary course of business of the limited liability
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The limited liability company agreement of Atlas Energy Colorado, LLC is silent regarding indemnification.
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Item 16. Exhibits

The Exhibits furnished as part of this registration statement on Form S-3 are identified in the Exhibit Index
immediately following the signature pages of this registration statement. Such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 17. Undertakings
(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the
most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental
change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or
decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was
registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in
the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume
and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the
Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement; and

(ii1) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) of this section do not apply if the information
required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or
furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to section 13 or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the

offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:

(A) Each prospectus filed by a registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration
statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and

(B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5) or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement

in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of
providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and
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securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement
made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document
incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement will, as to the purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or
modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration
statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.

(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of a registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in
the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of
an undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the
securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following
communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell
such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of an undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed
pursuant to Rule 424;

(i) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of an undersigned registrant or used
or referred to by an undersigned registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about an
undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of an undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities
Act of 1933, each filing of such registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be
the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(h) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrants pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against
such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act
and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement on
Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the city of Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania, on February 3, 2014.

ATLAS RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P.

By: ATLAS RESOURCE PARTNERS GP,
LLC,

its general partner

By: /s/ Sean P. McGrath
Sean P. McGrath

Chief Financial Officer
KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that the persons whose signatures appear below, constitute and
appoint Jonathan Z. Cohen and Sean P. McGrath, and each of them, as their true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and
agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for them and in their names, places and steads, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and
any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and the other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to
do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all
intents and purposes as they might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and conforming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement on Form S-3 has
been signed below by the following persons in the capacities indicated on February 3, 2014.

Signature Title at Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC
/s/  EbpwaRrD E. COHEN Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Edward E. Cohen (principal executive officer)
/s/ JONATHAN Z. COHEN Vice Chairman

Jonathan Z. Cohen

/s/ MATTHEW A. JONES President and Director
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Matthew A. Jones
/s/ SEAN P. MCGRATH Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)
Sean P. McGrath
/s/  JEFFREY M. SLOTTERBACK Chief Accounting Officer (principal accounting officer)

Jeffrey M. Slotterback

/s/ Mark D. Schumacher Chief Operating Officer
Mark D. Schumacher
/s/  Harvey G. Magarick Director
Harvey G. Magarick
/s/  DeANN CRAIG Director
DeAnn Craig
/s/ JErFrREY C. KEY Director
Jeffrey C. Key
/s/ BRUCE M. WOLF Director
Bruce M. Wolf
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement on
Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the city of Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania, on February 3, 2014.

ATLAS RESOURCE FINANCE
CORPORATION

By: /s/ Sean P. McGrath
Sean P. McGrath

Chief Financial Officer
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that the persons whose signatures appear below, constitute and
appoint Sean P. McGrath, Matthew A. Jones and Lisa Washington, and each of them, as their true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for them and in their names, places and
steads, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this
registration statement, and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and the other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as they might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
conforming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 3, 2014.

Signature Title

/s/ Edward E. Cohen Chief Executive Officer and President
Edward E. Cohen (principal executive officer)

/s/ Jonathan Z. Cohen Chairman of the Board

Jonathan Z. Cohen

/s/ Sean P. McGrath Chief Financial Officer and Director
Sean P. McGrath (principal financial and accounting officer)
/s/ Matthew A. Jones Senior Vice President and Director

Matthew A. Jones
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement on
Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the city of Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania, on February 3, 2014.

ATLAS ENERGY HOLDINGS

OPERATING COMPANY, LLC

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS RESOURCES, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

VIKING RESOURCES, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

RESOURCE ENERGY, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member
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By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS NOBLE, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner
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REI-NY, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS ENERGY INDIANA, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS ENERGY TENNESSEE, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS ENERGY OHIO, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS ENERGY COLORADO, LLC

By:
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Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner
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RESOURCE WELL SERVICES, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ARP BARNETT, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ARP BARNETT PIPELINE, LLC
By: ARP Barnett LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ATLAS BARNETT, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its
general partner

ARP PRODUCTION COMPANY, LLC
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By:

By:

- Form S-3ASR

Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

: Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC, its

general partner
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ARP MID-CONTINENT, LLC

By: Atlas Energy Holdings Operating
Company, LLC, its sole member

By: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., its sole
member

By: ATLAS RESOURCE PARTNERS GP,
LLC, its general partner

By: /s/ Sean P. McGrath
Sean P. McGrath

Chief Financial Officer
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that the persons whose signatures appear below, constitute and
appoint Sean P. McGrath, Matthew A. Jones and Lisa Washington, and each of them, as their true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for them and in their names, places and
steads, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this
registration statement, and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and the other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as they might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
conforming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 3, 2014.

Signature Title at Atlas Resource Partners GP, LL.C
/s/ Edward E. Cohen Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Edward E. Cohen (principal executive officer)

/s/ Jonathan Z. Cohen Vice Chairman

Jonathan Z. Cohen

/s/ Sean P. McGrath Chief Financial Officer

Sean P. McGrath (principal financial officer)
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/s/ Matthew A. Jones President and Director

Matthew A. Jones

/s/ Jeffrey M. Slotterback Chief Accounting Officer
Jeffrey M. Slotterback (principal accounting officer)
/s/ Mark D. Schumacher Chief Operating Officer

Mark D. Schumacher
/s/ Jeffrey C. Key Director

Jeffrey C. Key
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Signature Title at Atlas Resource Partners GP, LLC
/s/ Bruce M. Wolf Director

Bruce M. Wolf

/s/ DeAnn Craig Director
DeAnn Craig
/s/ Harvey G. Magarick Director

Harvey G. Magarick
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Form of Underwriting Agreement*

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 9, 2013, by and among EP Energy E&P Company, L.P.,
EPE Nominee Corp. and Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. The schedules to the Purchase and Sale Agreement
have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b) of Regulation S-K. A copy of the omitted schedules will be
furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission supplementally upon request (1)

Assignment & Assumption Agreement, dated as of June 9, 2013, between Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. and
Atlas Energy, L.P. (1)

Atlas Resources, LLC  Certificate of Organization, as amended (2)

Atlas Resources, LLC Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (2)
Atlas Resource Finance Corporation Bylaws (2)

Atlas Resource Finance Corporation  Certificate of Incorporation (2)

ARP Barnett Pipeline, LLC  Certificate of Formation (2)

ARP Barnett Pipeline, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)

ARP Barnett, LLC Certificate of Formation (2)

ARP Barnett, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)

ARP Oklahoma, LLC Articles of Organization (2)

ARP Oklahoma, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)

ARP Production Company, LLC  Certificate of Formation (2)

ARP Production Company, LLC Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
Atlas Barnett, LLC Certificate of Formation, as amended (2)

Atlas Barnett, LLC  Second Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (2)
Atlas Energy Colorado, LLC  Articles of Organization (2)

Atlas Energy Colorado, LLC  Operating Arrangement (2)

Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC  Certificate of Formation (2)
Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC  Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
Atlas Energy Indiana, LLC  Certificate of Organization (2)

Atlas Energy Indiana, LLC  Operating Agreement (2)

Atlas Energy Ohio, LLC Certificate of Organization, as amended (2)

Atlas Energy Ohio, LLC Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (2)
Atlas Energy Tennessee, LLC Certificate of Organization, as amended (2)

Atlas Energy Tennessee, LLC Operating Agreement (2)
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3.25 Atlas Noble, LLC Certificate of Formation, as amended (2)

3.26 Atlas Noble, LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
3.27 REI NY,LLC Certificate of Formation (2)

3.28 REI NY,LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
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3.29
3.30
3.31
3.32
3.33
3.34
3.35
3.36
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9
4.10

4.11
4.12
4.13
4.14
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Resource Energy, LLC  Certificate of Formation (2)

Resource Energy, LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
Resource Well Services, LLC Certificate of Formation (2)

Resource Well Services, LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)
Viking Resources, LLC Certificate of Organization, as amended (2)

Viking Resources, LLC Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (2)

ARP Mid-Continent, LLC Certificate of Formation (2)

ARP Mid-Continent, LLC  Limited Liability Company Agreement (2)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2012, among Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. and the
various parties listed therein (3)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 25, 2012, among Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. and the
various parties listed therein (4)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2012, between Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association and the lenders named in the Credit Agreement dated May 16, 2012 by
and among Atlas Energy, L.P. and the lenders named therein (5)

Indenture dated as of January 23, 2013 among Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LL.C, Atlas
Resource Finance Corporation, Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., the subsidiaries named therein and U.S. Bank
National Association (6)

Indenture dated as of July 30, 2013, by and between Atlas Resource Escrow Corporation and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (7)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 31, 2013, by and among Atlas Resource Partners, L.P., Atlas
Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC, Atlas Resource Finance Corporation, the guarantors named
therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (7)

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 31, 2013, by and among Atlas Resource Partners, L.P.,
Atlas Energy Holdings Operating Company, LLC, Atlas Resource Finance Corporation, the guarantors
named therein and Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., for itself and on behalf of the Initial Purchasers (7)

Certificate of Designation of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other
Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions thereof of Class C Convertible Preferred
Units, dated as of July 31, 2013 (8)

Warrant to Purchase Common Units (8)

Certificate of Designation of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other
Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions thereof of Class B Preferred Units, dated as
of July 25, 2013 (4)

Form of Senior Indenture
Form of Senior Debt Security*
Form of Subordinated Indenture

Form of Subordinated Debt Security*
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4.15 Form of Preferred Unit Certificate™

4.16 Form of Subordinated Unit Certificate™

4.17 Form of Warrant Agreement*

5.1 Opinion of Ledgewood, P.C. as to the legality of the securities being registered
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8.1 Opinion of Ledgewood, P.C. as to tax matters

12.1 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (1)
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

23.2 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

233 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

234 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

23.5 Consent of KPMG LLP

23.6 Consent of Wright and Company, Inc.

23.7 Consent of Rylander, Clay & Opitz LLP

23.8 Consent of Ledgewood (contained in Exhibit 5.1)

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature page hereto)
25.1 Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of Trustee for Senior Debt Securities**
25.2 Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of Trustee for Subordinated Debt Securities**

*  To be filed, if necessary, as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K or in a post-effective amendment to this
registration statement

**  To be filed, if necessary, pursuant to Rule 305(b)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act

(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 10, 2013.

(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-189741).

(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2012.

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2012.

(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 25, 2013.

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2013.
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(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 6, 2013.

-LEFT: Opt; MARGIN-RIGHT: Opt" align="left">Metropolitan Transportation Authority, New York, Transportation

Revenue Bonds,

Taxable Build America Bonds, Series 2010B-1(a)

A

See notes to financial statements.

6.55%
11/15/2031
N/A

6,240,950
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Principal

Amount

10,000,000

5,000,000

1,950,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

1,230,000

Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued

Description

New York (continued )

Westchester County Health Care
Corporation, Revenue Bonds, Taxable
Build America

Bonds, Series 2010(a)(j)

Ohio - 5.3%

American Municipal Power, Inc.,
Combined Hydroelectric Projects Revenue
Bonds,

New Clean Renewable Energy Bonds,
Series 2010C(j)

Cuyahoga County, Ohio, Hospital Revenue
Bonds, The Metrohealth System, Build
America Bonds, Taxable, Series
2009B(a)(j)

Madison Local School District, Richland
County, Ohio, School Improvement,
Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010A(a)(j)

Madison Local School District, Richland
County, Ohio, School Improvement,
Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010A(a)(j)

Madison Local School District, Richland
County, Ohio, School Improvement,
Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010A(a)(j)

Madison Local School District, Richland
County, Ohio, School Improvement,
Taxable

Qualified School Construction Bonds,
Series 2010B(j)

Toronto City School District, Ohio,
Qualified School Construction Bonds,
General

Obligation Bonds(j)

Table of Contents

Rating Coupon
k)

BBB 8.57%
A 7.33%
A- 8.22%
AA 6.90%
AA 7.15%
AA 7.30%
AA 6.65%
AA 7.00%

May 31, 2012

Optional
Call

Maturity Provisions**

11/01/2040

02/15/2028

02/15/2040

12/01/2034

12/01/2039

12/01/2043

12/01/2029

12/01/2028

Value

N/A $12,230,000

N/A

N/A

12/01/20 @
100

12/01/20 @
100

12/01/20 @
100

12/01/20 @
100

12/01/20 @
100

24,386,400

6,517,300

2,433,873

2,760,900

2,749,375

2,747,850

2,958,450

1,383,652
21,551,400
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4,865,000

7,500,000

2,500,000

5,000,000

3,490,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

2,155,000

7,500,000
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Pennsylvania — 4.3%

Lebanon, Pennsylvania, Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Taxable Build America Bonds,
Series

B of 2010(a)(j)

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, School District,
Taxable Qualified School Construction
Bonds, Series D

School District of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, General Obligation Bonds,
Series

2011A, Qualified School Construction
Bonds - (Federally Taxable - Direct
Subsidy)(j)

South Carolina — 1.5%

Horry County, South Carolina, Taxable
Airport Revenue Bonds, Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds, Series
2010B(a)(j)

South Dakota — 1.0%
Pierre, South Dakota, Taxable Electric

Revenue Bonds, Recovery Zone Economic

Development Bonds, Series 2010C(a)(j)

Texas — 5.8%

Dallas, Texas, Convention Center Hotel
Development Corporation, Hotel Revenue
Bonds, Taxable Build America Bonds,
Series 2009B(a)(j)

El Paso, Texas, Combination Tax and
Revenue Certification of Obligation,
Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010B(a)

Vermont — 2.7%
Vermont State Colleges, Revenue Bonds,

Taxable Build America Bonds, Series
2010B(a)(j)

Vermont State Colleges, Revenue Bonds,
Taxable Build America Bonds, Series
2010B(a)(j)

Table of Contents

A+

A+

A2

A+

AA

A+

A+

7.14%

6.85%

6.00%

7.33%

7.50%

7.09%

6.70%

6.10%

7.21%

12/15/2035

09/01/2029

09/01/2030

07/01/2040

12/15/2040

01/01/2042

08/15/2036

07/01/2025

07/01/2040

06/15/20 @
100

N/A

N/A

N/A

12/15/19 @
100

N/A

08/15/20 @
100

07/01/20 @
100

07/01/20 @
100

5,483,244

9,464,625

2,748,325
17,696,194

5,960,500

3,925,692

12,022,900

11,564,700
23,587,600

2,376,469

8,561,025
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10,937,494

Washington — 9.7%
5,000,000 Anacortes, Washington, Utility System
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Build
America
Bonds, Series 2010B(a)(j) AA-  648% 12/01/2030 12/01/20 @ 5,701,900
100
2,000,000 Auburn, Washington, Utility System
Revenue Bonds, Taxable Build America
Bonds,
Series 2010B(a)(j) AA 6.40% 12/01/2030 12/01/20 @ 2,322,840
100

See notes to financial statements.
16 | GBAB | GUGGENHEIM BUILD AMERICA BONDS MANAGED
DURATION TRUST ANNUAL REPORT

Table of Contents 145



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued

Principal

Amount

$ 5,000,000

5,800,000

5,000,000

3,325,000

6,675,000

10,000,000

200,000

150,997
2,291,098

51,719

Description Rating Coupon

*

Washington (continued)

Central Washington University, System
Revenue Bonds, 2010, Taxable Build
America

Bonds, Series B(a)(j) Al
Public Hospital District No. 1, King

County, Washington, Valley Medical

Center,

Hospital Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series

2010B(2)(j) BBB+

Washington State Convention Center

Public Facilities District, Lodging Tax

Bonds,

Taxable Build America Bonds, Series
2010B(a) A+
Washington State University, Housing and
Dining System Revenue Bonds, Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010B(a)(j) A+
Washington State University, Housing and
Dining System Revenue Bonds, Taxable

Build America Bonds, Series 2010B(a)(j) A+

West Virginia — 3.4%

State of West Virginia, Higher Education
Policy Commission, Revenue Bonds,
Federally Taxable Build America Bonds

2010, Series B(a) A+

Total Municipal Bonds — 110.6%
(Cost $378,888,982)

Corporate Bonds — 8.4%
Advertising — 0.0%***
Sitel, LLC / Sitel Finance Corp.(b) B

Airlines — 1.1%
Atlas Air 1999-1 Pass-Through Trust,

Series 991A, Class A-1 NR

Atlas Air 2000-1 Class A Pass Through

Trust, Series 2000-1, Class A NR
NR

Table of Contents

6.50%

8.00%

6.79%

7.10%

7.40%

7.65%

11.00%

7.20%

8.71%
6.88%

Maturity

05/01/2030

06/15/2040

07/01/2040

04/01/2032

04/01/2041

04/01/2040

08/01/2017

01/02/2019

01/02/2019
04/02/2014

May 31, 2012

Optional
Call

Provisions** Value

N/A$ 5,790,850
06/15/20 @

100 6,603,822

N/A 6,221,250

N/A 4,248,486

N/A 8,828,088

39,717,236

N/A 14,138,800

452,278,614

08/01/14 @ 194,000
106

N/A 150,997

N/A 2,291,098

N/A 51,718
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2,000,000

160,000

2,000,000

100,000

2,200,000

548,000

150,000

550,000

275,000

200,000
100,000
500,000

100,000
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Atlas Air 99-1 Class A-2 Pass Through
Trust, Series 991A, Class A-2
Delta Air Lines 2011-1 Class B

Pass-Through Trust, Series 2011-1, Class

B(b)
Global Aviation Holdings, Inc.(c)

Building Materials — 0.4%
Cemex SAB de CV (Mexico)(b)(j)

Coal — 0.0%***
Penn Virginia Resource Partners, LP /

Penn Virginia Resource Finance Corp.
II(b)

Commercial Services — 0.5%
DynCorp International, Inc.(j)

Computers — 0.2%
Compucom Systems, Inc.(b)(j)

Stream Global Services, Inc.

Distribution & Wholesale — 0.1%
Baker & Taylor, Inc.(b)(j)

INTCOMEX, Inc.(j)

Diversified Financial Services — 0.2%
Jefferies Group, Inc.

LCP Dakota Fund, Series Al

McGuire Air Force Base/Fort Dix
Privatized Military Housing Project(b)
Nationstar Mortgage, LLC / Nationstar
Capital Corp.(b)

See notes to financial statements.
GBAB | GUGGENHEIM BUILD AMERICA BONDS MANAGED DURATION TRUST ANNUAL
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BB 7.13%
D 14.00%
B- 9.00%
B 8.38%
B- 10.38%
B 12.50%
B+ 11.25%

CCC+ 11.50%

B- 13.25%
BBB 6.88%
NR  10.75%
AA-  561%
B+ 9.63%

10/15/2014
08/15/2013

01/11/2018

06/01/2020

07/01/2017

10/01/2015

10/01/2014

07/01/2013

12/15/2014

04/15/2021
01/16/2014

09/15/2051

05/01/2019

N/A
08/15/12 @
111

01/11/15 @
105

06/01/16 @
104

07/01/14 @
105

10/01/12 @
103
10/01/12 @
106

07/06/12 @
100
12/15/12 @
107

N/A
N/A

N/A

05/01/15 @
107

REPORT | 17

2,032,500
51,200

4,577,513

1,660,000

100,000

1,886,500

571,290
154,875

726,165

324,500
280,500
605,000
193,000

98,171
454,610

104,000
849,781
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Principal

Amount

2,244,225

1,000,000

1,600,000
1,810,000

1,000,000

2,009,000

750,000

325,000

423,503

150,000

4,250,000

75,000

100,000
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued

Description Rating Coupon
k

Engineering & Construction — 0.6%

Alion Science and Technology Corp.(i)(j) B-  12.00%

Alion Science and Technology Corp. CCC- 10.25%

Entertainment — 1.2%

Diamond Resorts Corp. B-  12.00%

Lions Gate Entertainment, Inc.(b)(j) B 10.25%

WMG Acquisition Corp. B- 11.50%

Food - 0.5%

Bumble Bee Acquisition Corp.(b)(j) B 9.00%

Health Care Services — 0.4%

Apria Healthcare Group, Inc.(j) BB 11.25%

OnCure Holdings, Inc.(j) B- 11.75%

Symbion, Inc.(d) CCC+ 11.00%

Symbion, Inc. B 8.00%

Internet — 1.0%

GXS Worldwide, Inc.(j) B 9.75%

Leisure Time — 0.0%***

Sabre, Inc.(b) B 8.50%

Lodging — 0.0%***

Caesars Entertainment Operating Co., Inc.(b) B 8.50%

Table of Contents

May 31, 2012

Optional
Call

Maturity Provisions**

11/01/2014

02/01/2015

08/15/2018

11/01/2016

10/01/2018

12/15/2017

11/01/2014

05/15/2017

08/23/2015

06/15/2016

06/15/2015

05/15/2019

02/15/2020

Value

04/01/13 @ $2,064,687

105
02/01/13 @
100

08/15/14 @
106
11/01/13 @
105
10/01/14 @
109

12/15/14 @
105

11/01/12 @
103
05/15/14 @
106
08/23/12 @
103
06/15/14 @
104

06/15/13 @
102

05/15/15 @
106

02/15/16 @
104

400,000

2,464,687

1,724,000
1,970,638
1,065,000

4,759,638

1,993,932

769,688

239,687

410,798

146,250

1,566,423

4,122,500

74,437

99,625

149



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Machinery-Diversified — 0.1%

250,000 Tempel Steel Co.(b) B 12.00% 08/15/2016 02/15/14 @ 242,500
109
Mining — 0.1%
100,000 Kaiser Aluminum Corp.(b) BB- 8.25% 06/01/2020 06/01/16 @ 100,500
104
400,000 Midwest Vanadium Pty Ltd. (Australia)(b) CCC+ 11.50% 02/15/2018 02/15/15 @ 248,000
106
348,500
Packaging & Containers — 0.1%
300,000 Pretium Packaging, LLC / Pretium Finance, B 11.50% 04/01/2016 04/01/14 @ 305,250
Inc. 106
Real Estate Investment Trusts — 0.2%
750,000 Wells Operating Partnership II, LP BBB- 5.88% 04/01/2018 N/A 781,681
Retail — 0.6%
244,000 CKE Restaurants, Inc.(j) B- 11.38% 07/15/2018 07/15/14 @ 276,940
106
910,000 Fifth & Pacific Co., Inc.(b) B 10.50% 04/15/2019 04/15/14 @ 1,021,475
105
100,000 GRD Holdings III Corp.(b) B 10.75% 06/01/2019 06/01/15 @ 98,500
108
850,000 Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc.(j) B- 10.75% 10/15/2017 10/15/13 @ 799,000
108
220,000 Mastro’s Restaurants, LLC/RRG Finance 12/01/14 @
Corp.(b) B- 12.00% 06/01/2017 109 220,000
2,415,915
Software — 0.1%
400,000 Lawson Software, Inc.(b) B- 11.50% 07/15/2018 07/15/15 @ 439,000
106
Textiles — 0.0%***
150,000 Empire Today, LLC / Empire Today Finance 02/01/14 @
Corp.(b) B- 11.38% 02/01/2017 106 150,000
See notes to financial statements.
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued May 31, 2012
Principal Optional
Call
Amount Description RatingCoupon  Maturity Provisions** Value

*

Transportation — 0.6%

$ 54,911 Atlas Air, Inc.(b) NR 8.71% 01/02/2019 N/A'$ 54,911
300,000 CEVA Group PLC (United Kingdom)(b)(j) B+ 8.38% 12/01/2017 12/01/13 @ 291,750

106

1,450,000 Marquette Transportation

Company/Marquette Transportation 01/15/13 @
Finance Corp. (j) B- 10.88% 01/15/2017 108 1,515,250

600,000 United Maritime Group, LLC / United 12/15/12 @
Maritime Group Finance Corp.(j) B 11.75% 06/15/2015 106 654,000

2,515,911

Trucking & Leasing — 0.4%
1,712,000 AWAS Aviation Capital Ltd. (Ireland)(b)  BBB- 7.00% 10/17/2016 10/18/13 @ 1,767,640

104
Total Corporate Bonds — 8.4%
(Cost $35,703,097) 34,646,598
Asset Backed Securities — 5.8%
Automobile — 0.0%***
57,669 Bush Truck Leasing, LLC, Series 2011-AA,
Class C(b) NR 5.00% 09/25/2018 N/A 57,508

Collateralized Debt Obligation — 2.1%
295,970 Commodore CDO I Ltd., Series 2005-3A,

Class A1A (Cayman Islands)(b)(e)(j) CCC- 0.77% 03/06/2040 N/A 103,589
211,427 Diversified Asset Securitization Holdings II

LP, Series 1X, Class A1L (Cayman

Islands)(e) A 0.96% 09/15/2035 N/A 191,674
79,056 G-Star Ltd., Series 2003-A, Class A1l
(Cayman Islands)(b)(e)(j) A+ 1.04% 03/13/2038 N/A 74,882
367,268 Independence I CDO Ltd., Series 1A, Class
A (Cayman Islands)(b)(e)(j) BB+ 0.74% 12/30/2030 N/A 340,215
8,169,509 Putnam Structured Product, Series
2003-1A, Class A1LB(b)(¢e) B 0.69% 10/15/2038 N/A 7,047,917
689,733 Putnam Structured Product CDO, Series
2002-1A, Class A2 (Cayman Islands)(b)(e) B+ 0.92% 01/10/2038 N/A 561,160
26,203 Saturn Ventures Ltd., Series 2003-1A,
Class Al (Cayman Islands)(b)(e) AA 0.97% 11/03/2038 N/A 25,632
200,000 Stone Tower CDO Ltd., Series 2004-1A,
Class A2L (Cayman Islands)(b)(e) BB+ 1.72% 01/29/2040 N/A 159,036
8,504,105
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Collateralized Loan Obligation — 2.3%
500,000 Alm Loan Funding, Series 2010-3A, Class

C(b)(e)() BBB 4.47% 11/20/2020 N/A 449,775
1,000,000 CapitalSource Commercial Loan Trust,

Series 2006-2A, Class D(b) (e) B+ 1.76% 09/20/2022 N/A 949,031
2,000,000 Churchill Financial Cayman Ltd., Series

2007-1A, Class C (Cayman Islands)(b)(e)(j) A+ 1.72% 07/10/2019 N/A 1,625,980

1,000,000 Churchill Financial Cayman Ltd., Series
2007-1A, Class D1 (Cayman

Islands)(b)(e)(j) BBB+ 3.07% 07/10/2019 N/A 763,460
1,000,000 Churchill Financial Cayman Ltd., Series
2007-1A, Class D2 (Cayman Islands)(b)(j) BBB+ 8.37% 07/10/2019 N/A 958,320
250,000 Colts Trust, Series 2005-2A, Class C
(Cayman Islands)(b)(e) BB+ 1.32% 12/20/2018 N/A 242,895
250,000 Colts Trust, Series 2007-1A, Class C
(Cayman Islands)(b)(e) AA-  1.27% 03/20/2021 N/A 205,000
300,000 Cratos CLO Ltd., Series 2007-1A, Class C
(Cayman Islands)(b) (e)(j) AA-  1.57% 05/19/2021 N/A 234,861
500,000 DFR Middle Market CLO Ltd., Series
2007-1A, Class C(b)(e)(j) A 2.77% 07/20/2019 N/A 471,240
550,000 Eastland CLO Ltd., Series 2007-1A, Class
A2B(b)(e)(j) AA+ 0.80% 05/01/2022 N/A 409,755
250,000 Emporia Preferred Funding (Cayman
Islands)(b)(e)(j) A— 1.42% 10/12/2018 N/A 202,010
250,000 Genesis CLO Ltd., Series 2007-2A, Class D
(Cayman Islands)(b) (e)(j) BBB 4.47% 01/10/2016 N/A 235,000
200,000 Katonah Ltd., Series 2006-9A, Class A3L
(Cayman Islands)(b)(e) BBB+ 1.19% 01/25/2019 N/A 154,506
1,992,806 Newstar Trust, Series 2005-1A, Class C(b)
(e) B+ 1.32% 07/25/2018 N/A 1,762,637
514,262 Sargas CLO II Ltd., Series 2006-1A, Class
E (Cayman Islands)(b) (e) B+ 4.47% 10/20/2018 N/A 470,359
9,134,829

Commercial Receivables — 0.1%
400,000 Leaf II Receivables Funding, LLC, Series 01/20/13 @
2010-4, Class D(b) NR 5.00% 01/20/2019 100 369,480

Insurance — 0.0%***
98,200 Insurance Note Capital Term, Series
1005-1R1A(b) (e)(g) A 0.56% 06/09/2033 N/A 86,802

Other ABS — 0.0%***
21,897 Aircraft Certificate Owner Trust(b) BB 6.46% 09/20/2022 N/A 21,897

See notes to financial statements.
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued

Principal

Amount

$ 396,544

203,781

1,730,115

1,300,000

1,825,000

2,000,000

650,000

347,375

100,000
1,000,000

90,000

Description Rating Coupon
ES

Timeshare — 0.1%

Silverleaf Finance LLC, Series 2011-A,

Class A(b) NR 9.00%

Transportation — 0.4%

Raspro Trust, Series 2005-1A, Class G(b)

(e) A
Vega Containervessel PLC, Series

2006-1A, Class A(b) Ba3

Whole Business — 0.8%

Adams Outdoor Advertising, LP, Series
2010-1, Class B(b)

Adams Outdoor Advertising, LP, Series
2010-1, Class C(b)

Ba2

B3

Total Asset Backed Securities — 5.8%
(Cost $23,353,511)

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations — 0.5%
Commercial Mortgage Backed Security —
Traditional — 0.5%

GS Mortgage Securities Corp. II, Series
2007-EOP, Class H(b)(e)(j)

(Cost $1,808,548)

BBB-

Term Loans — 1.9%(f)
Banks — 0.1%

AP Alternative Assets LP(e) BBB
Consumer Products — 0.1%

Targus Group International, Inc.(e) B

Consumer Services — 0.3%
Nab Holdings, LLC, 1st Lien(e)
Osmose Holdings Lien 1(e)

BB+
B+

Entertainment — 0.0%***

CKX Entertainment, Inc.(e) B+

Table of Contents

0.87%

5.56%

8.84%

10.76%

3.30%

4.22%

11.00%

7.00%
6.50%

9.00%

Optional
Call

Maturity Provisions**

06/15/2023

03/23/2024

02/10/2021

12/20/2040

12/20/2040

03/06/2020

06/30/2015

05/24/2016

04/24/2018
05/04/2018

06/21/2017

N/A $

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

May 31, 2012

Value

387,622

171,176

1,565,754
1,736,930

1,386,081
1,958,707
3,344,788

23,643,961

1,981,648

619,125

349,692

99,750
998,755
1,098,505

73,800

154



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Gaming — 0.1%

300,000 Rock Ohio Caesar LLC(e) BB- 8.50% 08/11/2017 N/A 303,375
Oil Field Services — 0.8%
250,000 El Paso(e) BB- 6.50% 04/10/2018 N/A 251,095
2,962,500 Southern Pacific Resources 2nd Lien
(Canada)(e) CCC 10.75% 01/07/2016 N/A 2,993,606
3,244,701
Other Industrials — 0.1%
492,719 Sirva Worldwide, Inc.(e) B 10.75% 03/31/2016 N/A 496,415
Retail — 0.1%
250,000 HD Supply(e) B+ 7.25% 10/05/2017 N/A 252,250
Technology — 0.3%
98,978 API Technologies Corp.(e) B+ 8.75% 06/01/2016 N/A 98,977
1,000,000 Misys Ist Lien(e) B+ 7.25% 12/08/2018 N/A 977,000
100,000 Misys 2nd Lien(e) CCC+ 12.00% 12/06/2019 N/A 97,000
1,172,977
Transportation — 0.0%***
44,078 Global Aviation Holdings, Inc.(e) NR 10.47% 09/27/2012 N/A 44,519
Total Term Loans — 1.9%
(Cost $7,496,935) 7,655,359
See notes to financial statements.
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS continued

Number
of Shares

1,900

200,000

1,550

866,748

AGM - Insured by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation Assured

Description

Preferred Stocks — 1.8%

Diversified Financial Services — 0.5%
Falcons Funding Trust I(b)(e)

Transportation — 1.3%
Seaspan Corp., Series C (Marshall Islands)

Total Preferred Stocks — 1.8%
(Cost $6,928,500)

Warrants — 0.0%***
Alion Science and Technology Corp.(g)(h)
(Cost $16)

Total Long-Term Investments — 129.0%
(Cost $454,179,589)

Short-Term Investments — 0.2%

Money Market — 0.2%

Dreyfus Treasury Prime Cash Management
Institutional Shares

(Cost $866,748)

Total Investments — 129.2%

(Cost $455,046,337)

Other Assets in excess of Liabilities — 1.5%
Borrowings — (9.2%)

Reverse Repurchase Agreements — (21.5%)
Net Assets — 100.0%

GTY - Insured by Assured Guaranty Corporation

CDO - Collateralized Debt Obligation

CLO - Collateralized Loan Obligation

LLC - Limited Liability Company

LP — Limited Partnership

N/A — Not Applicable

PLC — Public Limited Company

Table of Contents

May 31, 2012

Rating® Coupon  Maturity Value

NR 8.88% -$ 1,979,682

NR 9.50% 5,496,000

7,475,682

03/15/2017 -

527,681,862

866,748

528,548,610

5,953,889
(37,444,000)
(88,098,415)

$408,960,084
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Proprietary

SAB de CV — Publicly Traded Company

*

ek

kekok

(a)
(b)

(©)
(d

(e)

®

(2)

®

@

Ratings shown are per Standard & Poor’s Rating Group, Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. or Fitch Ratings.
Securities classified as NR are not rated. (For securities not rated by Standard & Poor’s Rating Group, the rating
by Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. is provided. Likewise, for securities not rated by Standard & Poor’s Rating
Group and Moody’s Investor Services, Inc., the rating by Fitch Ratings is provided.) All ratings are unaudited.
The ratings apply to the credit worthiness of the issuers of the underlying securities and not to the Trust or its
shares.

Date and price of the earliest optional call or put provision. There may be other call provisions at varying prices
at later dates.

Less than 0.1%
Taxable municipal bond issued as part of the Build America Bond program.

Securities are exempt from registration under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. These securities may be
resold in transactions exempt from registration, normally to qualified institutional buyers. At May 31, 2012
these securities amounted to $41,627,425, which represents 10.2% of net assets.

Non-income producing as security is in default.

The issuer of this security may elect to pay interest entirely in cash, entirely by issuing payment-in-kind shares,
or pay 50% of the interest in cash and 50% of the interest by issuing payment-in-kind shares.

Floating or variable rate coupon. The rate shown is as of May 31, 2012.

Term loans held by the Trust have a variable interest rate feature which is periodically adjusted based on an
underlying interest rate benchmark. In addition, term loans may include mandatory and/or optional prepayment
terms. As a result, the actual maturity dates of the loan may be different than the amounts disclosed in the
portfolios of investments. Term loans may be considered restricted in that the Trust may be contractually
obligated to secure approval from the Agent Bank and/or Borrower prior to the sale or disposition of loan.

Security is valued in accordance with Fair Valuation procedures established in good faith by management and
approved by the Board of Trustees. The total market value of such securities is $86,802 which represents 0.0%
of net assets applicable to common shares. (h) Non-income producing security.

The issuer of this security will accrue interest on the secured note at a rate of 12% per annum and will make
interest payments as follows: (1) 10% in cash and (2) 2% payment-in-kind shares of the secured note.

All or a portion of these securities have been physically segregated in connection with borrowings, reverse
repurchase agreements, and unfunded loan commitments. As of May 31, 2012, the total amount segregated was
$276,820,154.

See notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Assets

Investments in securities, at value (cost $455,046,337)
Interest receivable

Cash

Unrealized appreciation on unfunded commitments
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Reverse repurchase agreements
Borrowings

Payable for securities purchased
Advisory fee payable

Interest due on borrowings
Administrative fee payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Composition of Net Assets

Common shares, $.01 par value per share; unlimited number of shares authorized,
17,409,470 shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated undistributed net investment income

Accumulated net realized gain on investments

Accumulated net unrealized appreciation on investments and unfunded commitments

Net Assets
Net Asset Value (based on 17,409,470 common shares outstanding)
See notes to financial statements.
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May 31, 2012

$ 528,548,610
9,345,793
239,581

214

24,650
538,158,848

88,098,415
37,444,000
3,096,750
268,714
82,991
10,082
197,812
129,198,764

$ 408,960,084

$ 174,095
331,499,169
3,021,499
762,834
73,502,487

$ 408,960,084

$ 23.49
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS For the year ended May 31, 2012

Investment Income
Interest

Dividends

Total income

Expenses

Advisory fee

Interest expense
Professional fees

Trust accounting
Administrative fee
Trustees’ fees and expenses
Custodian fee

Printing expenses
NYSE listing fee
Insurance expense
Transfer agent fee
Miscellaneous

Total expenses

Net investment income

Realized and Unrealized Gain on Investments and Unfunded
Commitments

Net realized gain on:

Investments

Net change in unrealized appreciation on:

Investments

Unfunded commitments

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments and unfunded
commitments

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

See notes to financial statements.

$ 32,333,117
560,622

3,021,090
1,214,235
290,355
122,662
115,135
116,972
90,632
70,950
23,717
21,572
18,658
107,861

May 31, 2012

$ 32,893,739

5,213,839
27,679,900

236,329
47,505,145
214
47,741,688

$ 75,421,588
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Increase in Net Assets from Operations
Net investment income

Net realized gain (loss) on investments
Net change in unrealized appreciation on
investments and unfunded commitments
Net increase in net assets resulting from
operations

Distributions to Common Shareholders
From net investment income

Capital Share Transactions

Net proceeds from the issuance of common
shares

Common share offering costs charged to
paid-in capital

Net increase from capital share transactions
Total increase in net assets

Net Assets

Beginning of period

End of period (including undistributed net
investment income of $3,021,499 and
$1,441,139, respectively)

* Commencement of investment operations.

See notes to financial statements.

For the
Period

For the Year
Ended

May 31,
2012

27,679,900
236,329

47,505,359

75,421,588

(25,905,292)

0

0
0
49,516,296

359,443,788

408,960,084
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DURATION TRUST ANNUAL REPORT

May 31, 2012

October 28,
2010%*
through

May 31, 2011

11,815,722
(9,230)

25,997,128

37,803,620

(10,184,540)

332,420,793

(696,169)
331,724,624
359,343,704

100,084

359,443,788
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended May 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations to
Net Cash Provided by Operating and Investing Activities:

Net unrealized appreciation on investments

Net unrealized appreciation on unfunded commitments

Net realized gain on investments

Paydowns received

Net accretion of bond discount and amortization of bond premium
Purchase of long-term investments

Proceeds from sale of long-term investments

Net proceeds from sale of short-term investments

Decrease in interest receivable

Decrease in receivable for securities sold

Increase in other assets

Decrease in payable for securities purchased

Increase in advisory fee payable

Increase in interest due on borrowings

Increase in administration fee payable

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating and Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Distributions to common shareholders
Decrease in reverse repurchase agreements
Proceeds from borrowings

Payments made on borrowings

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
Net increase in cash

Cash at Beginning of Period

Cash at End of Period

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: Cash paid during the period for

interest

See notes to financial statements.

$

$

$

May 31, 2012

75,421,588

(47,505,145)
(214)
(236,329)
(526,505)
(449,744)
(61,503,617)
33,920,763
6,430,258
75,896
1,982,500
(7,093)
(2,173,218)
36,357
25,757
1,063
16,549
5,508,866

(25,905,292)
(16,807,993)
61,944,000
(24,500,000)
(5,269,285)

239,581

239,581

1,188,478
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS May 31, 2012
For the Period

For the Year October 28, 2010*
Per share operating performance Ended through
for a common share outstanding throughout the period May 31, 2012 May 31, 2011
Net asset value, beginning of period $ 2065 $ 19.10(a)
Income from investment operations
Net investment income(b) 1.59 0.68
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments and unfunded
commitments 2.74 1.50
Total from investment operations 4.33 2.18
Common shares’ offering expenses charged to paid-in capital — (0.04)

Distributions to Common Shareholders
From net investment income (1.49) (0.59)

Net asset value, end of period $ 2349 $ 20.65
Market value, end of period $ 2246 $ 19.54
Total investment return(c)

Net asset value 21.64% 11.34%
Market value 23.35% 0.80%
Ratios and supplemental data

Net assets, end of period (thousands) $ 408,960 $ 359,444
Ratios to Average Net Assets applicable to Common Shares:

Total expenses, excluding interest expense 1.04% 0.91%(d)
Total expenses, including interest expense 1.36% 1.05%(d)
Net investment income, including interest expense 7.23% 6.00%(d)
Portfolio turnover rate(e) 7% 3%
Senior Indebtedness:

Total Borrowings outstanding (in thousands) $ 125,542 $ 104,906
Asset Coverage per $1,000 of indebtedness(f) $ 4258 % 4,426

*  Commencement of investment operations.

(a) Before deduction of offering expenses charged to capital.

(b) Based on average shares outstanding during the period.

(c) Total investment return is calculated assuming a purchase of a common share at the beginning of the
period and a sale on the last day of the period reported either at net asset value (“NAV”’) or market
price per share. Dividends and distributions are assumed to be reinvested at NAV for NAV returns
or the prices obtained under the Trust’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan for market value returns. Total

investment return does not reflect brokerage commissions. A return calculated for a period of less
than one year is not annualized.

(d) Annualized.
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(e) Portfolio turnover is not annualized for periods of less than one year.

(f) Calculated by subtracting the Trust’s total liabilities (not including borrowings) from the Trust’s total
assets and dividing by the total borrowings.

See notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS May 31, 2012

Note 1 — Organization:

Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust (the “Trust”) was organized as a Delaware statutory trust
on June 30, 2010. The Trust is registered as a diversified closed-end management investment company under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

The Trust’s primary investment objective is to provide current income with a secondary objective of long-term capital
appreciation. There can be no assurance that the Trust will achieve its investment objectives. The Trust’s investment
objectives are considered fundamental and may not be changed without shareholder approval.

Note 2 — Accounting Policies:

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies consistently followed by the Trust.

(a) Valuation of Investments

The Trust values equity securities at the last reported sale price on the principal exchange or in the principal
over-the-counter (“OTC”) market in which such securities are traded, as of the close of regular trading on the New York
Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) on the day the securities are being valued or, if there are no sales, at the mean between the
last available bid and asked prices on that day. Securities traded on NASDAQ are valued at the NASDAQ Official
Closing Price. The Trust values debt securities (including municipal securities, asset-backed securities, collateralized
mortgage obligations and term loans) at the last available bid price for such securities or, if such prices are not
available, at prices for securities of comparable maturity, quality, and type. Short-term securities with remaining
maturities of 60 days or less are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

For those securities where quotations or prices are not available, the valuations are determined in accordance with
procedures established in good faith by management and approved by the Board of Trustees. Valuations in accordance
with these procedures are intended to reflect each security’s (or asset’s) “fair value”. Fair value is defined as the price that
the Trust would receive to sell an investment or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction with an independent
buyer in the principal market, or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the
investment or liability. Each such determination should be based on a consideration of all relevant factors, which are
likely to vary from one pricing context to another. Examples of such factors may include, but are not limited to: (i) the
type of security, (ii) the initial cost of the security, (iii) the existence of any contractual restrictions on the security’s
disposition, (iv) the price and extent of public trading in similar securities of the issuer or of comparable companies,
(v) quotations or evaluated prices from broker-dealers and/or pricing services, (vi) information obtained from the
issuer, analysts, and/or the appropriate stock exchange (for exchange traded securities), (vii) an analysis of the
company’s financial statements, and (viii) an evaluation of the forces that influence the issuer and the market(s) in
which the security is purchased and sold (e.g. the existence of pending merger activity, public offerings or tender
offers that might affect the value of the security).

There are three different categories for valuations. Level 1 valuations are those based upon quoted prices in active
markets. Level 2 valuations are those based upon quoted prices in inactive markets or based upon significant
observable inputs (e.g. yield curves; benchmark interest rates; indices). Level 3 valuations are those based upon
unobservable inputs (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis; non-market based methods used to determine fair valuation).
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The Trust values Level 1 securities using readily available market quotations in active markets. Money Market Funds
are valued at Net Asset Value. The Trust values Level 2 fixed income securities using independent pricing providers
who employ matrix pricing models utilizing market prices, broker quotes and prices of securities with comparable
maturities and qualities. The Trust values Level 2 equity securities using various observable market inputs as
described above.The fair value estimate for the Level 3 security in the Trust was determined in good faith by the
Pricing Committee pursuant to the Valuation Procedures which were established in good faith by management and
approved by the Board of Trustees. There were various factors considered in reaching fair value determination,
including, but not limited, to the following: the type of security, analysis of the company’s performance and publicly
available information regarding the company.

The following table represents the Trust’s investments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and
by level within the fair value hierarchy as of May 31, 2012.

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Valuations (in $000s)

Assets:

Municipal Bonds $ — 3 452279 $ — $ 452,279
Corporate Bonds — 34,646 — 34,646
Asset Backed Securities

Automobile — 58 — 58
Collateralized

Debt Obligation — 8,504 — 8,504
Collateralized

Loan Obligation — 9,135 — 9,135
Commercial

Receivables — 369 — 369
Insurance — — 87 87
Other ABS — 22 — 22
Timeshare — 387 — 387
Transportation — 1,737 — 1,737
Whole Business — 3,345 — 3,345
Collateralized Mortgage

Obligations — 1,982 — 1,982
Term Loans — 7,655 — 7,655
Preferred Stock 7,476 — — 7,476
Warrants — — —* —*
Money Market Fund 867 — — 867
Unfunded Commitments — —* — —*
Total $ 8,343 $ 520,119 $ 87 % 528,549

*  Market value is less than minimum amount disclosed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued May 31, 2012
There were no transfers between Levels during the year ended May 31, 2012.

The fair value estimates for the Trust’s Level 3 securities were determined in accordance with procedures established
in good faith by management and approved by the Board of Trustees. For Insurance Note Capital Term, there were
various factors considered in reaching a fair value determination, including, but not limited to, the following: the type
of security and available public information. The Trust values the warrants for Alion Science and Technology Corp. at
$0 due to the warrant and the underlying stock of the issuing company being unlisted securities. The Trust received
the warrants, which have a penny per share exercise price, as part of the purchase of Alion Science and Technology
12% corporate bonds which mature on November 1, 2014.

The following table presents the activity for the Trust’s investments measured at fair value using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 valuations) for the year ended May 31, 2012.

Level 3 holdings

(value in $000s)

Beginning Balance at May 31, 2011 $ —
Total Realized Gain/Loss —
Total Realized Gain/Loss —
Change in Unrealized Gain/Loss —
Return of Capital —
Net Purchases: —
Asset Backed Securities 87
Warrants —*
Transfers In —
Transfers Out —
Ending Balance at May 31, 2012 $ 87

* Market value is less than minimum amount disclosed.

(b) Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investment transactions are accounted for on the trade date. Realized gains and losses on investments are determined
on the identified cost basis. Paydown gains and losses on mortgage and asset-backed securities are treated as an
adjustment to interest income. For the year ended May 31, 2012, the Trust recognized an increase of interest income
and a decrease of net realized gain of $526,505. This reclassification is reflected on the Statement of Operations and
had no effect on the net asset value of the Trust. Dividend income is recorded net of applicable withholding taxes on
the ex-dividend date and interest income is recorded on an accrual basis. Discounts or premiums on debt securities
purchased are accreted or amortized to interest income over the lives of the respective securities using the effective
interest method.

(c) Swaps

A swap is an agreement to exchange the return generated by one instrument for the return generated by another
instrument. The Trust may enter into swap agreements to manage its exposure to interest rates or to manage the
duration of its portfolio. The swaps are valued daily at current market value and any unrealized gain or loss is included
in the Statement of Operations. The Trust accrues for the interim payments on swap contracts on a daily basis, with
the net amount recorded within unrealized appreciation/depreciation of swap contracts on the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities. Once the interim payments are settled in cash, the net amount is recorded as realized gain/loss on swaps, in
addition to realized gain/loss recorded upon the termination of swap contracts on the Statement of Operations. During
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the period that the swap agreement is open, the Trust may be subject to risk from the potential inability of the
counterparty to meet the terms of the agreement. The swaps involve elements of both market and credit risk in excess
of the amounts reflected on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. During the year ended May 31, 2012, there were
no swaps outstanding.

(d) When-Issued and Delayed Delivery Transactions

The Trust may engage in when-issued or delayed delivery transactions. The Trust records when-issued securities on
the trade date and maintains security positions such that sufficient liquid assets will be available to make payment for
the securities purchased. Securities purchased on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis are marked to market daily
and begin earning interest on the settlement date. Losses may occur on these transactions due to changes in a market
conditions or the failure of counterparties to perform under the contract.

(e) Distributions

The Trust declares and pays monthly distributions to common shareholders. Any net realized long-term gains are
distributed annually. Distributions to shareholders are recorded on the ex-dividend date. The amount and timing of
distributions are determined in accordance with federal income tax regulations, which may differ from GAAP.

(f) Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the mean of the bid and
asked price of the respective exchange rates on the last day of the period. Purchases and sales of investments
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the mean of the bid and asked price of respective exchange rates on
the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gain or loss resulting from holding of a foreign currency, expiration of a currency exchange
contract, difference in the exchange rates between the trade date and settlement date of an investment purchased or
sold, and the difference between dividends actually received compared to the amount shown in a Trust’s accounting
records on the date of receipt are included as net realized gains or losses on foreign currency forwards and currency
transactions in the Trust’s Statement of Operations.

Foreign exchange gain or loss on assets and liabilities, other than investments, is included in unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on foreign currency transactions. There were no currency gains or losses for the year ended May 31,
2012.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On May 12, 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2011-04, modifying Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. At the same time, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
issued International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued May 31, 2012

13, Fair Value Measurement. The objective by the FASB and IASB is convergence of their guidance on fair value
measurements and disclosures. Specifically, the ASU requires reporting entities to disclose (i) the amounts of any
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and the reasons for the transfers, (i1) for Level 3 fair value measurements,
quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs used, (iii) a description of the valuation processes used
by the reporting entity, and (iv) a narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.
The effective date of the ASU is for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and it is therefore
not effective for the current fiscal year. The Adviser is in the process of assessing the impact of the updated standards
on the Trust’s financial statements.

Note 3 — Investment Advisory Agreement, Sub-Advisory Agreement and Other Agreements:

Pursuant to an Investment Advisory Agreement between the Trust and Guggenheim Funds Investment Advisors, LLC
(“the Adviser”), the Adviser furnishes offices, necessary facilities and equipment, provides administrative services,
oversees the activities of Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC (“GPIM”), provides personnel including
certain officers required for the Trust’s administrative management and compensates the officers and trustees of the
Trust who are affiliates of the Adviser. As compensation for these services, the Trust pays the Adviser a fee, payable
monthly, in an amount equal to 0.60% of the Trust’s average daily managed assets (net assets applicable to common
shareholders plus any assets attributable to financial leverage).

Pursuant to a Sub-Advisory Agreement among the Trust, the Adviser and GPIM, GPIM under the supervision of the
Trust’s Board of Trustees and the Adviser, provides a continuous investment program for the Trust’s portfolio; provides
investment research; makes and executes recommendations for the purchase and sale of securities; and provides

certain facilities and personnel, including certain officers required for its administrative management and pays the
compensation of all officers and trustees of the Trust who are GPIM ’s affiliates. As compensation for its services, the
Adpviser pays GPIM a fee, payable monthly, in an annual amount equal to 0.30% of the Trust’s average daily managed
assets.

Certain officers of the Trust may also be officers, directors and/or employees of the Adviser or GPIM. The Trust does
not compensate its officers who are officers, directors and/or employees of the aforementioned firms.

Under a separate Fund Administration Agreement, the Adviser provides Fund Administration services to the Trust. As
compensation for services performed under the Administration Agreement, the Adviser will receive an administration
fee payable monthly at the annual rate set forth below as a percentage of the average daily managed assets of the
Trust:

Managed Assets Rate
First $200,000,000 0.0275%
Next $300,000,000 0.0200%
Next $500,000,000 0.0150%
Over $1,000,000,000 0.0100%

For the year ended May 31, 2012, the Trust recognized expenses of approximately $115,135 for these services.
The Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY”) acts as the Trust’s custodian and accounting agent. As custodian, BNY is

responsible for the custody of the Trust’s assets. As accounting agent, BNY is responsible for maintaining the books
and records of the Trust’s securities and cash.
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Note 4 — Federal Income Taxes:
The Trust intends to comply with the requirements of Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, applicable to regulated investment companies. Accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal income taxes is

required. In addition, by distributing substantially all of its ordinary income and long-term capital gains, if any, during
each calendar year, the Trust intends not to be subject to U.S. federal excise tax.

Due to inherent differences in the recognition of income, expenses, and realized gains/losses under GAAP and federal
income tax purposes, permanent differences between book and tax basis reporting have been identified and
appropriately reclassified on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. At May 31, 2012, the following reclassification
was made to the capital accounts of the Trust to reflect permanent book and tax difference relating to paydown gains

and excise tax being paid. Net investment income, net realized gains and net assets were not affected by these
changes.

Accumulated
Undistributed
Additional Net Accumulated
Paid-in Investment Net Realized
Capital Income/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)
$ (105,444) $ (194,248) $ 299,692

Information on the components of net assets on a tax basis as of May 31, 2012, is as follows:

Net Tax
Cost of Unrealized
Investments Gross Tax Gross Tax Appreciation
for Tax Unrealized Unrealized on
Purposes Appreciation Depreciation Investments

$ 455,046,337 $ 75,630,146 $ (2,127,873) $ 73,502,273

Undistributed Accumulated
Ordinary Long-Term
Income/ Gains/
(Accumulated (Accumulated

Ordinary Loss) Capital Loss)
$ 3,021,499 $ 762,834
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued May 31, 2012

For the years ended May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011, the tax character of distributions paid to common shareholders
as reflected in the statement of changes in net assets was as follows:

Distributions paid from 2012 2011
Ordinary Income $ 25,905,292 $ 10,184,540

For all open tax years and all major jurisdictions, management of the Trust has concluded that there are no significant
uncertain tax positions that would require recognition in the financial statements. Uncertain tax positions are tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Trust’s tax returns that would not meet a
more-likely-than not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority and would be recorded as a tax
expense in the current year. Open tax years are those that are open for examination by taxing authorities (i.e. generally
the last four tax year ends and the interim tax period since then). Furthermore, management of the Trust is also not
aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will
significantly change in the next twelve months.

Note 5 — Investments in Securities:
For the year ended May 31, 2012, the cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of investments, excluding short-term
securities, were $61,503,617 and $33,920,763, respectively.

Note 6 — Capital:

Common Shares

In connection with its organization process, the Trust sold 5,240 common shares of beneficial interest to Guggenheim
Funds Distributors, LLC, an affiliate of the Adviser, for consideration of $100,084 at a price of $19.10 per share. The
Trust has an unlimited amount of common shares, $0.01 par value, authorized and 17,409,470 issued and outstanding.
Of this amount, the Trust issued 17,000,000 common shares in its initial public offering. These shares were issued at
$19.10 per share after deducting the sales load but before offering expenses incurred by the Trust.

In connection with the initial public offering of the Trust’s common shares, the underwriters were granted an option to
purchase additional common shares. On December 14, 2010, the underwriters purchased, at a price of $19.10 per
common share (after deducting the sales load but before offering expenses incurred by the Trust.), 404,230 common
shares of the Trust pursuant to the over-allotment option.

Offering costs, equal to $696,169, or $0.04 per share, in connection with the issuance of common shares have been
borne by the Trust and were charged to paid-in capital. The Adviser and GPIM paid offering expenses (other than
sales load, but including reimbursement of expenses to the underwriters) in excess of $0.04 per common share.

In connection with the Fund’s dividend reinvestment plan, the Trust did not issue any shares during the years ended
May 31, 2012 and 2011.

Note 7 — Leverage:

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Trust may enter into reverse repurchase agreements as part of its financial leverage strategy. Under a reverse
repurchase agreement, the Trust temporarily transfers possession of a portfolio instrument to another party, such as a
bank or broker-dealer, in return for cash. At the same time, the Trust agrees to repurchase the instrument at an agreed
upon time and price, which reflects an interest payment. Such agreements have the economic effect of borrowings.
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The Trust may enter into such agreements when it is able to invest the cash acquired at a rate higher than the cost of
the agreement, which would increase earned income. When the Trust enters into a reverse repurchase agreement, any
fluctuations in the market value of either the instruments transferred to another party or the instruments in which the
proceeds may be invested would affect the market value of the Trust’s assets. As a result, such transactions may
increase fluctuations in the market value of the Trust’s assets. For the year ended May 31, 2012, the average daily
balance for which reverse repurchase agreements were outstanding amounted to $100,618,050. The weighted average
interest rate was 0.86%. As of May 31, 2012 there was $88,098,415 in reverse repurchase agreements outstanding.

At May 31, 2012, the Trust had outstanding reverse repurchase agreements with various counterparties. Details of the
reverse repurchase agreements by counterparty are as follows:

Range of Range of

Interest Maturity
Counterparty Rates Dates Face Value
BNP Paribas 0.86% 04/16/2014  $ 40,792,865
Credit Suisse First Boston 0.75% 06/21/2012 9,153,927
Royal Bank of Canada 0.89% 06/04/2012-06/21/2012 38,151,623

$ 88,098,415

Borrowings

On December 7, 2011, the Trust entered into a $125,000,000 credit facility agreement. The interest rate on the amount
borrowed is based on the 1 month LIBOR plus 90 basis points. An unused fee of 25 basis points is charged on the
difference between the $125,000,000 and the amount borrowed. At May 31, 2012, there was $37,444,000 outstanding
in connection with the Trust’s credit facility. The average daily amount of borrowings on the credit facility during the
year ended May 31, 2012, was $43,748,167 with a related average interest rate of 1.16%. The maximum amount
outstanding during the year ended May 31, 2012 was $50,944,000. As of May 31, 2012, the total value of securities
segregated and pledged as collateral in connection with borrowings was $59,932,987.

Note 8 — Loan Commitments

Pursuant to the terms of certain Term Loan agreements, the Trust held unfunded loan commitments of as of May 31,
2012. The Trust is obligated to fund these loan commitments at the borrower’s discretion. The Trust intends to reserve
against such contingent obligations by designating cash, liquid securities, and liquid term loans as a reserve. As of
May 31, 2012, the total amount segregated in connection with reverse
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

May 31, 2012

repurchase agreements and unfunded commitments was $104,600,356. The unrealized appreciation on these
commitments of $214 as of May 31, 2012, is reported as “Unrealized appreciation on unfunded commitments” on the

Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

At May 31, 2012, the Trust had the following unfunded loan commitments which could be extended at the option of

the borrower:

Principal

Borrower Amount
Global Aviation $ 21,397
Hologic, Inc. 1,000,000
PF Changs 7,000,000
$ 8,021,397

Note 9 — Indemnifications:

Unrealized
Appreciation/
(Depreciation)

$ 214

$ 214

In the normal course of business, the Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations, which
provide general indemnifications. The Trust’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would
require future claims that may be made against the Trust that have not yet occurred. However, the Trust expects the

risk of loss to be remote.

Note 10 — Regulatory Matters:

The Adviser has notified the Trust of the following: In 2009, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff
conducted an examination of the Adviser and in 2010 reported to the Adviser that the SEC staff believed certain
deficiencies existed in connection with the management of a liquidated closed-end fund formerly advised by the
Adpviser and a third-party sub-adviser. In April 2012, the Adviser and a current and a former employee of the Adviser
each received separate letters from the SEC staff (commonly referred to as a Wells Notice) stating that the staff
intends to recommend to the SEC that action be brought against the Adviser and the current and former employee for
allegedly failing to cause the fund to adequately disclose certain investments made by the fund and providing the

recipients of the letters with an opportunity to respond to the potential allegations.

The Adviser has replied to the Wells Notice and responded to the SEC staff’s allegations. Although there can be no
assurance as to the outcome, the Adviser has advised the Trust that it believes its disclosures were proper and that
resolution of this matter will not materially and adversely affect its financial condition or its ability to act as an

investment adviser to the Trust.

Note 11 — Subsequent Event:

The Trust evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available for issue and
determined there were no additional material events that would require disclosure in the Trust’s financial statements,

except as noted below.

On June 1, 2012, the Trust declared a monthly dividend of $0.129 per common share. The dividend was payable on

June 29, 2012, to shareholders of record on June 15, 2012.

On July 1, 2012, the Trust declared a monthly dividend of $0.129 per common share. The dividend is payable on July

31, 2012, to shareholders of record on July 13, 2012.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM May 31, 2012

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders of
Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed
Duration Trust (the Trust), including the portfolio of investments, as of May 31, 2012, and the related statements of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended and the statement of changes in net assets and the financial
highlights for the year then ended and for the period from October 28, 2010 (commencement of investment
operations) through May 31, 2011. These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the
Trust’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to
perform an audit of the Trust’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and financial highlights, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our
procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of May 31, 2012, by correspondence with the custodian,
brokers, and agent banks or by other appropriate auditing procedures where replies from brokers or agent banks were
not received. We believe that our audits provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust at May 31, 2012, the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and the changes in its net assets and the financial
highlights for the year then ended and for the period from October 28, 2010 (commencement of investment
operations) through May 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Chicago, Illinois
July 25, 2012
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) May 31, 2012

Federal Income Tax Information
Qualified dividend income of as much as $121,380 was received by the Trust through May 31, 2012.

The Trust intends to designate the maximum amount of dividends that qualify for the reduced tax rate pursuant to the
Jobs and Growth Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003.

In January 2013, you will be advised on IRS Form 1099 DIV or substitute 1099 DIV as to the federal tax status of the
distributions received by you in the calendar year 2012.

Result of Shareholder Votes
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Trust was held on April 4, 2012. Common shareholders voted on the
election of Trustees.

With regards to the election of the following Trustees by common shareholders of the Trust:

# of Shares In Favor # of Shares Withheld
Roman Friedrich III 15,985,057 223,565
Ronald A. Nyberg 16,015,289 204,058

The other Trustees of the Trust whose term did not expire in 2012 are Randall C. Barnes, Ronald E. Toupin, Jr.,
Robert B. Karn III and Donald C. Cacciapaglia.

Trustees
The Trustees of the Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust (the “Trust”) and their principal

occupations during the past five years:

Name, Address*,

Year Number of

Term of Portfolios in
of Birth and Office** the

Principal Occupations during the Past Trust
Position(s) Held and Length Five Years and Complex***  Other Directorships
Overseen by

with Trust of Time Served Other Affiliations Trustee Held by Trustee
Independent
Trustees:
Randall C. Since 2010 Private Investor (2001-present). 55 None
Barnes Formerly, Senior Vice President and
Year of Birth: Treasurer, PepsiCo, Inc. (1993 1997),
1951 President, Pizza Hut International
Trustee (1991-1993) and Senior Vice President,

Strategic Planning and New Business
Development of PepsiCo, Inc.
(1987-1990).
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Roman Friedrich Since 2004
11

Year of birth:

1946

Trustee

Robert B. Karn
11

Year of Birth:
1942

Trustee

Since 2010

Ronald A.
Nyberg

Year of Birth:
1953

Trustee

Since 2004

Ronald E.
Toupin, Jr.
Year of Birth:
1958

Trustee,
Chairman

Since 2004

Founder and President of Roman 50
Friedrich & Company, Ltd., a mining

and metals investment bank

(1998-present). Formerly, Senior

Managing Director of MLV & Co., LLC,

an investment bank and institutional

broker-dealer specializing in capital

intensive industries such as energy,

metals and mining (2010-2011).

Consultant (1998-present). Previously, 50
Managing Partner, Financial and

Economic Consulting, St. Louis office of

Arthur Andersen, LLP (1965-1998).

Partner of Nyberg & Cassioppi, LLC, a 57
law firm specializing in corporate law,

estate planning and business transactions

(2000- present). Formerly, Executive

Vice President, General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary of Van Kampen

Investments (1982-1999).

Portfolio Consultant (2010-present). 54
Formerly, Vice President, Manager and
Portfolio Manager of Nuveen Asset
Management (1998-1999), Vice
President of Nuveen Investment
Advisory Corp. (1992-1999), Vice
President and Manager of Nuveen Unit
Investment Trusts (1991-1999), and
Assistant Vice President and Portfolio
Manager of Nuveen Unit Investment
Trusts (1988-1999), each of John
Nuveen & Co., Inc. (1982-1999).

Director of Blue Sky
Uranium Corp.
(2011-present), Zincore
Metals, Inc.
(2009-present).
Previously, Director of
Axiom Gold and Silver
Corp. (2011-2012),
Stratagold Corp.
(2003- 2009); Gateway
Gold Corp.
(2004-2008) and GFM
Resources Ltd.
(2005-2010).

Director of Peabody
Energy Company
(2003-present), GP
Natural Resource
Partners LLC
(2002-present).

None

Trustee, Bennett Group
of Funds
(2011-present).
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) continued May 31, 2012

Name, Address*,

Year Number of

Term of Portfolios in

of Birth and Office** the
Principal Occupations during the Past Trust

Position(s) Held and Length Five Years and Complex***  Other Directorships

Overseen by

with Trust of Time Served Other Affiliations Trustee Held by Trustee

Interested

Trustee:

Donald C. Since 2012 Senior Managing Director of 50 Trustee, Rydex

Cacciapagliat Guggenheim Investments; President and Dynamic Funds, Rydex

Year of Birth: Chief Executive Officer of Guggenheim ETF Trust, Rydex

1951 Funds Distributors, LLC and President Series Funds and

Trustee, Chief and Chief Executive Officer of Rydex Variable Trust

Executive Guggenheim Funds Investment (2012- present);

Officer Advisors, LLC (2010—present); Chief Independent Board
Executive Officer of funds in the Fund Member, Equitrust Life
Complex and President and Chief Insurance Company,
Executive Officer of funds in the Rydex Guggenheim Life and
fund complex (2012-present). Formerly, Annuity Company, and
Chief Operating Officer of Guggenheim Paragon Life Insurance
Partners Investment Management, LLC Company of Indiana.

ek

kokok

(2010-2011); Chairman and CEO of
Channel Capital Group Inc. and Channel
Capital Group LLC (2002-2010);
Managing Director of PaineWebber
(1996-2002).

Address for all Trustees unless otherwise noted: 2455 Corporate West Drive, Lisle, IL 60532

After a Trustee’s initial term, each Trustee is expected to serve a three-year term concurrent with the class of
Trustees for which he serves:

-Messrs. Barnes and Cacciapaglia, as Class I Trustees, are expected to stand for election or re-election at the
Trust’s annual meeting of shareholders for fiscal year ending May 31, 2014.

-Messrs. Friedrich and Nyberg, as Class II Trustees, are expected to stand for re-election at the Trust’s annual
meeting of shareholders for fiscal year ending May 31, 2015.

-Messrs. Karn and Toupin, as Class III Trustees, are expected to stand for re-election at the Trust’s annual
meeting of shareholders for fiscal year ending May 31, 2013.

The Guggenheim Funds Fund Complex consists of U.S. registered investment companies advised or serviced by
Guggenheim Funds Investment Advisors, LLC and/or Guggenheim Funds Distributors, LLC. The Guggenheim
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Funds Fund Complex is overseen by multiple Boards of Trustees.

+ Mr. Donald C. Cacciapaglia is an “interested person” (as defined in section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act) (“Interested
Trustee”) of the Trust because of his position as the President and CEO of the Adviser and Administrator.

Executive Officers
The Executive officers of the Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust and their principal
occupations during the past five years:

Name, Address*, Term of

Year of Birth and Office** and Principal Occupations During the Past Five Years and

Position(s) Held with Length of

Registrant Time Served Other Affiliations

Officers:

Donald C. Since 2012 Senior Managing Director of Guggenheim Investments; President

Cacciapagliat and Chief Executive Officer of Guggenheim Funds Distributors,

Year of Birth: 1951 LLC and President and Chief Executive Officer of Guggenheim

Trustee, Chief Funds Investment Advisors, LLC (2010 — present); Chief

Executive Officer Executive officer of funds in the Fund Complex and President and
Chief Executive Officer of funds in the Rydex fund complex
(2012-present). Formerly, Chief Operating Officer of
Guggenheim Partners Asset Management, LLC (2010 — 2011);
Chairman and CEO of Channel Capital Group Inc. and Channel
Capital Group LLC (2002-2010); Managing Director of
PaineWebber (1996-2002).

Kevin M. Robinson  Since 2010  Senior Managing Director and General Counsel of Guggenheim

Year of Birth: 1959 Funds Investment Advisors, LLC, Guggenheim Funds

Chief Legal Officer Distributors, LLC, and Guggenheim Funds Services Group, LLC.
(2007-present). Chief Legal Officer and/or Chief Executive
Officer of certain other funds in the Fund Complex. Formerly,
Associate General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
NYSE Euronext, Inc. (2000-2007).

John Sullivan Since 2010  Senior Managing Director of Guggenheim Funds Investment

Year of Birth: 1955 Adpvisors, LLC and Guggenheim Funds Distributors, LLC

Chief Accounting (2010-present). Chief Accounting Officer, Chief Financial Officer

Officer and Treasurer of certain other funds in the Fund Complex.

Chief Financial Formerly, Chief Compliance Officer, Van Kampen Funds

Officer (2004-2010).

Treasurer

Ann E. Edgeworth Since 2012 Director, Foreside Compliance Services, LLC (2011-present).

Year of Birth: 1961 Formerly, Vice President, State Street Corporation (2007-2011);

Interim Chief Director, Investors Bank & Trust (2004-2007).

Compliance Officer

Mark E. Mathiasen Since 2008  Director; Associate General Counsel of Guggenheim Funds

Year of Birth: 1978
Secretary
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Assistant General Counsel of Guggenheim Funds Services, LLC
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(2007-2012). Secretary of certain other funds in the Fund
Complex.

* Address for all Officers: 2455 Corporate West Drive, Lisle, IL 60532

*#*  Officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees and until his or her successor is appointed and qualified
or until his or her earlier resignation or removal.
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DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (Unaudited) May 31, 2012

Unless the registered owner of common shares elects to receive cash by contacting Computershare Shareowner
Services LLC (the “Plan Administrator”), all dividends declared on common shares of the Trust will be automatically
reinvested by the Plan Administrator, administrator for shareholders in the Trust’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the
“Plan”), in additional common shares of the Trust. Participation in the Plan is completely voluntary and may be
terminated or resumed at any time without penalty by notice if received and processed by the Plan Administrator prior
to the dividend record date; otherwise such termination or resumption will be effective with respect to any
subsequently declared dividend or other distribution. Some brokers may automatically elect to receive cash on your
behalf and may re-invest that cash in additional common shares of the Trust for you. If you wish for all dividends
declared on your common shares of the Trust to be automatically reinvested pursuant to the Plan, please contact your
broker.

The Plan Administrator will open an account for each common shareholder under the Plan in the same name in which
such common shareholder’s common shares are registered. Whenever the Trust declares a dividend or other
distribution (together, a “Dividend”) payable in cash, non-participants in the Plan will receive cash and participants in
the Plan will receive the equivalent in common shares. The common shares will be acquired by the Plan Administrator
for the participants’ accounts, depending upon the circumstances described below, either (i) through receipt of
additional unissued but authorized common shares from the Trust (“Newly Issued Common Shares™) or (ii) by purchase
of outstanding common shares on the open market (“Open-Market Purchases”) on the New York Stock Exchange or
elsewhere. If, on the payment date for any Dividend, the closing market price plus estimated brokerage commission
per common share is equal to or greater than the net asset value per common share, the Plan Administrator will invest
the Dividend amount in Newly Issued Common Shares on behalf of the participants. The number of Newly Issued
Common Shares to be credited to each participant’s account will be determined by dividing the dollar amount of the
Dividend by the net asset value per common share on the payment date; provided that, if the net asset value is less
than or equal to 95% of the closing market value on the payment date, the dollar amount of the Dividend will be
divided by 95% of the closing market price per common share on the payment date. If, on the payment date for any
Dividend, the net asset value per common share is greater than the closing market value plus estimated brokerage
commission, the Plan Administrator will invest the Dividend amount in common shares acquired on behalf of the
participants in Open-Market Purchases.

If, before the Plan Administrator has completed its Open-Market Purchases, the market price per common share
exceeds the net asset value per common share, the average per common share purchase price paid by the Plan
Administrator may exceed the net asset value of the common shares, resulting in the acquisition of fewer common
shares than if the Dividend had been paid in Newly Issued Common Shares on the Dividend payment date. Because of
the foregoing difficulty with respect to Open-Market Purchases, the Plan provides that if the Plan Administrator is
unable to invest the full Dividend amount in Open-Market Purchases during the purchase period or if the market
discount shifts to a market premium during the purchase period, the Plan Administrator may cease making
Open-Market Purchases and may invest the uninvested portion of the Dividend amount in Newly Issued Common
Shares at net asset value per common share at the close of business on the Last Purchase Date provided that, if the net
asset value is less than or equal to 95% of the then current market price per common share; the dollar amount of the
Dividend will be divided by 95% of the market price on the payment date.

The Plan Administrator maintains all shareholders’ accounts in the Plan and furnishes written confirmation of all
transactions in the accounts, including information needed by shareholders for tax records. Common shares in the
account of each Plan participant will be held by the Plan Administrator on behalf of the Plan participant, and each
shareholder proxy will include those shares purchased or received pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Administrator will
forward all proxy solicitation materials to participants and vote proxies for shares held under the Plan in accordance
with the instruction of the participants.
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There will be no brokerage charges with respect to common shares issued directly by the Trust. However, each

participant will pay a pro rata share of brokerage commission incurred in connection with Open-Market Purchases.

The automatic reinvestment of Dividends will not relieve participants of any Federal, state or local income tax that
may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such Dividends.

The Trust reserves the right to amend or terminate the Plan. There is no direct service charge to participants with
regard to purchases in the Plan; however, the Trust reserves the right to amend the Plan to include a service charge
payable by the participants.

All correspondence or questions concerning the Plan should be directed to the Plan Administrator, Computershare
Shareowner Services LLC, P.O. Box 358015, Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8015; Attention Shareholder Services
Department, Phone Number: 866-488-3559.
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BOARD CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING INVESTMENT ADVISORY AGREEMENT AND
INVESTMENT SUB-ADVISORY AGREEMENT CONTRACT RE-APPROVAL May 31, 2012

On May 16, 2012 (the “May Meeting”), the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Guggenheim Build America Bonds
Managed Duration Trust (the “Trust”), including those trustees who are not “interested persons” as defined by the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Independent Trustees”), on the recommendation of the Contracts
Review Committee (referred to as the “Committee” and consisting solely of the Independent Trustees) of the Board of
the Trust, renewed: (1) the investment advisory agreement (“Investment Advisory Agreement”) between the Trust and
Guggenheim Funds Investment Advisors, LLC (“Adviser” or “GFIA”), an affiliate of Guggenheim Partners, LLC
(“Guggenheim”) and (2) the investment sub-advisory agreement (“Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement”) by and among
the Adviser, the Trust and Guggenheim Partners Asset Management, LLC, n/k/a Guggenheim Partners Investment
Management, LL.C, an affiliate of Guggenheim (‘“Sub-Adviser”). The Investment Advisory Agreement and the
Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement are together referred to as the “Advisory Agreements.” As part of its review
process, the Committee was represented by independent legal counsel (“Independent Legal Counsel”). Independent
Legal Counsel reviewed with the Committee various factors relevant to the consideration of advisory agreements and
the legal responsibilities of the Trustees related to such consideration. The Board and Committee took into account
various materials received from the Adviser, the Sub-Adviser and Independent Legal Counsel. The Board and
Committee also considered the variety of written materials, reports and oral presentations received throughout the year
regarding performance and operating results of the Trust.

In preparation for its review, the Committee worked with Independent Legal Counsel to determine the nature of
information to be requested, and Independent Legal Counsel, on behalf of the Committee, sent a formal request for
information to the Adviser and the Sub-Adviser. The Adviser and the Sub-Adviser provided extensive information in
response to the initial request and to subsequent requests for additional information. Among other things, the Adviser
and Sub-Adviser provided organizational presentations, staffing reports and biographies of those key personnel of the
Adpviser and Sub-Adviser providing services to the Trust to assist the Committee in assessing the nature and quality of
services provided by the Adviser and Sub-Adviser, information comparing the investment performance, advisory fees
and total expenses of the Trust to other funds, information about the profitability of each of the Adviser and the
Sub-Adviser in connection with the Advisory Agreements and information about the compliance programs of the
Adpviser and the Sub-Adviser, including procedures, processes and reporting.

Following an analysis and discussion of the factors identified below, the Board and Committee concluded that it was
in the best interests of the Trust that the Board approve the renewal of each of the Advisory Agreements for an
additional 12-month term. In reaching this conclusion for the Trust, no single factor was determinative in the Board’s
analysis, but rather the Board considered a variety of factors.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Nature, Extent and Quality of Services Provided by the Adviser: With respect to the nature, extent and quality of
services currently provided by the Adviser, the Board noted that the Adviser had delegated responsibility for the
investment and reinvestment of the Trust’s assets to the Sub-Adviser. The Board considered the Adviser’s responsibility
to oversee the Sub-Adviser and that the Adviser has similar oversight responsibilities for other Guggenheim funds. In
this connection, the Board took into account information provided by management describing the Adviser’s processes
and activities for providing oversight of the Sub-Adviser’s investment strategies and compliance with investment
restrictions, as well as information regarding the Adviser’s Sub-Advisory Oversight Committee. The Board also
considered the secondary market support services provided by the Adviser to the Trust. In addition, the Board noted

its various discussions with management concerning the experience and qualifications of the Adviser’s personnel,
including those personnel providing compliance oversight. In this regard, the Board considered the information from,
and presentations to the Independent Trustees by, representatives of Foreside Compliance Services, LLC (‘“Foreside”), a
third party service provider which provides independent chief compliance officer (“CCO”) services for registered
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investment companies and investment advisers. The Independent Trustees took into account their review of the

relevant experience, qualifications and reputation of Foreside and its personnel and, specifically, their evaluation of,

and meeting with, the Trust’s prospective interim CCO, a senior Foreside employee. Additionally, the Independent
Trustees considered the proposed appointment by the Board of Mr. Donald C. Cacciapaglia, President and Chief
Executive Officer of GFIA, as an “interested” Trustee for the Trust, and his proposed election by the Board as the Trust’s
Chief Executive Officer, as well as various legal, compliance and risk management oversight and staffing initiatives
undertaken and/or presented by management in connection with the Adviser’s organizational capabilities. The Board
also considered updated information and representations regarding a regulatory investigation of the Adviser.

Moreover, in connection with the Board’s evaluation of the overall package of services provided by GFIA, the Board
considered the quality of the administrative services provided by GFIA.

Further with respect to the Adviser’s resources and its ability to carry out its responsibilities under the Investment
Advisory Agreement, the Board
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BOARD CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING INVESTMENT ADVISORY

AGREEMENT AND

INVESTMENT SUB-ADVISORY AGREEMENT CONTRACT RE-APPROVAL May 31, 2012
continued

considered its review of financial information concerning each of the Adviser and its parent, Guggenheim, as well as
its discussions with the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer of GFIA and Guggenheim, respectively.
The Board also took into account the commitment letter from Guggenheim regarding its financial support of GFIA.

The Board also discussed the acceptability of the terms of the Investment Advisory Agreement (including the
relatively broad scope of services required to be performed by GFIA). Based on the foregoing, and based on other
information received (both oral and written) at the April 19, 2012 Committee meeting (the “April Meeting”) Meeting
and at the May Meeting, as well as other considerations, the Board concluded that the Adviser and its personnel were
qualified to serve the Trust in such capacity.

Investment Performance: The Board considered the Trust’s investment performance by reviewing the Trust’s total
return on a net asset value (“NAV”’) and market price basis for the three-month, six-month, one-year and since-inception
periods ended December 31, 2011. The Board compared the Trust’s performance to the performance of a peer group of
closed-end funds provided by the Adviser (“peer group of funds”) for the same time periods. The peer group of funds
included other closed-end funds that invest primarily in a diversified portfolio of taxable municipal securities known

as “Build America Bonds” (“BABs”). The Board noted that the Trust’s investment results were consistent with the Trust’s
primary investment objective of providing current income and its secondary objective of long-term capital

appreciation. The Board also considered that the Adviser does not directly manage the investment portfolio but had
delegated such duties to the Sub-Adviser. The Board also considered the Trust’s use of leverage and the impact of the
leverage on the Trust’s performance for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. Based on the information
provided, the Board concluded that the Adviser had appropriately reviewed and monitored the Sub-Adviser’s
investment performance.

Comparative Fees, Costs of Services Provided and the Profits Realized by the Adviser from its Relationship with the
Trust: The Board compared the Trust’s advisory fee (which includes the sub-advisory fee paid to the Sub-Adviser) and
expense ratio to the peer group of funds. The Board also reviewed the mean and median advisory fees and expense
ratios of the peer group of funds. The Board noted that although the Trust’s expense ratio was above the median
expense ratio of its peer group, the advisory fee (applicable to managed assets) was in line with the median advisory
fee of the peer group of funds.

With respect to the costs of services provided and profits realized by the Adviser from its relationship with the Trust,
the Board reviewed information regarding the revenues the Adviser received under the Investment Advisory
Agreement as well as the estimated allocated direct and indirect costs the Adviser incurred in providing services to the
Trust, including paying the sub-advisory fee to the Sub-Adviser.

The Board considered other benefits available to the Adviser because of its relationship with the Trust and noted that
the administrative services fees received by the Adviser from serving as administrator to the Trust provides it with
additional revenue. Based on all of the information provided, the Board determined that the Adviser’s profitability
from its relationship with the Trust was not unreasonable.

Economies of Scale to be Realized: The Board noted that the advisory fee schedule does not contain breakpoints that

reduce the fee rate on assets above specified levels. Due to the Trust’s closed-end structure, the Board did not view the
potential for realization of economies of scale as the Trust’s assets grow to be a material factor in its deliberations.
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Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement

Nature, Extent and Quality of Services Provided by the Sub-Adviser: With respect to the nature, extent and quality of
services provided by the Sub-Adviser, the Board considered the qualifications, experience and skills of the
Sub-Adviser’s portfolio management and other key personnel and information from the Sub-Adviser describing the
scope of its services to the Trust. In its consideration of the Sub-Adviser’s resources and its ability to carry out its
responsibilities under the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement, the Board considered the Sub-Adviser’s representation
that there has not been any material adverse change to its financial condition since the last time its financial
information was provided to Board members.

The Board also discussed the acceptability of the terms of the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement. In addition, the
Board considered the Sub-Adviser’s efforts in pursuing the Trust’s primary investment objective of providing current
income and the Trust’s secondary objective of long-term capital appreciation. Based on the foregoing, and based on
other information received (both oral and written) at the April Meeting and at the May Meeting, the Board concluded
that the Sub-Adviser was qualified to provide the services under the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement.

Investment Performance: The Board reviewed the performance of the Trust and the peer group of funds over various
periods of time. The Board noted that the Trust’s performance on an NAV basis exceeded the average return of its peer
group of funds over the three-month, one-year and since-inception periods ended December 31, 2011, and
underperformed the average return of its peer group for the six months ended December 31, 2011. The Board also

took into account that on a market price basis the Trust outperformed the average return of its peer group of funds for
the
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BOARD CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING INVESTMENT ADVISORY

AGREEMENT AND

INVESTMENT SUB-ADVISORY AGREEMENT CONTRACT RE-APPROVAL May 31, 2012
continued

three-month and one-year periods ended December 31, 2011, and the Trust underperformed the average return of its
peer group of funds for the six-month and since-inception periods. The Board also compared the Trust’s investment
performance on an NAV basis to the BAML Build America Bond Index, noting that the Trust’s portfolio has seen a
cumulative increase in NAV of almost 30% since its inception (October 27, 2010), outperforming the benchmark by
7.72% through March 31, 2012. In addition, the Board considered the information provided by management
concerning the BABs component of the Trust’s portfolio, the duration management strategy, use of leverage, credit
quality distribution, sector breakdown, duration analysis and performance assessments. The Board determined that the
Trust’s performance was acceptable.

Comparative Fees, Costs of Services Provided and the Profits Realized by the Sub-Adviser from its Relationship with
the Trust: The Board also reviewed the level of sub-advisory fees payable to the Sub-Adviser, noting that the fees
would be paid by GFIA and do not impact the fees paid by the Trust. The Board compared the sub-advisory fee paid
by the Adviser to the Sub-Adviser to the fees charged by the Sub-Adviser to other clients including other registered
investment companies. The Board noted that the Trust’s sub-advisory fee is representative of the Sub-Adviser’s
fixed-income pricing for other clients.

With respect to the costs of services provided and profits realized by the Sub-Adviser from its relationship with the
Trust, the Board considered information provided by management concerning the revenues the Sub-Adviser received
under the Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement as well as the estimated expenses incurred by the Sub-Adviser in
providing services to the Trust and its pre-tax return on revenue. The Board considered management’s representation
that the Sub-Adviser’s operating margins were within the industry range and determined that the Sub-Adviser’s
profitability from its relationship with the Trust was not unreasonable.

The Board considered other benefits derived by the Sub-Adviser from its relationship to the Trust and noted the
Sub-Adviser’s statement that the Sub-Adviser’s relationship with the Trust has provided new product development
opportunities.

Economies of Scale to be Realized: The Board noted that the sub-advisory fee schedule does not contain breakpoints
that reduce the fee rate on assets above specified levels. Due to the Trust’s closed-end structure, the Board did not view
the potential for realization of economies of scale as the Trust’s assets grow to be a material factor in its deliberations.

Overall Conclusions

Based on the foregoing, the Board determined at the May Meeting that the investment advisory fees are fair and
reasonable in light of the extent and quality of the services provided and other benefits received and that the
continuation of each Advisory Agreement is in the best interests of the Trust. In reaching this conclusion, no single
factor was determinative.
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TRUST INFORMATION May 31, 2012
Board of Trustees Executive Officers Investment Adviser and Legal Counsel
Randall C. Barnes Donald C. Cacciapaglia Administrator Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Chief Executive Officer Guggenheim Funds Meagher & Flom LLP
Donald C. Cacciapaglia* Investment New York, New York
Kevin M. Robinson Advisors, LLC
Roman Friedrich 111 Chief Legal Officer Lisle, Illinois Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
John Sullivan Investment Sub-Adviser Ernst & Young LLP
Robert B. Karn III Chief Financial Officer, Guggenheim Partners Chicago, Illinois
Chief Accounting Officer Investment
Ronald A. Nyberg and Treasurer Management, LLC
Santa Monica, California
Ronald E. Toupin, Jr., Ann E. Edgeworth
Chairman Interim Chief Accounting Agent
* Trustee is an “interested Compliance Officer and Custodian
person” (as defined in The Bank of
section 2(a)(19) of the Mark E. Mathiasen New York Mellon
1940 Act) (“Interested  Secretary New York, New York

Trustee™) of the Trust
because of his position as
the President and CEO of
the Investment Adviser.

Privacy Principles of Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust for Shareholders

The Trust is committed to maintaining the privacy of its shareholders and to safeguarding its non-public personal
information. The following information is provided to help you understand what personal information the Trust
collects, how we protect that information and why, in certain cases, we may share information with select other
parties.

Generally, the Trust does not receive any non-public personal information relating to its shareholders, although certain
non-public personal information of its shareholders may become available to the Trust. The Trust does not disclose
any non-public personal information about its shareholders or former shareholders to anyone except as permitted by
law or as is necessary in order to service shareholder accounts (for example, to a transfer agent or third party
administrator).

The Trust restricts access to non-public personal information about the shareholders to Guggenheim Funds Investment
Adpvisors, LLC employees with a legitimate business need for the information. The Trust maintains physical,
electronic and procedural safeguards designed to protect the non-public personal information of its shareholders.
Questions concerning your shares of Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust?

*  If your shares are held in a Brokerage Account, contact your Broker.

* If you have physical possession of your shares in certificate form, contact the Trust’s Transfer Agent:

Computershare Shareowner Services LLC, 480 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ 07310; (866)
488-3559
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This report is sent to shareholders of Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust for their
information. It is not a Prospectus, circular or representation intended for use in the purchase or sale of shares of the
Trust or of any securities mentioned in this report.

A description of the Trust’s proxy voting policies and procedures related to portfolio securities is available without
charge, upon request, by calling the Trust at (866) 392-3004.

Information regarding how the Trust voted proxies for portfolio securities, if applicable, during the most recent
12-month period ended June 30, is also available, without charge and upon request by calling (866) 392-3004, by
visiting the Trust’s website at www.guggenheimfunds.com/gbab or by accessing the Trust’s Form N-PX on the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) website at www.sec.gov.

The Trust files its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC for the first and third quarters of each fiscal
year on Form N-Q. The Trust’s Form N-Q is available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov or the Trust’s website at
www.guggenheimfunds.com/gbab. The Trust’s Form N-Q may also be viewed and copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room in Washington, DC; information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by
calling (800) SEC-0330.
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ABOUT THE TRUST MANAGERS

Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LL.C

Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC (“GPIM”) is an indirect subsidiary of Guggenheim Partners, LLC,
a diversified financial services firm. The firm provides capital markets services, portfolio and risk management
expertise, wealth management, and investment advisory services. Clients of Guggenheim Partners, LLC subsidiaries
are an elite mix of individuals, family offices, endowments, foundations, insurance companies and other institutions.

Investment Philosophy

GPIM’s investment philosophy is predicated upon the belief that thorough research and independent thought are
rewarded with performance that has the potential to outperform benchmark indexes with both lower volatility and
lower correlation of returns over time as compared to such benchmark indexes.

Investment Process

GPIM’s investment process is a collaborative effort between various groups including the Portfolio Construction
Group, which utilize proprietary portfolio construction and risk modeling tools to determine allocation of assets
among a variety of sectors, and its Sector Specialists, who are responsible for security selection within these sectors
and for implementing securities transactions, including the structuring of certain securities directly with the issuers or
with investment banks and dealers involved in the origination of such securities.

Guggenheim Funds Distributors, LLC
2455 Corporate West Drive

Lisle, IL 60532

Member FINRA/SIPC

(07/12)

NOT FDIC-INSURED | NOT BANK-GUARANTEED | MAY LOSE VALUE
CEF-GBAB-AR-0512
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Item 2. Code of Ethics.

(@ The registrant has adopted a code of ethics (the "Code of Ethics") that applies to its principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions.

(b) No information need be disclosed pursuant to this paragraph.

© The registrant’s code of ethics that applies to the registrant’s principal executive officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, was amended during the period to include: specific
examples of conflict of interest situations requiring prior written approval; annual certification requirements for

officers covered under the code of ethics; specific recordkeeping obligations by the Trust; and a confidentiality
provision.

(d) The registrant has not granted a waiver or an implicit waiver to its principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions from a provision
of its Code of Ethics during the period covered by this report.

© Not applicable.

® (1) The registrant's Code of Ethics is attached hereto as an exhibit.

(2) Not applicable.

(3) Not applicable.

Table of Contents 191



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

Item 3. Audit Committee Financial Expert.

The registrant's Board of Trustees has determined that it has at least one audit committee financial expert serving on
its audit committee, Robert B. Karn III. Mr. Karn is an “independent” Trustee as defined in this Item 3 of Form
N-CSR. Mr. Karn qualifies as an audit committee financial expert by virtue of his experience obtained as an
accountant and accounting consultant, which included review and analysis of audited and unaudited financial
statements using generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) to show accounting estimates, accruals and
reserves.

(Under applicable securities laws, a person who is determined to be an audit committee financial expert will not be
deemed an "expert" for any purpose, including without limitation for the purposes of Section 11 of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, as a result of being designated or identified as an audit committee financial expert. The
designation or identification of a person as an audit committee financial expert does not impose on such person any
duties, obligations, or liabilities that are greater than the duties, obligations, and liabilities imposed on such person as a
member of the audit committee and Board of Trustees in the absence of such designation or identification. The
designation or identification of a person as an audit committee financial expert does not affect the duties, obligations
or liability of any other member of the audit committee or Board of Trustees.)

Item 4. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

(a) Audit Fees: the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of
the registrant's annual financial statements or services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements were $30,600 and $34,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012 and
the initial fiscal period from the registrant’s inception date of October 26, 2010, through May 31, 2011, respectively.

(b) Audit-Related Fees: the aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services by the principal accountant that
are reasonably related to the performance of the audit of the registrant’s financial statements and are not reported under
paragraph 4(a) of this item, were $0 and $0 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012 and the initial fiscal period from
the registrant’s inception date of October 26, 2010, through May 31, 2011, respectively.

The registrant’s principal accountant did not bill for non-audit services that required approval by the audit committee
pursuant to paragraph (c)(7)(ii) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X during the registrant's last two fiscal years.

(c) Tax Fees: the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning, including federal, state and local income tax return preparation and related
advice and determination of taxable income and miscellaneous tax advice were $4,250 and $5,000 for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2012 and the initial fiscal period from the registrant’s inception date of October 26, 2010, through May
31, 2011, respectively.

The registrant’s principal accountant did not bill for non-audit services that required approval by the audit committee
pursuant to paragraph (c)(7)(ii) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X during the registrant's last two fiscal years.

(d) All Other Fees: the aggregate fees billed for products and services provided by the principal accountant, other than
the services reported in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Item were $0 and $0 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012
and the initial fiscal period from the registrant’s inception date of October 26, 2010, through May 31, 2011,
respectively.
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The registrant’s principal accountant did not bill for non-audit services that required approval by the audit committee
pursuant to paragraph (c)(7)(ii) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X during the registrant's last two fiscal years.

(e) Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures.

(1) The registrant’s audit committee reviews, and in its sole discretion, pre-approves, pursuant to written pre-approval
procedures (A) all engagements for audit and non-audit services to be provided by the principal accountant to the
registrant and (B) all engagements for non-audit services to be provided by the principal accountant (1) to the
registrant’s investment adviser (not including a sub-adviser whose role is primarily portfolio management and is
sub-contracted or overseen by another investment adviser) and (2) to any entity controlling, controlled by or under
common control with the registrant’s investment adviser that provides ongoing services to the registrant; but in the case
of the services described in subsection (B)(1) or (2), only if the engagement relates directly to the operations and
financial reporting of the registrant; provided that such pre-approval need not be obtained in circumstances in which
the pre-approval requirement is waived under rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission or New
York Stock Exchange listing standards. Sections IV.C.2 and IV.C.3 of the registrant’s audit committee’s Audit
Committee Charter contain the Audit Committee’s Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures and such sections are
included below.

Iv.C.2. Pre-approve any engagement of the independent auditors to provide any non-prohibited
services to the Fund, including the fees and other compensation to be paid to the independent auditors (unless an
exception is available under Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X).

(a) The categories of services to be reviewed and considered for pre-approval include the following:
Audit Services
¢ Annual financial statement audits

e Seed audits (related to new product filings, as required)
e SEC and regulatory filings and consents

Audit-Related Services

® Accounting consultations
¢ Fund merger/reorganization support services
e Other accounting related matters
e Agreed upon procedures reports
e Attestation reports
e Other internal control reports

Tax Services
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e Tax compliance services related to the filing of amendments:
o Federal, state and local income tax compliance
o Sales and use tax compliance
¢ Timely RIC qualification reviews
e Tax distribution analysis and planning
¢ Tax authority examination services
e Tax appeals support services
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e Accounting methods studies
¢ Fund merger support services
e Tax compliance, planning and advice services and related projects

(b) The Audit Committee has pre-approved those services, which fall into one of the categories of services listed
under 2(a) above and for which the estimated fees are less than $25,000.

(c) For services with estimated fees of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, the Chairman is hereby authorized to
pre-approve such services on behalf of the Audit Committee.

(d) For services with estimated fees of $50,000 or more, such services require pre-approval by the Audit Committee.

(e) The independent auditors or the Chief Accounting Officer of the Fund (or an officer of the Fund who
reports to the Chief Accounting Officer) shall report to the Audit Committee at each of its regular
quarterly meetings all audit, audit-related and permissible non-audit services initiated since the last such
report (unless the services were contained in the initial audit plan, as previously presented to, and
approved by, the Audit Committee). The report shall include a general description of the services and
projected fees, and the means by which such services were approved by the Audit Committee (including
the particular category listed above under which pre-approval was obtained).

IV.C3. Pre-approve any engagement of the independent auditors, including the fees and other compensation to
be paid to the independent auditors, to provide any non-audit services to the Adviser (or any “control affiliate” of the
Adpviser providing ongoing services to the Fund), if the engagement relates directly to the operations and financial
reporting of the Fund (unless an exception is available under Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X).

(a) The Chairman or any member of the Audit Committee may grant the pre-approval for non-audit services to the
Adviser (or any “control affiliate” of the Adviser providing ongoing services to the Fund) relating directly to the
operations and financial reporting of the Fund for which the estimated fees are less than $25,000. All such
delegated pre-approvals shall be presented to the Audit Committee no later than the next Audit Committee
meeting.

(b) For non-audit services to the Adviser (or any “control affiliate” of the Adviser providing ongoing services to the
Fund) relating directly to the operations and financial reporting of the Fund for which the estimated fees are
$25,000 or more, such services require pre-approval by the Audit Committee.

(2) None of the services described in each of Items 4(b) through (d) were approved by the Audit Committee pursuant
to paragraph (c)(7)(i)(C) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X.

(f) Not applicable.

(2) The aggregate non-audit fees billed by the registrant's accountant for services rendered to the registrant, the

registrant’s investment adviser (not including a sub-adviser whose role is primarily portfolio management and is
sub-contracted with or overseen by another investment adviser) and/or any entity controlling, controlled by, or under

common control with the adviser that provides ongoing services to the registrant that directly related to the operations

and financial reporting of the registrant were $4,250 and $5,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012 and the
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initial fiscal period from the registrant’s inception date of October 26, 2010, through May 31, 2011, respectively.
(h) Not applicable.
Item 5. Audit Committee of Listed Registrants.

(a) The registrant has a separately designated standing audit committee established in accordance with Section
3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The audit committee of the registrant is
composed of: Randall C. Barnes; Ronald A. Nyberg; Ronald E. Toupin, Jr.; Robert B. Karn III; and Roman
Friedrich III.

(b) Not applicable.

Item 6. Schedule of Investments.

The Schedule of Investments is included as part of Item 1.

Item 7. Disclosure of Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures for Closed-End Management Investment Companies.

The registrant has delegated the voting of proxies relating to its voting securities to the registrant’s investment
sub-adviser, Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC (“GPIM”). GPIM’s proxy voting policies and
procedures are included as an exhibit hereto.

Item 8. Portfolio Managers of Closed-End Management Investment Companies.

(a)(1) GPIM serves as sub-adviser for the registrant and is responsible for the day-to-day management of the

registrant’s portfolio. GPIM uses a team approach to manage client portfolios. Day to day management of a client
portfolio is conducted under the auspices of GPIM’s Portfolio Construction Group (“PCG”). PCG’s members include the
Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”) and other key investment personnel. The PCG, in consultation with the CIO, provides
direction for overall investment strategy. The PCG performs several duties as it relates to client portfolios including:
determining both tactical and strategic asset allocations; and monitoring portfolio adherence to asset allocation targets;
providing sector specialists with direction for overall investment strategy, which may include portfolio design and the
rebalancing of portfolios; performing risk management oversight; assisting sector managers and research staff in
determining the relative valuation of market sectors; and providing a forum for the regular discussion of the economy

and the financial markets to enhance the robustness of GPIM’s strategic and tactical policy directives.

The following individuals at GPIM share primary responsibility for the management of the registrant’s portfolio and is
provided as of May 31, 2012:

Name Since  Professional Experience During the Last Five Years

Scott Minerd - CEO and 2007  Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LL.C.: CEO and CIO -

CIO 2005—Present; Guggenheim Partners, LLC: Managing Partner — Insurance
Advisory — 1998—Present.

Anne Walsh, CFA, FLMI — 2007  Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC.: Senior Managing

Senior Managing Director Director — 2007-Present. Former, Reinsurance Group of America, Inc.: Senior
Vice President and Chief Investment Officer — 2000-2007.
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James E. Pass — Managing 2010  Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC.: Managing Director,
Director, Municipals Municipals — 2009-Present. Previously, Mr. Pass was a Managing Director at
RBC Capital Markets — 2000-2009.

(a)(2)(i-iii) Other Accounts Managed by the Portfolio Managers

The following tables summarize information regarding each of the other accounts managed by the GPIM portfolio
managers as of May 31, 2012:
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Scott Minerd:

Type of Account Number of Accounts

Registered 10
investment
companies

Other pooled 3
investment vehicles

Other accounts 22

Anne Walsh:

Type of Account Number of Accounts

Registered investment 8
companies

Other pooled 2
investment vehicles

Other accounts 30

Total Assets in the
Accounts In Which
the Advisory Fee is

Based on
Performance

$2,613,783

$2,099,772,833

$0

Total Assets in the Number of
Accounts Accounts In
‘Which the
Advisory Fee is
Based on
Performance
$917,558,569 1
$2,148,953,329 2
$49,469,101,064 0
Total Assets in the ~ Number of
Accounts Accounts In
Which the
Adpvisory Fee is
Based on
Performance
$823,303,302 0
$2,099,772,833 2
$62,669,213,566 1

Total Assets in the
Accounts In Which
the Advisory Fee is
Based on
Performance

$0

$2,099,772,833

$383,821,858
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James Pass:
Type of Account Number of Accounts Total Assets in the Number of Total Assets in the
Accounts Accounts In Accounts In Which

Which the the Advisory Fee is
Advisory Fee is Based on
Based on Performance
Performance

Registered investment 0 $0 0 $0

companies

Other pooled 0 $0 0 $0

investment vehicles

Other accounts 0 $0 0 $0

(a)(2)(iv) Potential Conflicts of Interest

Actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise when a portfolio manager has day-to-day management
responsibilities with respect to more than one fund or other account. More specifically, portfolio managers who
manage multiple funds and/or other accounts may be presented with one or more of the following potential conflicts.

The management of multiple funds and/or other accounts may result in a portfolio manager devoting unequal time and
attention to the management of each fund and/or other account. GPIM seeks to manage such competing interests for
the time and attention of a portfolio manager by having the portfolio manager focus on a particular investment
discipline. Specifically, the ultimate decision maker for security selection for each client portfolio is the Sector
Specialist Portfolio Manager. They are responsible for analyzing and selecting specific securities that they believe
best reflect the risk and return level as provided in each client’s investment guidelines.

GPIM may have clients with similar investment strategies. As a result, if an investment opportunity would be
appropriate for more than one client, GPIM may be required to
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choose among those clients in allocating such opportunity, or to allocate less of such opportunity to a client than it
would ideally allocate if it did not have to allocate to multiple clients. In addition, GPIM may determine that an
investment opportunity is appropriate for a particular account, but not for another.

Allocation decisions are made in accordance with the investment objectives, guidelines, and restrictions governing the
respective clients and in a manner that will not unfairly favor one client over another. GPIM’s allocation policy
provides that investment decisions must never be based upon account performance or fee structure. Accordingly,
GPIM’s allocation procedures are designed to ensure that investment opportunities are allocated equitably among
different client accounts over time. The procedures also seek to ensure reasonable efficiency in client transactions and
to provide portfolio managers with flexibility to use allocation methodologies appropriate to GPIM’s investment
disciplines and the specific goals and objectives of each client account.

In order to minimize execution costs and obtain best execution for clients, trades in the same security transacted on

behalf of more than one client may be aggregated. In the event trades are aggregated, GPIM’s policy and procedures
provide as follows: (i) treat all participating client accounts fairly; (ii) continue to seek best execution; (iii) ensure that

clients who participate in an aggregated order will participate at the average share price with all transaction costs

shared on a pro-rata basis based on each client’s participation in the transaction; (iv) disclose its aggregation policy to
clients.

GPIM, as a fiduciary to its clients, considers numerous factors in arranging for the purchase and sale of clients’
portfolio securities in order to achieve best execution for its clients. When selecting a broker, individuals making
trades on behalf of GPIM clients consider the full range and quality of a broker’s services, including execution
capability, commission rate, price, financial stability and reliability. GPIM is not obliged to merely get the lowest
price or commission but also must determine whether the transaction represents the best qualitative execution for the
account.

In the event that multiple broker/dealers make a market in a particular security, GPIM’s Portfolio Managers are
responsible for selecting the broker-dealer to use with respect to executing the transaction. The broker-dealer will be
selected on the basis of how the transaction can be executed to achieve the most favorable execution for the client
under the circumstances. In many instances, there may only be one counter-party active in a particular security at a
given time. In such situations the Employee executing the trade will use his/her best effort to obtain the best
execution from the counter-party.

GPIM and the registrant have adopted certain compliance procedures which are designed to address these types of
conflicts. However, there is no guarantee that such procedures will detect each and every situation in which a conflict

arises.

(a)(3) Portfolio Manager Compensation
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GPIM compensates Mr. Minerd, Ms. Walsh, and Mr. Pass for their management of the registrant’s portfolio.
Compensation is evaluated based on their contribution to investment performance relative to pertinent benchmarks
and qualitatively based on factors such as teamwork and client service efforts. ~GPIM’s staff incentives may include:
a competitive base salary, bonus determined by individual and firm wide performance, equity participation, and
participation opportunities in various GPIM investments. All GPIM employees are also eligible to participate in a
401(k) plan to which GPIM may make a discretionary match after the completion of each plan year.

(a)(4) Portfolio Manager Securities Ownership

The following table discloses the dollar range of equity securities of the registrant beneficially owned by each GPIM
portfolio manager as of May 31, 2012:

Dollar Amount of
Equity Securities in

Name of Portfolio Manager Fund

Scott Minerd None
Anne Walsh $100,001-$500,000
James Pass $10,001-$50,000

Item 9. Purchases of Equity Securities by Closed-End Management Investment Company and Affiliated Purchasers.
None.
Item 10. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

The registrant has not made any material changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees
to the registrant’s Board of Trustees.

Item 11. Controls and Procedures.

(a)  The registrant's principal executive officer and principal financial officer have evaluated the registrant's
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 30a-3(c) under the Investment Company Act) as of a date
within 90 days of this filing and have concluded based on such evaluation, as required by Rule 30a-3(b) under the
Investment Company Act, that the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures were effective, as of that date, in
ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the registrant in this Form N-CSR was recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms.

(b)  There were no changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 30a-3(d)
under the Investment Company Act) that occurred during the registrant’s second fiscal quarter of the period covered by
this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
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Item 12. Exhibits.
(a)(1) Code of Ethics for Chief Executive and Senior Financial Officers.

(a)(2) Certifications of principal executive officer and principal financial officer pursuant to Rule 30a-2(a) under the
Investment Company Act.

(2)(3) Not applicable.

(b) Certification of principal executive officer and principal financial officer pursuant to Rule 30a-2(b) under the
Investment Company Act and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(©) Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures.

Table of Contents 204



Edgar Filing: Atlas Resource Partners, L.P. - Form S-3ASR

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

(Registrant) Guggenheim Build America Bonds Managed Duration Trust

By: /s/Donald C. Cacciapaglia
Name: Donald C. Cacciapaglia
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: August 8, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment Company Act of 1940, this
report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

By: /s/Donald C. Cacciapaglia

Name: Donald C. Cacciapaglia

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 8, 2012

By: /s/John Sullivan

Name: John Sullivan

Title: Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer
Date: August 8, 2012
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